LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITANDISTRICT
SPECIAL MEETING
Leyden Rock Clubhouse (17685 W.
83" Dr., Arvada, CO) and Via
Teleconference
Tuesday, September 17%, 2024 at 6:00 PM
https://leydenrocklife.com/

Brett Vernon, President Term to May 2027

Scott J. Plummer, Secretary Term to May 2027

Jeff Cunningham, Treasurer Term to May 2025

Christian Ardita, Assistant Secretary Term to May 2025

Jen Langhals, Assistant Secretary Term to May 2025
Link:

L~

https://us06web.zoom.us/i/87069321837?pwd=4Mct7Ce
0O9uhmj2CM2NeOF4vwINEa3y.1

Meeting ID: 870 6932 1837

Passcode: 379467
Call-in Number: +1-720-707-2699

NOTICE OF SPECIAL MEETING AND AGENDA

Call to Order/Declaration of Quorum

Director Conflict of Interest Disclosures

Approval of Agenda

Public Comment — Members of the public may express their views to the Board on matters that

affect the District on items not otherwise on the agenda. Comments will be limited to three (3)
minutes per person.

5. Consent Agenda:

a.
b.

Approval of Minutes from August 20", 2024 Special Meeting (enclosure)

Approval of Agreement with Tay’s Esthetics LLC d/b/a Taylor Rose Beauty for Fall Fest
Hair Art Services (enclosure)

Approval of Agreement with Sherri MacLean d/b/a Fantastic Facepainting for Glitter
Tattoo & Stilt Walker Services (enclosure)

Approval of Agreement with Midland Marketing Inc. d/b/a Fun Services Inc. for Event
Rental Services for September 21, 2024 (enclosure)

Ratification of Agreement for Design Development and Construction with The Architerra
Group (enclosure)

Ratification of Agreement for 2024 Holiday Lights with Mile High Lights (enclosure)

Ratification of Agreement for 2024-2025 Snow Removal Services with Keesen Landscape
Management (enclosure)

Ratification of Keesen Landscape Management Work Order # 109747 for Various Bed

2024 Reqular Meetings

January 16; February 20; March 19; April 16; May 21; June 18; July 16; August 20; September 17; October 15;

1237.0008;

November 19; and December 17 at 6:00 p.m. via teleconference.


https://leydenrocklife.com/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87069321837?pwd=4Mct7CeO9uhmj2CM2NeOF4vwINEa3y.1
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/87069321837?pwd=4Mct7CeO9uhmj2CM2NeOF4vwINEa3y.1

Cleanups and Plantings (enclosure)

i.  Ratification of Keesen Landscape Management Work Order # 109561 for Filing 5 Trail
Storm Restoration (enclosure)

j- Ratification of Keesen Landscape Management Work Order # 109160 for Filing 3 Trail
Restoration (enclosure)

k. Ratification of Keesen Landscape Management Work Order # 109139 for Fall Flowers
(enclosure)

1. Consider Ratification of Requisition No. 18 Related to the District’s General Obligation
(Limited Tax Convertible to Unlimited Tax) refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series
2021 (enclosure)

m. Ratification of Option and Ground Lease Agreement with Crown Castle (enclosure)

6. Legal Matters

a. Consider Adoption of Resolution Regarding Policies, Procedures, and Penalties for the
Enforcement of the Governing Documents (enclosure)

b. Discussion regarding Loft and Blush Contract
c. Other Legal Matters

7. Financial Matters
a. Consider Approval of Payables/Financials (enclosure)
b. Other Financial Matters

8. District Management Matters
a. District Manager’s Report (enclosure)
b. Discussion and Consider Approval of Filing 1 Trail Restoration and Drain (enclosure)
¢. Discussion Regarding Clubhouse Rental Deposit for Baby Shower
d. Other Management Matters
9. Capital Projects Discussion
a. Other Capital Project Matters
10. Director’s Matters
a. Discussion Regarding Temporary Irrigation on W. 84™ Trail
b. Discussion Regarding Jellyfish Lighting

c. Other Director’s Matters
11. Other Business

12. Adjourn

2024 Regular Meetings
January 16; February 20; March 19; April 16; May 21; June 18; July 16; August 20; September 17; October 15;
November 19; and December 17 at 6:00 p.m. via teleconference.

1237.0008;



Attendance

Call to Order

Conflict of Interest
Disclosures

1237.0006

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF

LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

Held: Tuesday, August 20" 2024, at 6:00 P.M. via
teleconference and at 17685 W. 83" Dr., Arvada, CO

The special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Leyden Rock
Metropolitan District was called and held as shown above and in
accordance with the applicable statutes of the State of Colorado. The
following directors, having confirmed their qualification to serve on
the Board, were in attendance:

Brett Vernon
Scott Plummer
Jeff Cunningham
Christian Ardita
Jen Langhals

Also present: Megan J. Murphy, Esq., White Bear Ankele Tanaka &
Waldron, District General Counsel; Katie Call and Christine Ahern,
AdvanceHOA, District Management; Angie Sherman, Keesen
Landscape; Lindsay Smith, Winzenburg, Leff, Purvis & Payne, LLP;
Katie Cooley, Ascent Land Development; and members of the
public.

It was noted that a quorum of the Board was present, and the
meeting was called to order.

Ms. Murphy advised the Board that, pursuant to Colorado law,
certain disclosures might be required prior to taking official action at
the meeting. Ms. Murphy reported that disclosures for those
directors with potential or existing conflicts of interest were filed
with the Secretary of State’s Office and the Board at least 72 hours
prior to the meeting, in accordance with Colorado law, and those
disclosures were acknowledged by the Board. Ms. Murphy noted
that a quorum was present and inquired into whether members of the
Board had any additional disclosures of potential or existing
conflicts of interest regarding any matters scheduled for discussion
at the meeting. No additional disclosures were noted.



Agenda

Consider Election of

Officers

Public Comment

Consent Agenda

Legal Matters

Discussion and Consider
Approval of Updates to
Section 3.38
Lights/Lighting Section in
the Amended and
Restated Residential
Improvement Guidelines
and Site Restrictions

Consider Adoption of
Resolution Adopting a
Digital Accessibility
Policy and Designating a
Compliance Officer

Discussion Regarding

Proposed Location of Cell
Phone Tower

1237.0006

The Board reviewed the agenda. Following discussion, upon a motion
duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously approved the agenda
as amended.

The Board engaged in general discussion regarding the Election of
Officers. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and
seconded, the Board elected Director Langhals as Assistant Secretary.

Mr. Hill inquired about why the Board did not proceed with the
installation of license plate readers at the community entrances.
Director Vernon noted the Board deferred the decision due to
unknown maintenance costs the Board is considering.

Ms. Jouflas inquired about the process for reviewing and maintaining
the Amended and Restated Residential Improvement Guidelines and
Site Restrictions. Mr. Vernon noted the Board would follow up with
Ms. Jouflas.

Following a summary by Ms. Murphy, the items on the consent
agenda were ratified, approved, or accepted in one motion duly made
and seconded and unanimously carried:

e Minutes from July 16%, 2024 Special Meeting;
e Minutes from July 16%, 2024 Annual Meeting

Ms. Smith engaged in discussion with the Board regarding the
Amended and Restated Residential Improvement Guidelines and Site
Restrictions. The Board provided Ms. Smith with direction regarding
updates and changes.

Ms. Murphy presented the Resolution Adopting a Digital Accessibility
Policy and Designating a Compliance Officer to the Board. Following
discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Board
unanimously adopted the resolution.

Ms. Murphy engaged in discussion with the Board regarding the
proposed location of the cell phone tower. Following discussion, upon
a motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously approved
the engagement of a surveyor to survey the area.



Other Legal Matters
Financial Matters

Consider Approval of
Payables/Financials

Other Financial Matters

Capital Projects
Discussion

Discussion and Approval
of Proposal for Design
Development and
Construction with The
Architerra Group

Discussion and Approval
of Preliminary Project
Schedule from The
Architerra Group

Other Capital Project
Matters

District Management
Matters

District Manager’s
Report

Discussion and Consider
Approval of 2024-2025
Snow Removal Services
with Keesen Landscape

Discussion and Consider
Approval of Keesen
Landscape Proposal for
Filing 3 Trail Restoration

Discussion and Consider

1237.0006

None.

Director Cunningham presented the Claims in the amount of
$23,643.83 to the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly
made and seconded the Board unanimously approved the claims.

None.

Ms. Cooley presented the proposal for Design and Development and
Construction with The Architerra Group to the Board. Following
discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the Board
unanimously approved the proposal.

Ms. Cooley presented the Preliminary Project Schedule to the Board.
Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the
Board unanimously approved the schedule.

The Board engaged in discussion regarding the September 3%
Capital Projects Meeting. The Board determined to cancel the
meeting.

Ms. Call presented the report to the Board.

Ms. Call presented the Keesen Proposal for Snow Removal Services
to the Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and
seconded, the Board unanimously approved the proposal.

Ms. Call presented the proposal for Filing 3 Trail Restoration to the
Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and
seconded, the Board unanimously approved the proposal.

Ms. Call presented the proposal for Filing 5 Trail Storm Restoration to the
Board. Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the



Approval of Keesen
Landscape Proposal for
Filing 5 Trail Storm
Restoration

Discussion and Consider
Approval of Various Bed
Cleanups and Plantings

Discussion and Consider
Approval of Fall Flowers
for $2,000

Discussion and Consider
Approval of Holiday
Lighting

Discussion and Consider
Approval of SDA

Conference Attendance

Other Management
Matters

Director’s Matters

Discussion Regarding
Temporary Irrigation on
W. 84 Trail

Other Director’s Matters

Other Business

1237.0006

Board unanimously approved the proposal.

Ms. Call engaged in discussion with the Board regarding the various
bed cleanups and plantings to the Board. Following discussion, upon
a motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously
approved.

Ms. Call engaged in discussion with the Board regarding Fall
Flowers in the amount of $2,000. Following discussion, upon a
motion duly made and seconded, the Board unanimously approved.

Ms. Call presented the proposal for Holiday Lighting to the Board.
Following discussion, upon a motion duly made and seconded, the
Board unanimously approved the proposal.

Ms. Call engaged in discussion with the Board regarding attendance
at the SDA Conference. Following discussion, upon a motion duly
made and seconded, the Board unanimously approved attendance.

None.

The Board engaged in discussion with Ms. Sherman regarding
temporary irrigation on W. 84™ Trail. The Board requested a
proposal from Keesen Landscape to be presented at the next
meeting.

Director Cunningham noted he will not be in attendance for the
September 17" meeting.

Director Vernon requested an update on new legislation affecting
metropolitan districts. Ms. Murphy answered Director Vernon’s

inquiry.

Director Plummer inquired about the September 3™ meeting to
discuss Jellyfish lighting.

None.



Executive Session - The
Board intends to enter
into executive session
pursuant to § 24-6-
402(4)(b), C.R.S., to
conference  with  an
attorney for the District
for the purpose of
receiving legal advice as
it relates to  the
Independent ~ Contractor
Agreement with Loft &
Blush Interiors, LLC.

Adjournment

1237.0006

Upon a motion duly made and seconded, followed by an affirmative
vote of at least two-thirds of the quorum present, the Board entered
into executive session at 8:40 p.m. for the purpose of receiving legal
advice as it relates to the Independent Contractor Agreement with
Loft & Blush Interiors, LLC pursuant to Section 24-6-402(4)(b),
C.R.S.

Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(IT)(B), C.R.S., no record will
be kept of the portion of this executive session that, in the opinion of
legal counsel to the District, constitutes privileged attorney-client
communication pursuant to Section 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S.

Also pursuant to Section 24-6-402(4), C.R.S., the Board did not
adopt any proposed policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation or
take formal action during executive session.

The Board reconvened in regular session at 9:12 p.m.
There being no further business to come before the Board and

following discussion and upon motion duly made, seconded, and
unanimously carried, the Board determined to adjourn the meeting.

The foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of the minutes of
the above-referenced meeting.

Secretary for the Meeting

The foregoing minutes were approved by the Board of Directors on
the 17" day of September, 2024.



ATTORNEY STATEMENT
REGARDING PRIVILEGED ATTORNEY-CLIENT COMMUNICATION

Pursuant to Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(IT)(B), C.R.S., I attest that, in my capacity as the attorney
representing Leyden Rock Metropolitan District, I attended the executive session at the special
meeting of Leyden Rock Metropolitan District convened at 8:40 p.m. on Tuesday, August 20,
2024 for the sole purpose of discussing the Independent Contractor Agreement with Loft &
Blush Interiors, LLC as authorized by Section 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S. I further attest it is my
opinion that all of the executive session discussion constituted a privileged attorney-client
communication as provided by Section 24-6-402(4)(b), C.R.S. and, based on that opinion, no
further record, written or electronic, was kept or required to be kept pursuant to Section 24-6-
402(2)(b), C.R.S. or Section 24-6-402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S.

Megan J. Murphy, Esq.

1237.0006



LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CONTRACT

Name of Contractor/Provider/Consultant: Tay’s Esthetics LLC d/b/a Taylor Rose Beauty
Title of Agreement/Contract: Hair Art Services on September 21, 2024 Fall Fest
Agreement/Contract Date: September 3, 2024

This Contract (“Agreement”) is made by and between Leyden Rock Metropolitan District, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”) and the above-referenced
contractor, provider, or other consultant (the “Contractor”).

Introduction. The District and the Contractor desire to enter into this Contract to be effective the date above.

1. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall perform the services set forth in Exhibit A (the
“Services”): (a) in a first-class manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using the degree of skill and knowledge
customarily employed by other professionals performing similar services; (b) within the time period specified
in the Agreement; (c) in such a manner as to minimize any annoyance, interference, or disruption to the residents,
tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District; and (d) in compliance with all applicable federal, state,
county, and local or municipal statutes, ordinances, and regulations.

2. Compensation of Services. Compensation for the Services provided under this Agreement shall
be provided in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. The Contractor shall
be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any
reimbursement or compensation except as provided herein, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved
in writing by the District in advance of incurring such expenses. Exhibit A may take any form. In the event of any
conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, the terms in the body
of this Agreement shall govern.

3. Repairs/Claims. The Contractor shall notify the District immediately, in writing, of any and all
incidents/accidents which result in injury or property damage. The Contractor will promptly repair or, at the
District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of any damage to District property caused by the Contractor
or its employees, agents, or equipment.

4. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing herein shall
constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees or agents as employees or agents of the District.
The Contractor is not entitled to workers’ compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits and the
District will not provide any insurance coverage or employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the
Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, contractors, agents, or representatives. The Contractor shall have
full power and authority to select the means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement,
without detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own employees or
subcontractors. The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained.

5. Warranty and Permits. The Contractor shall and does by this Agreement guarantee and warrant
that all workmanship, materials, and equipment furnished, installed, or performed for the accomplishment of the
Services (collectively, the “Work”) will be of good quality and new, unless otherwise required or permitted by
this Agreement. The Contractor further warrants that the Work will conform to all requirements of this
Agreement and the applicable building code and all other applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules, and
regulations of any governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work. The Contractor hereby warrants
the Work for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion and initial acceptance of the Work. The
Contractor will immediately correct or replace any Work that is defective or not conforming to this Agreement
at its sole expense to the reasonable satisfaction of the District. The Contractor’s guarantees and warranties shall
in all cases survive termination of this Agreement. This warranty shall be enforceable by the District, its
successors and assigns.

1237.4200



6. Contractor’s Insurance. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense,
during the entire term of the Agreement, the following insurance coverage: (i) Commercial General Liability
Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and
property damage liability; $1,000,000 Personal & Advertising Injury, and (ii) any other insurance commonly
used by contractors for services of the type to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. All coverage provided
pursuant to this Agreement shall be written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to
any coverage that the District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess.
The Commercial General Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed
to name the District as an additional insured. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not
serve to release it from any obligations; nor shall the purchase of the required insurance serve to limit the
Contractor’s liability. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies.

7. Indemnification. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants, from and against any and all
claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, lawsuits, damages, and expenses, including legal expenses and
attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or
any criminal or tortious act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or
employees. The Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District for the District’s own negligence. This
indemnification obligation will not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under worker’s compensation acts, disability acts, or
other employee benefit acts. Such indemnity shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. To
the extent the District is or may be obligated to indemnify, defend, or hold Contractor harmless under the terms
of the Agreement, any such indemnification obligation shall arise only to the extent permitted by applicable law
and shall be limited solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose in accordance with this Agreement.

8. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for cause or for convenience upon
fourteen (14) days’ prior written notice to the other party. If the Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be
paid for all Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including reimbursable
expenses due. Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business.

9. Governing Law / Disputes. This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising out of or
relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law of the State of Colorado,
without regard to conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the
State of Colorado. Venue for all actions shall be in the District Court in and for the county in which the District is
located.

10. Subject to Annual Appropriation and Budget. The District does not intend hereby to create a
multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever. The obligations of the District
under this Agreement is subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and the Contractor expressly understands
and agrees that the decision whether or not to budget and appropriate funds is within the discretion of District’s
governing body, and the obligations of the District shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of
this Agreement and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement or liability in any ensuing fiscal year
beyond the then-current fiscal year. The District and Contractor understand and intend that the District’s
obligation to make payments and pay other amounts due under the Agreement shall constitute a current expense
and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory
limitations or requirements.

11. Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or

otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available by law to the District,
its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any other person acting on behalf of the District

1237.4200



and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or available to the District pursuant to the §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., C.R.S.

12. Remedies. To the extent the Contractor’s remedies for a District default under the Agreement
include any right to accelerate amounts to become due under the Agreement, such acceleration shall be limited
solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose and shall further be limited to amounts to become due
during the District’s then-current fiscal period.

13. Negotiated Provisions. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one party
than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared by counsel for one of the
parties, it being acknowledged that each party has contributed substantially and materially to the preparation of
this Agreement.

14. Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion,
which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there
shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid, and enforceable.

15. Miscellaneous. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the matters addressed herein, and shall supersede all prior oral or written negotiations, understandings,
and commitments.

16. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of
which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be
deemed originals and binding upon the signatories hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original
for all purposes, including the rules of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

By the signature of its representative below, each party affirms that it has taken all necessary action to authorize
said representative to execute this Agreement.

District: Contractor:
By: Chriistian Erdi’ta\Sep 4,202408:19 MDT) By: Taylor%aitinez (Sep 4, 2024 09:43 MDT)
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
Taylor Martinez
3

1237.4200



Exhibit A
Scope of Services/Compensation Schedule

The contractor shall perform three hours of hair art services at community event on September
21,2024.

Contractor shall receive compensation in the amount of seven hundred and fifty dollars and no
cents ($750.00).

1237.4200



Colorado Special Districts
Property and Liabllity Pool

Independent Contractor Status Form

According to the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment a person Is an independent contractor if both
of the following statements are true,

¢ The person Is free from the business’ control and direction over how the service Is performed AND
¢ The person Is customarlly engaged In an Independent trade, occupation, profession or business
related to the service being performed.

If a person Is recognized as an Independent contractor they can elect to exempt themselves from Workers’
Compensation coverage. However If an Independent contractor has hired employees, the Independent
contractor Is responsible for providing Worker's Compensation Insurance for those employees. It Is important
for your district to verlfy Insurance coverage by requesting a certlificate of Insurance from the contractor’s
Insurance company. Notification of any changes In coverage may also he requested of the insurer. If the
contractor does not have Workers' Compensation Insurance for its employees throughout the duration of the
work belng done for the district, the district that hired the contractor can be held responsible for the Workers’
Compensatlon Insurance for the contractor’s employees.

We certify UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that: (Name and Trade Name) WE A,
performing {type of work) e )(\V\%

Federal Employer Identification Number: Q'L - \qum[)o\
Address:mwm_ﬁﬂwdﬂg CO BT

Is an Independent contractor {IC) and Is not an employee of the following district: Leyden Rock Metropolitan

District
Address:__~ Coverage i Phone:

1. The Independent Contractor Understands by signing this agreement that he/she:

o Wil not be entitled to any Workers’ Compensation benefits In the event of an Injury,
» s obligated to pay all federal and state Income tax on all money earned while performing services

for the distrlct,
Is regulred to provide Workers’ Compensation Insurance for all workers that he/she hires.

wl Jued 20y

' " Date

For more Miformat/on4egarding Independent Contractors please visit the Colorado Department of Labor &
’ Emplonent wehsite at UIw 0,co a




JuapIsald gOSY ‘ANL0g Keudemg s 707 ‘ST JaquiaaoN :3je( uonexidxy
/N 1702 ‘7 32quddd(] :99U1S JIqUIDIN [eA0]
qu.%&m& 1L6ZP¥] "ON QI Jaquidfy

"SI JO 9p0D JOSV =13 01 219YpE ANILNS PUE 19npuod [euoissajord Jo spiepue)s 1531y ) UTeuiEm
01 paxnbal a1 s19quow [y “Furuten uo paseq sjuawonmbar AqiSid 213190ds J09W SIQUIN [IAD] [BUOLSSIJOL]

"S[eUOISSaJOI ] 218)) UD[S PIIEId0sSY Jo Surpue)s poos Ul 1oquIawt [BUOISSaJold e S

ZIUT)IBA] JOJAR ]

TR} S9IJTHa0 ST,

S|BUOISS3J0Id B1BD) UG PB1RIDOSSY

45V

TSI T YT 5 " TEEET T




@ ASCP Certificate of Insurance

Assoclated Skin Care Professionals

OCCURRENCE COVERAGE
ASCP In-Dues Liability Program

MASTER POLICY IIOLDER

ASCP MAILING ADDRESS:

Associated Skin Care Professionals H 1

Rasos e S Allicd Professionals Insurance RPG

Suijte 200 AGENT/BROKER

Golden, CO 80401 i . .
Allied Professionals' Insurance Services
ISSUED BY:

POLICY #:  API-ASCP-23 Allicd Professionals Insurance Company, A

Risk Retention Group, Inc.

LIABILITY LIMITS (per member) ANNUAL AGGREGATE ....ccomeiirereiscenisiinsnsarnn rovas $6,000,000
PER OCCURRENCE LIMIT ..... §$2,000,000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
PRODUCTS-COMP/OP ........... Included
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY ..... . Included
GENERAL LIABILITY ..ocvceivinnenns Included
FIRE LIABILITY LIMIT it $100,000

To verify information, contact ASCP. Tel: 303-674-8478 Fax: 303-674-0859

our risk retention group. Your risk retention group may not be subject to all of the insurance laws and
State insurance insolvency guaranty funds are not available for your risk retention group. Coverage is

o the terms and conditions of the Policy to which this Certificate

ecifically stated

This Policy is issued by y
regulations of your State.
afforded to person(s) named herein as Named Insureds according t
refers, subject to limitation by any applicable state licensing laws. No other rights or conditions, except as sp

herein, are granted or inferred.

COVERAGES ,
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICY OF INSURANCE LISTED ABOVE HAS REEN ISSULD TO .

THE INSURED NAMED DELOW THE INSURED ACTIVE DATE LISTED BELOW APPLIES ONLY TO A DDITIONAL INSURED: (with inception date)
ELEMENTS OF COVERAGE CONTINUOUSLY N PLACE SINCE THE INCEPTION OF THE NAMED{
INSURED'S POLICY CHANGES TO COYERAGE ARE EFFECTIVE RETROACTIVELY ONLY TO THE

DATE THE CHANGE WAS MADE. REPORT IN WRITING WITIIN 48 HOURS ANY & ALL CLAIMS, Coverage is extended subfect to all terms and copditlons of the Palicy
OR INCIDENTS THAT YOU BELIEVE MAY RESULT IN A CLAIM, EVEN IF GROUNDLESS,

This Certlflcate, slong with the Pollcy fo nhich [ refers, ls yalld evldence of coverape extended to the
Certlfcate Hulder Usted belaw,

CERTIFICATE 1IOLDER

(Active Registered Members are on file with the AS CP Menibership Direcior.)
Member/Named Insured: Taylor Martinez

Membership 1.D. #: 144297]

Member/Policy Term Active; Nov-16-2023

Member/Policy Term Expires: Nov-15-2024

. ASCT Manbenship, includi
Total Member Cost: § 259 T e oy

Puh KX

Authorized Representative

CANCELLATION: Should any of the sbove deseribed policics be eancelied belore the
expiratlon date thereof, the lssuing company will endeavor to mail 10 days wrilten notice for
non-paymenl or 90 days writien notice for any other reason to the certiflcats hotder pamed .-
above, but failure 1o mail such nolice shall Imposc o obligation or liability of any kind upon the

tompany, its ngents or representatives.




Fom W'g

(Rev. October 2018)
Depariment of the Treasury
Internal Revenua Senvico

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certlfication

» Go to www./rs.gov/FormWp for Inatruotions and the lateat Information,

Qlva Form to the
raquestoer, Do not
send to the IRS.

1 Nama (85 shown on your lncome tax return), Namo Is required on ihis ino; da not loava thia line blank,

following saven boxes,

Individual/sote propriotor or Oec Corporation Os Corporation

slngle-member LLC

[ other (sea Instructions) >

8 Check npaopdalo box for fadernl tax classification of tho p‘e-r—son whoso nama la antered on line 1, Chock only one of the

D Umited ltablty company. Enter tho tax classification (C=C corporation, S=8 corporalion, P=Partnership) >
Note: Chack tha appropriata box [n tho line above for tho tax classification of the single-mamber owner, Do not check
LLC it the LLC Is classifled na a singla-membaor LLC that |a disregarded from the owner unloss the owner of tha LLC |
another LLC thal Ia not disregarded from the owner for U.S, federal lax purposes. Otherwise, o single-member LLG that
Ia disregarded from the owner ahould check the appropriale box for tho tax classification of lla ewner,

4 Exgmptlons (codoa apply only to
certaln onthies, not Individuals; see
inatruciions on page 3):

D Partnorship D Trust/eslalo

Exempt payeo coda (if any)

Exemplion from FATCA reporiing
codo (if any)

Apples lo sccrunts maintaned outside Pe U 1)

§ Address (number, street, and opt. or suila no.) See Instructions.

A0AR W @lth P e .

Print or type.
See Specific Instructions on page 3.

Requaster's name and address (optional)

6 City, stato, and ZIP coda
2000%
(optional)

ﬁ Taxpayer identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must malch the name given on line 1 to avold
backup withholding. For Individuals, this Is generally your soclal security number (SSN). However, for a
resident allen, sole proprietor, or disregarded antity, ses the instructions for Part |, later. For other - -
entlties, it Is your employer [dentiicatlon number (EiN). If you do not have a number, see How to geta

TiN, later,

Nota: If the account Is In more than one name, sea the Instructlons for line 1, Also see What Name and

Number To Give the Requester for gulde!ines on whose numbor to enter,

Soclal sscurity number

or
Employer identilication number

A7 -\ O FHA0 A

Part ti Cenrtification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form Is my comect taxpayer Identification number (or | am walting for a number to be Issued to me); and
2.1 am not subject lo backup withholding because: (s} | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Intemal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a'result of a fallure to report all Interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notifled ma that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3.1am e U.S. citlzen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4, The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting Is comecL.

Certification Instructions, You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notifled by tha IRS that you are currantly subject to backup withholding because
you hava falled to report all Interest and dividends on your lax retum, For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For morigage interest pald,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
othar than interest and dividends, Wol required to sign tha cerlification, but you must provide your comect TIN. Sea the Instructions for Part II, later,

A

Sign
Here

Signature of
U.S, pers

R L\
General Instructions

Section references are to the Intefnal Hevenue Code unless othenfise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest Informatlon about develo ts
related to Form W-9 and lts instructlons, such as leglsiation enacled
alter they were published, go to www./rs.gov/FormWg.

Purpose of Form

An Individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who Is required to file en
Information retum with the IRS must obtaln your correct taxpayer
Identification number (TIN) which may be your soclal security number
(SSN), Indlvidual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer Identification number (ATIN), or employer Identification number
(EIN), to report on an Information return the amount pald to you, or other
amount reportable on an Information retum, Examples of information
retums Include, but are not limited to, the following.

» Form 1099-INT (Intérest earned or pald)

W\JM Date > SU‘(\e 2(\‘ 7/07}’\

; anr 1099-DIV (dividends, Including those from stocks or mutual
unds|

* Form 1096-MISC (various lypes of Income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

» Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certaln other
transactions by brokers)

* Form 1089-8 (proceeds from real estate transactions)
* Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

* Form 1098 (home mortgage Interest), 1088-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tultion)

* Form 1099-G (canceled debt)
* Form 1098-A (acqulsition or abandonment of sacured property)

Use Form W-8 only If you are a U.S. person (including a resldent
allen), to provide your correct TIN, - :

I you do not retum Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might

,127 subject to backup withholding. See What Is backup withholding, -
or,

Cal, No, 10231X

Fotmw-Q (Rev, 10-2018)




Signature: =5«
Christian Ardita (Sep 4, 2024 06:43 MDT)

Email; christianardital@gmail.com



LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CONTRACT

Name of Contractor/Provider/Consultant: Sherri MacLean d/b/a Fantastic Facepainting
Title of Agreement/Contract: Glitter Tattoo and Stilt Walker Services for September 21, 2024
Agreement/Contract Date: September 3, 2024

This Contract (“Agreement”) is made by and between Leyden Rock Metropolitan District, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”) and the above-referenced
contractor, provider, or other consultant (the “Contractor”).

Introduction. The District and the Contractor desire to enter into this Contract to be effective the date above.

1. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall perform the services set forth in Exhibit A (the
“Services”): (a) in a first-class manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using the degree of skill and knowledge
customarily employed by other professionals performing similar services; (b) within the time period specified
in the Agreement; (c) in such a manner as to minimize any annoyance, interference, or disruption to the residents,
tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District; and (d) in compliance with all applicable federal, state,
county, and local or municipal statutes, ordinances, and regulations.

2. Compensation of Services. Compensation for the Services provided under this Agreement shall
be provided in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. The Contractor shall
be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any
reimbursement or compensation except as provided herein, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved
in writing by the District in advance of incurring such expenses. Exhibit A may take any form. In the event of any
conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, the terms in the body
of this Agreement shall govern.

3. Repairs/Claims. The Contractor shall notify the District immediately, in writing, of any and all
incidents/accidents which result in injury or property damage. The Contractor will promptly repair or, at the
District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of any damage to District property caused by the Contractor
or its employees, agents, or equipment.

4. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing herein shall
constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees or agents as employees or agents of the District.
The Contractor is not entitled to workers’ compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits and the
District will not provide any insurance coverage or employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the
Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, contractors, agents, or representatives. The Contractor shall have
full power and authority to select the means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement,
without detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own employees or
subcontractors. The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained.

5. Warranty and Permits. The Contractor shall and does by this Agreement guarantee and warrant
that all workmanship, materials, and equipment furnished, installed, or performed for the accomplishment of the
Services (collectively, the “Work”) will be of good quality and new, unless otherwise required or permitted by
this Agreement. The Contractor further warrants that the Work will conform to all requirements of this
Agreement and the applicable building code and all other applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules, and
regulations of any governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work. The Contractor hereby warrants
the Work for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion and initial acceptance of the Work. The
Contractor will immediately correct or replace any Work that is defective or not conforming to this Agreement
at its sole expense to the reasonable satisfaction of the District. The Contractor’s guarantees and warranties shall
in all cases survive termination of this Agreement. This warranty shall be enforceable by the District, its
successors and assigns.

1237.4200



6. Contractor’s Insurance. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense,
during the entire term of the Agreement, the following insurance coverage: (i) Commercial General Liability
Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and
property damage liability; $1,000,000 Personal & Advertising Injury, and (ii) any other insurance commonly
used by contractors for services of the type to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. All coverage provided
pursuant to this Agreement shall be written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to
any coverage that the District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess.
The Commercial General Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed
to name the District as an additional insured. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not
serve to release it from any obligations; nor shall the purchase of the required insurance serve to limit the
Contractor’s liability. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies.

7. Indemnification. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants, from and against any and all
claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, lawsuits, damages, and expenses, including legal expenses and
attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or
any criminal or tortious act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or
employees. The Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District for the District’s own negligence. This
indemnification obligation will not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under worker’s compensation acts, disability acts, or
other employee benefit acts. Such indemnity shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. To
the extent the District is or may be obligated to indemnify, defend, or hold Contractor harmless under the terms
of the Agreement, any such indemnification obligation shall arise only to the extent permitted by applicable law
and shall be limited solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose in accordance with this Agreement.

8. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for cause or for convenience upon
fourteen (14) days’ prior written notice to the other party. If the Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be
paid for all Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including reimbursable
expenses due. Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business.

9. Governing Law / Disputes. This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising out of or
relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law of the State of Colorado,
without regard to conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the
State of Colorado. Venue for all actions shall be in the District Court in and for the county in which the District is
located.

10. Subject to Annual Appropriation and Budget. The District does not intend hereby to create a
multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever. The obligations of the District
under this Agreement is subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and the Contractor expressly understands
and agrees that the decision whether or not to budget and appropriate funds is within the discretion of District’s
governing body, and the obligations of the District shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of
this Agreement and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement or liability in any ensuing fiscal year
beyond the then-current fiscal year. The District and Contractor understand and intend that the District’s
obligation to make payments and pay other amounts due under the Agreement shall constitute a current expense
and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory
limitations or requirements.

11. Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or
otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available by law to the District,
its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any other person acting on behalf of the District

1237.4200



and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or available to the District pursuant to the §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., C.R.S.

12. Remedies. To the extent the Contractor’s remedies for a District default under the Agreement
include any right to accelerate amounts to become due under the Agreement, such acceleration shall be limited
solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose and shall further be limited to amounts to become due
during the District’s then-current fiscal period.

13. Negotiated Provisions. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one party
than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared by counsel for one of the
parties, it being acknowledged that each party has contributed substantially and materially to the preparation of
this Agreement.

14. Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion,
which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there
shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid, and enforceable.

15. Miscellaneous. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the matters addressed herein, and shall supersede all prior oral or written negotiations, understandings,
and commitments.

16. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of
which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be
deemed originals and binding upon the signatories hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original
for all purposes, including the rules of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

By the signature of its representative below, each party affirms that it has taken all necessary action to authorize
said representative to execute this Agreement.

District: Contractor:
Sherri Maclean
By: Christian Ardita (Sep 4, 2024 06:44 MDT) Y. Sherri MacLean (Sep 4, 2024 13:39 MDT)
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
3

1237.4200



Exhibit A
Scope of Services/Compensation Schedule

1237.4200



09212024i_ChristineAhern_FF

1of2

FANTASTIC FACEPAINTING

"Where our #1 goal is to help make your event a
great success!

We serve: ¢ All throughout « CO ¢ info@fantastic-face painting.com
Tel: (303) 910-8817 ¢ Fax: « http://www.Fantastic-Face painting.com

Invoice for Services

Invoice Date: August 10, 2024 Invoice No.: 1802
Client: Event Info & Venue:
Christine Ahern Sep 21, 2024 - Saturday, 11:00am to 2:00pm
17685 W 83rd Drive Arvada, CO, 80007 Leyden Rock Metro District
Tel: 17685 W 83rd Drive Arvada, CO, 80007
Email: christine.ahern@advancehoa.com (720) 765-4668
Services:
Item Rate
1 Professional Glitter Tattoo Artist $450.00

Artist: Heather
Offering a selection of glitter tattoos for both boys and girls.

1 Professional Glitter Tattoo Artist $450.00
Artist: Vin
Offering a selection of glitter tattoos for both boys and girls.

Professional, Insured Stilt Walker $550.00

Artist: Gina
Working 2 hours from 11:30-1:30pm (2 hours)

Facepainter and Glitter Tattoo Artist are working from: 11-2pm
Stilt Walter is working from 11:30-1:30pm
Do you want adults to be painted to? Yes, only if there is time.

What other artists will be at your event? (We ask this so there is no conflict with design choices for line
management).: Fantastic Facepainting is the only entertainment we are hiring for our event.

Tipping: Fantastic Facepainting will pay the artist directly, feel free to tip directly at the event if you choose
to. :) Yes, it is okay for the artist to put out a tip jar.

Entertainment Start Time: 11apm-2pm (3 hours)
Event Name: Leyden Rock Fall Fest & Living Stone Lutheran Church

If your event is taking place in a park, please provide us with the exact name of the park and pavilion to
ensure accurate directions for artist. n/a

Event Location - Shade coverage and table provided by client.:The event will be at our business (outside)
with a table and SECURED, level tent coverage provided by the client for the artist(s).

Payment choice: Check (Made out to Fantastic Facepainting), due 3 days before the event.
Event Street Address: 17685 W 83rd, Arvada, CO

Is your event indoors or outdoors?outdoors

Ages of Kids Attending (age range okay): All

If your event is outdoors and the temperature drops below 57 degrees, will you be able to put the artist
indoors, in a heated building?yes

Lighting Options: No, our event is during the day and there is plenty of light.

https://www.managersal.com/ms.php?ft=Docs&crd=SB8P5156P0G2]J...

9/3/2024, 11:34 AM



09212024i_ChristineAhern_FF https://www.managersal.com/ms.php?ft=Docs&crd=SB8P5156P0G2]J...

Will this event be attended by: Mix of both boys and girls.
Special Instructions for Parking: Please park along side streets

Please ask any questions here. Once we receive your form, we will email your invoice link. :)n/a

Amount Due:

Total: $1,450.00

Terms

e Balance is due by Sep 21, 2024
¢ Please make all checks payable to "Fantastic Facepainting".

If you have any questions or need any additional information, please contact us at (303) 910-8817 or
info@fantastic-facepainting.com.

Thank you for letting us entertain you!

ID: 1802

2 of 2 9/3/2024, 11:34 AM



Colorado Special Districts
Property and Liabllity Pool

Independent Contractor Status Form

According to the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment a person is an Independent contractor if both
of the following statements are true.

o The person s free from the business’ control and direction over how the service Is performed AND
o The person is customarily engaged in an independent trade, occupation, professlon or business
related to the service belng performed.

If a person Is recognized as an independent contractor they can elect to exempt themselves from Workers’
Compensatlon coverage. However if an independent contractor has hired employees, the independent
contractor Is responsible for providing Worker's Compensatlon insurance for those employees, It is Important
for your district to verlfy Insurance coverage by requesting a certificate of Insurance from the contractor's
Insurance company. Notification of any changes in coverage may also be requested of the insurer. If the
contractor does not have Workers’ Compensation Insurance for its employees throughout the duration of the
worlk being done for the district, the district that hired the contractor can be held responsible for the Workers’

Compensatlon insurance for the contractor’s employees. ,
She 1 dMac kean
We certify UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that: (Name and Trade Name) P{)JH‘QS’{’!'C, Pamn aanh I’Yd

performing (type of work) Projessicnal Jaepaunting , balloon twish mf 3\(Hf=f FoHos
Federal Employer Identification Number: 42-1721400 C@nrnq‘ﬂ\ﬁ‘s, Hef’ma/
address: 8 35 W, l&7db} Llace, Poompeld, 0 ROORO

Is an Independent contractor (Ic) and is not an employee of the following district: Leyden Rock Metropolitan

District
Address: | 7085 \)\)_%5&} D¢, coverage i Phone:
ArNada, CO B0OOTF

1, The Independent Contractor Understands by slgning this agreement that he/she:

« Wil not be entitied to any Workers' Compensation benefits in the event of aninjury,
» |5 obligated to pay all federal and state Income tax on all money earned while performing services

r the distrlct, .
required to provide W tkers"

( M{qu@[\ k/ e, ¥ 0083

Signatur oflndepend@ntr ctor Date

For more Inforimation regarding Independent Contractors please visit/the Colorado Department of Labor &
Employment webslte at http://www,coworkforce.com/dwe/whatis/EmployerWhatls.asp

onjpensatlon insurance for al kers that he/she hires.




™ o
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 202024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the
terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER SSNIACT  BWI Program Support
Veracity Insurance Solutions, LLC. | N, exy; (877) 536-7290 | F% oy 801-763-1374
260 South 2500 West, Suite 303 EMAL 5. info@insurebodywork.com
Pleasant Grove ut 84062 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
wsurera: Creat American Alliance Insurance Company 26832
INSURED INSURER B :
Sherri MacLean, DBA Fantastic Facepainting INSURER C :
4835 W, 127th Place INSURER D :
Broomfield CO 80020 INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IL{TSRR ADDLTSUBR] POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE SR wvp POLICY NUMBER (MIBOYYYY) | (MWDBYYYY) LIRITS
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENGE s 2,000,000
X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY rxﬁ [—- PREMISES (Ea oecurrence) | $ 300,000
X7 cLams-mADE OCCUR ! MED EXP (Any one person) | § 5,000
A PLES74344-BWI502614  {06/12/2024 | 06/12/2025 orrcrnar & ADv iNIURY | S INCLUDED
— GENERAL AGGREGATE s 3,000,000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 3,000,000
X {eouey]| |5E% 1 lioc ANIMAL BAILEE s
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY ’_ ! ;_ D s
ANY AUTO - ) BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
AUrOEMED | aGree-Ee BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| §
NON-OWNED PROPER G
|...| HIRED AUTOS AUTOS FROPERTY DANAGE s
| H
UMBRELLA LIAB | occur | ! ‘ EACH OCCURRENCE s
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
oep | | revenTions s
WORKERS COMPENSATION WC STATU- OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN lTORY hids| |
ANY PROPRIETDRIPARTNER/EXECUTIVE l_ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT s
OFFICE/MEMBER EXCLUDED? NIA
(Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
ibe
B e e RATIONS belaw E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | §
A | Professional Liability [xIf PLES74344-BWI502614  |06/12/2024 | 06/12/2025| INCLUDED

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOGATIONS / VEHICLES (Atiach ACORD 101, Additional Remark: If more space Is
Itis understood and agreed that the Certificate Holder is named as Addmonal Insured per attached CG 20 26 (Ed. 04 13) - Additional Insured - Designated
Person or Organization subject fo all policy terms, conditions, and exclusions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
. SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Leyden Rock Management District THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
8360 E. Via de Ventura Bivd. ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,
L~100
Scottsdale, AZ 85258 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. Alirights reserved,

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
INS025 (201401)




o W=0

(Rev, October 2018)

Departmant of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
ldentification Number and Certification

P Go to www.lrs.gov/FormWo for instructions and the latest Informatian.

Glve Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the RS,

Sherrl MacLean

1 Name (as shown on yaur Income {ax tolutn), Name ls required on this line; do not loave this line blank,

2 Business name/disregarded enlity name, If different from ohove
Fantastic Facepainting

following seven boxaes,

single-membar LLC

7] Other {see Instructions) ¥

Individual/sale propriator or Oe Gorporallon Os Corporation

[ Limited liabliity company, Enter tha tax classiflcatlon (C=C corperation, =S oorporation, P=Parinership) >
Note: Gheck the appropriate box In the line abova for the tax classification of the singls-membar owner, Do hot check | Exernption from FATCA reporting
LLC If the LLG Is classlfied as a single-member LLC that Is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLG Is
another LLG that Is not dlsregarded from the owner for U,S, federnl tax purposes, Otherwlse, a single-mambsr LLG that
Is disregarded from the owner should chack the approprlate box for the ax classificallon of ils owner,

3 Chack approprials box for {adaral {ax classlilcallon of tha peraon whose hamme ln snterad on ine 1, Chack only ane of the | 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to

cerlain antillas, nol Individuals; sea
Instructions on page 3);

O Parlnership [ Trust/estate

Exempt paysa code (If any)

coda (if any)

{Apphas lo 1ccanls mantainad culxds tha U.S.)

5 Address (number, street, and apt, or sulte no,} Saa Instructions,

4835 W. 127th Place

Raquester's name and addrass (optional)

Print or type.
See Specific Instructions on page 3.

6 City, state, and ZIP code
Broomfield, CO 80020

7 Ust account number(s) here (optional)

I[EZEZQE  Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN In the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name glven on line 1 to aveld
backup withholding. For Individuals, this is generally your soclal security number (SSN), However, for a
resldent allen, sole proprietor, or disregarded entily, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other -~
entltles, it Is your employer {dentification humber (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a

TIN, later,

Note: If the account Is in more than one name, see the Instructions for iine 1. Also see What Name and

Number To Give the Requsster for guldelines on whose number to enter,

Soclal sseurity number

ar
Employer identification number

412 -1 117(2(114]0}0

[0  Certification

Under penalties of perjury, [ certify that:

1, The numbar shown on this form s my carrect taxpayer [dentification number (or | am walting for a number to be issued to me}; and
2, | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup witbholding, ar {b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a resuit of a fafure to report all Interest or dividends, or () the IRS has nolifiad me that | am

no longer sublect to backup withholding; and
3.1ama U.S, citizen or other U.8. person {defined below); and

4, The FATCA codae{s) entered on tpls form (If any) Indioating that | am exempt fram FATGA reporting Is correct,

Centification instructions. Yo s| cross out item 2 above If youfiave baer/hotified by the IRS that you are currently sublect to backup withholding because
you have falled ta repor! all intérestyand dividends an your tax retun. For kesd estalg transactions, ltem 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment ofsecdred property, cancallation of dek, contfibutions to an Individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments

other than interes! and dividen g{\y i are not required 10,§Ign the ce i(lca}

on, bul you must provide your correct TIN., See the Instructions for Part |, Jater.

e Lozt ()] Ll e ™ean e 1190613023

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Rgvanue Code unfhgs otherwise
noled.

Future developments. For the latest Informatlon about developments
relatad to Form W-9 and its Instructions, such as laglslation enacled
after they werse published, go to www.frs.gov/FormWg.

Purpose of Form

An individual or antity (Form W-9 requester) wha Is requlred to fila an
Information retum with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your soclal securlty numhber
(SSN), individual taxpayer Identification number (TIN), adoption
taxpayer Identification number (ATIN), or employer Identification number
(EIN), to report on an infarmation return the arnaunt paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an nformation retumn, Examples aof Information
returns Include, but are not limited to, the following.

» Form 1099-INT (interest earned ar pald)

* Form 1088-DIV {dividends, incl§ding thos from stocks or mutual
funds)

* Form 1099-MISC {varlous types of Income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceads)

« Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certaln other
\ransactions by brokers)

» Farm 1098-S {proceeds from real estate transaotions)
» Form 1099-K {merchant card and third party network transaotions)

* Form 1088 {home morigage Interest), 1098-E (student loan Interest),
1088-T {tultion)

* Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
+» Form 1089-A (acquisltion or abandonmant of secured property)

Use Form W-8 only If you are a U8, person (ncluding a resident
allen), to provide your correct TIN,

If you do not relurn Form W-9 to the raquestar with a TIN, you might
ba subjact {o backup withholding. Sae What Is backup withholding,
later,

Gal, No, 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)




LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CONTRACT

Name of Contractor/Provider/Consultant: Midland Marketing, Inc. d/b/a Fun Services Inc.
Title of Agreement/Contract: Event Rental Services for September 21, 2024
Agreement/Contract Date: September 5, 2024

This Contract (“Agreement”) is made by and between Leyden Rock Metropolitan District, a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”) and the above-referenced
contractor, provider, or other consultant (the “Contractor”).

Introduction. The District and the Contractor desire to enter into this Contract to be effective the date above.

1. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall perform the services set forth in Exhibit A (the
“Services”): (a) in a first-class manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using the degree of skill and knowledge
customarily employed by other professionals performing similar services; (b) within the time period specified
in the Agreement; (c) in such a manner as to minimize any annoyance, interference, or disruption to the residents,
tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District; and (d) in compliance with all applicable federal, state,
county, and local or municipal statutes, ordinances, and regulations.

2. Compensation of Services. Compensation for the Services provided under this Agreement shall
be provided in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. The Contractor shall
be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement and shall not be entitled to any
reimbursement or compensation except as provided herein, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved
in writing by the District in advance of incurring such expenses. Exhibit A may take any form. In the event of any
conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, the terms in the body
of this Agreement shall govern.

3. Repairs/Claims. The Contractor shall notify the District immediately, in writing, of any and all
incidents/accidents which result in injury or property damage. The Contractor will promptly repair or, at the
District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of any damage to District property caused by the Contractor
or its employees, agents, or equipment.

4. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is an independent contractor and nothing herein shall
constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees or agents as employees or agents of the District.
The Contractor is not entitled to workers’ compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits and the
District will not provide any insurance coverage or employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the
Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants, contractors, agents, or representatives. The Contractor shall have
full power and authority to select the means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement,
without detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own employees or
subcontractors. The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained.

5. Warranty and Permits. The Contractor shall and does by this Agreement guarantee and warrant
that all workmanship, materials, and equipment furnished, installed, or performed for the accomplishment of the
Services (collectively, the “Work”) will be of good quality and new, unless otherwise required or permitted by
this Agreement. The Contractor further warrants that the Work will conform to all requirements of this
Agreement and the applicable building code and all other applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules, and
regulations of any governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work. The Contractor hereby warrants
the Work for a period of one (1) year from the date of completion and initial acceptance of the Work. The
Contractor will immediately correct or replace any Work that is defective or not conforming to this Agreement
at its sole expense to the reasonable satisfaction of the District. The Contractor’s guarantees and warranties shall
in all cases survive termination of this Agreement. This warranty shall be enforceable by the District, its
successors and assigns.

1237.4200



6. Contractor’s Insurance. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense,
during the entire term of the Agreement, the following insurance coverage: (i) Commercial General Liability
Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and
property damage liability; $1,000,000 Personal & Advertising Injury, and (ii) any other insurance commonly
used by contractors for services of the type to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. All coverage provided
pursuant to this Agreement shall be written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to
any coverage that the District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess.
The Commercial General Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed
to name the District as an additional insured. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not
serve to release it from any obligations; nor shall the purchase of the required insurance serve to limit the
Contractor’s liability. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies.

7. Indemnification. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants, from and against any and all
claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, lawsuits, damages, and expenses, including legal expenses and
attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or
any criminal or tortious act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or
employees. The Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District for the District’s own negligence. This
indemnification obligation will not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under worker’s compensation acts, disability acts, or
other employee benefit acts. Such indemnity shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. To
the extent the District is or may be obligated to indemnify, defend, or hold Contractor harmless under the terms
of the Agreement, any such indemnification obligation shall arise only to the extent permitted by applicable law
and shall be limited solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose in accordance with this Agreement.

8. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party for cause or for convenience upon
fourteen (14) days’ prior written notice to the other party. If the Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be
paid for all Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including reimbursable
expenses due. Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business.

9. Governing Law / Disputes. This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising out of or
relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law of the State of Colorado,
without regard to conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the
State of Colorado. Venue for all actions shall be in the District Court in and for the county in which the District is
located.

10. Subject to Annual Appropriation and Budget. The District does not intend hereby to create a
multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever. The obligations of the District
under this Agreement is subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and the Contractor expressly understands
and agrees that the decision whether or not to budget and appropriate funds is within the discretion of District’s
governing body, and the obligations of the District shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of
this Agreement and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement or liability in any ensuing fiscal year
beyond the then-current fiscal year. The District and Contractor understand and intend that the District’s
obligation to make payments and pay other amounts due under the Agreement shall constitute a current expense
and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory
limitations or requirements.

11. Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or
otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available by law to the District,
its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any other person acting on behalf of the District

1237.4200



and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or available to the District pursuant to the §§ 24-10-101, et
seg., C.R.S.

12. Remedies. To the extent the Contractor’s remedies for a District default under the Agreement
include any right to accelerate amounts to become due under the Agreement, such acceleration shall be limited
solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose and shall further be limited to amounts to become due
during the District’s then-current fiscal period.

13. Negotiated Provisions. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one party
than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared by counsel for one of the
parties, it being acknowledged that each party has contributed substantially and materially to the preparation of
this Agreement.

14. Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion,
which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there
shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid, and enforceable.

15. Miscellaneous. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the matters addressed herein, and shall supersede all prior oral or written negotiations, understandings,
and commitments.

16. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of
which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be
deemed originals and binding upon the signatories hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original
for all purposes, including the rules of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

By the signature of its representative below, each party affirms that it has taken all necessary action to authorize
said representative to execute this Agreement.

District: Contractor:
By: By:
Name: Name:
Title: Title:
3

1237.4200



Exhibit A
Scope of Services/Compensation Schedule

1237.4200



AGREEMENT

12345 Huron Street SPECIAL EVENT HOURS
Westminster, CO 80234 Monday-Saturday 8:00-5:00

(303) 427-7443
www.funservicescolorado.com

ResID for Fun Services, Inc Office 69730

Customer/Organization ADVANCE HOA LEYDEN ROCK MET  Res Date 8/12/2024

Address 17685 W 83RD DR Phone (720) 765-4668
City, State and Zip ARVADA, CO 80007- Fax
Other
Chairperson/Contact CHRISTINE AHERN Co-Chairperson/Contact2
Address: Address
City, State and Zip ,CO City, State and Zip , CO
Home Home
Work Work
Fax Cell (720) 765-4668 Fax Cell Cell2
eMail christine.ahern@advancehoa.com eMail
Event Start Date Saturday, September 21, 2024 Event Start Time
Event End Date Saturday, September 21, 2024 Event End Time
Event Location 17685 W 83RD DR CLUBHOUSE Arvada
Est Attendance Representative Lisa
FS DELIVERY: 9/21/2024 7AM-9AM FS PICKUP: 9/21/2024 AFTER 2PM
Description Comment Charge Taxable Unit QTY Days Amt
/Hrs
20x20 FREE STANDING CANOPY w/ se Parking Lot setup $625.00 Y DAY 1 1 $625.00
6' TABLES 6 seating / 4 games $12.00 Y EACH 10 1 $120.00
CHAIRS- TAN $1.95 Y EACH 36 1 $70.20
SETUP FEE tables & chairs $56.00 N EACH 1 1 $56.00
MIDWAY GAME & 8 HINGE BOOTH no prizes $105.00 Y EACH 4 1 $420.00
ANTI GRAVITY T $0.00 Y 1 1 $0.00
CAN SMASH T $0.00 Y 1 1 $0.00
HOLE IN ONE T $0.00 Y 1 1 $0.00
ROLLER BOWLER T $0.00 Y 1 1 $0.00
Prize Program
Event Comments EVENT RUNS 11AM-2PM
Special Instructions
CUSTOMER WILL PROVIDE Deposit Amt: $0.00 | Delivery $120.00
Adults for setup: Deposit DatedD.ue: 8/17/2024 Service Fee $64.56
Adults for take down: gzranA(;net;f; ' 'Sl'gl'(l?:l_TaDXUE [ $7$0.(£
. : 1,475.76
Booth workers: Cancellation Fee: $0.00
Tables for games:

Itemsreturned late are subject to additional cost per day.
Terms of payment:  PAY BY CHECK AT
DELIVERY / NO DEPOSITS

Customer



A 11/2% per month service charge will be added to the unpaid balance

SALES TAX INFORMATION
Organizations exempt from paying sales tax in Colorado will have been issued a Certificate of Exemption from the Colorado
Department of Revenue, along with a seven digit number that begins with "98-". If the organization elects to provide Fun Services
with their tax-exempt number, no sales tax will be charged and the organization agrees to be responsible for collecting and remitting
any applicable sales or use tax.

Tax Exempt# 98006083 or Resale License#

RELEASE OF FUN SERVICES, INC.

The Lessee shall control the operation of the rented item(s). Fun Services, Inc. is not responsible for any injuries occurring to Lessee or
to any persons using the rented item(s). Lessee agrees to pay for any damage to or loss of the rented item(s). Lessee further agrees to
indemnify Fun Services, Inc. harmless from any injuries and costs incurred arising from claims or demands by third parties arising from
the use or misuse of the rented item(s).

CANCELLATION POLICY FOR RENTAL ITEMS

Cancellations must be made at least 3 days in advance of scheduled delivery or pick up date. ALL cancellations will be charged the full
invoice amount of the order if received less than 3 days prior to delivery or pick up date. In the event of a cancellation prior to 3 days of
scheduled pick up or delivery, it is the responsibility of the Lessee to notify the Rental Department at Fun Services and receive a
cancellation code in order to not be charged the full reservation amount.

RENTAL POLICIES

A major credit card is required for all rentals and rental reservations. A 50% deposit is required at the time of booking for events
delivered or staffed by Fun Services. Remaining balances are charged the week of customer pickup or Fun Services delivery. Rental
charges are based on items delivered/picked-up from our warehouse. No credit will be given on unused supplies or rental items.

X

SIGNATURE REQUIRED DATE FUN SERVICES, INC. REP DATE
ADVANCE HOA LEYDEN ROCK METRO DISTRICT 9/21/2024

My signature indicates that | have read and agree to all the above terms and conditions of this agreement.

Customer



ACORD’ DATE (MM/DDIYYYY)
\ ’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

5/16/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: [f the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER SR,Q‘.E{‘CT Hannah Burford
IMA Select LLC PHONE FAX
1705 17th Street (AVG, No. Ext 303-615-7529 (AIC, No:
Suite 100 ADDREss: hannah.burford@imacorp.com
Denver CO 80202 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
Licensef: PC-1115916} INSURER A ; The Cincinnati Specialty Underwriters Insurance Co 13037
INSURED MIDLMAR-01| | suRrER B: Owners Insurance Compan 32700
Midland Marketing, Inc. dba Fun Services Inc. - pany
Best Sign Works, Inc. INSURER ¢ : *Pinnacol Assurance 41190
12345 Huron St INSURER D :
Westminster CO 80234 INSURER E !
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 141555381 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDLISUBR| POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DDIYYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
A | X | COMMERGIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CSU0165544 4/1/2024 4172026 | EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrencey | $ 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $ 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
X poucy| |58 [ ]ioc PRODUGTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
B | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 5516366100 4/1/2024 41112026 | (&3 accident) $1,000,000
X | ANY AUTO . BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
OWNED SCHEDULED .
D ALY - SCHED BODILY INJURY (Per accident)|
X | HIRED X | NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
|2 | AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident)
$
UMBRELLALIAB OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED I | RETENTION$ $
C |WORKERS COMPENSATION 4200574 41172024 | 412025 X [ BER o
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN Strure | [ X
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE [ E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 1,000,000
OFFICERIMEMBEREXCLUDED? . NIA
{Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $ 1,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $ 1,000,000
B | Hired Car Physical Damage 5516366100 4/1/2024 4/1/2025 See Below
B | Business Personal Property 74163661 4/1/2024 4/1/2025 | See Below

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Hired Car Physical Damage: Comprehensive Deductible $100; Collision Deductible $250; Actual Cash Value not to exceed $200,000.

Business Personal Property Limit $989,050; Deductible $2,500; Replacement Cost; Special Form (Including theft).

Certificate Holder and all other parties required by the contract are included as Additional Insured on the General Liability and Automobile Liability Policies, if
required by written contract or agreement, subject to the policy terms and conditions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.,

Advance HOA Leyden Rock Metro District

17685 W 83rd Dr

Arvada CO 80007 AUTHOR“IZED REPRESENTATIVE

Bkt Umasc

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




o W=O

(Rav. Oclober 2016)

Depariment of the Treasury
Intgmal Revenue Senvice

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

» Go to www.irs.gov/FormWa fer instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

Midland Marketing Inc.

1 Nama (as shown on your Income tax return), Name s requized on this ine; do not leave this line blank.

2, Business name/disregarded entity name, If different fram above
Fur Services Inc.

{ollowing seven hoxes.

[ individual/sole propretor or G Gorporation

single-member LLC

7] Other (see Instructions) »

4 Check appropiate box for federal tax classification of the persan whosa name Is entered on line 1, Ghack only ane of the
(s GCorporation

[ Uimited llability sompany, Enter the ax elapsifeation {C+C corporation, S=§ aorporation, P=Partnership) >
Nate: Check the appropriate box In the ing abave for the tax classiflcation of the single-member oviner. Do not ¢heck
LLG Hihe LLG |s classifed as a single-member LLG that Is disregarded from the owner uniess the awner of the LLG Is
another LLG that Is not disragarded from the ownar for U.S, federal tax pumases, Othanviss, a single-member LLC that
is disregarded from the owner should oheok the appropriate box for tha tax olassificallan of its owner,

4 Exemptlops {cades apply ooly to
certain antities, not indivitiuals; see

instructions on page 8);
| Partnershlp D Tnist/estate

Exgmpt payea code (if any)

Exernptlan frorm FATCA reporting
code (f any)

e

{Applla to fecounts malnteirad outsdda tha US)

5 Address (number, strest, and apt, or suite no.) See Instructions.
12345 Huron Streat

Radquester's name and addrass (optional)

) Print or type.
See Speciic Instructions on page 3.

6 Clty, state, and ZIP f;ode
Westminster, CO 80234

7 Ust aocount number(s) here (optional)

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN In the appropriate box. The TIN provided must mateh the name given an line 1 to avaid
baskup withholding. For Indlviduals, this s generally your soclal security number (SSN), However, for a
rasident alien, sole proprietor, or disregardad entity, see the Instructions for Part ], later. For other
entitles, It Is your employer Identlfication nutaber (EIN). f you do not have a number, sse How to gt a

TIN, later,

Note: If the aceount s In more than ane name, see the Instructions for Iine 1. Also ses What Narme and
Nurnber To Glve the Requester for guldelines on whose number to enter.

Soclal spourity number

[ -

ar
Employer identification number

8|14 ~{1)10]2]8({1}0(8

Part It Gertification

Under penalties of perjury, [ certify that:

1, The number shiown on this form is my correot taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be lssued to me); and
2, | am 1ot subjeot to baclkup withholding because: (g) 1 am exgmpt from haokup withholding, or (b) I have not heen notified by the nternal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subjest to backup withholding as a result of a fallure to report afl interest or dividends, or (¢) the IRS has notified me that [ am

no longer subject to backup withhelding; and
3,1 am a U.S. oitlzen or other U.8. person (definad below); and

4. The FATCA coda(s) entered on this form (If any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting Is correat.

Certitication Instructions. You must cross out ftern 2 abova If you have been notified by the [RS that you are cutrently subjact fo backup wiihholding because
you have falled to report all Interest and dividends o your tax retum. For real estate transaotlons, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage Interast pald,
acquisition of abandonmént of sectired property, cancellation of-debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments

otherihan Intersst and dividends, you are not required to slgn the certiflcation,

hut you must provide your correct TIN, Ses the Instructions for Part il, leter.

Sign
Here

Signature of
U.8. person»

<

EHEIEESS

Date »

General Instructons

Sectlon references are to the Intemal Revenus Code unlesa otherwise
noted,

Future developments. For the latest Information about developments
related to Form W-9 and Iis instruotions, such as leglslation enacted
after they ware pubiished, go to www.lrs,gov/FormWg.

Purpose of Form

An Individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who [s required to flle an
information retum with the IRS must obtaln your correct taxpayer
identifleation number (TIN) whioh may be your soolal seoutlty number
(SSN), Individual taxpayer identifloation number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer Identifloation number (ATIN), or emplayer Identifcation number
(EIN), to report on an infarmation return the amount pald to you, or other
amount reportable on an Infermation retum. Examples of Information
vetumns include, but are not limited to, the following.

¢ Form 1098-INT {intarest eamed or pald)

» Form 1099-DIV (dividends, Incfuding those from stocks or mutual
funds)
* Form 1099-MISGC {varlous types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)
* Form 1099-B (stook or mutual fund sales and centain ether
{ransactions by brokers) :
» Form 1098-3 (proceeds from real estate trangactions)
» Form 1009-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
« Form 1098 (home mortgage Interest), 1098-E (student loan Interest),
1098-T (tuition)
* Form 1089-C (canceled debt)
» Form 1099-A (acquisition or ahandonment of secured property)

Uss Form W-9 only Jf you are a U.S. person (including & resldent
alien), to provide yaur correot TIN.

If you do not retumn Form W-9 1o the requester with a TIN, you might
ba subject to backup withholding. Sea What Is backup withholding,
later,

Gat, No. 10231X

Form W=8 (Rev. 10-2018)




INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits
attached hereto (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of the 20" day of August, 2024, by and
between LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and THE ARCHITERRA GROUP,
INC., a Colorado corporation (the “Contractor”). The District and the Contractor are referred to
herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S. for the purpose of constructing, financing, operating, and
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its taxpayers, residents, and users;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is empowered to enter
into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(i), C.R.S., the District is empowered to appoint,
hire, and retain agents, employees, engineers, and attorneys; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain services as are
needed by the District to serve the property within and without its boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented that it has the professional experience, skill,
and resources to perform the services, as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

l. SCOPE OF SERVICES:; PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. The Contractor shall
perform the services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference (the “Services”): (a) in a professional manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using
the degree of skill and knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar
services; (b) within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in said Exhibit
A; and (c) using reasonable commercial efforts to minimize any annoyance, interference, or
disruption to the residents, tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District. Exhibit A may
take any form, including forms which may include price and payment terms. In the event of any
conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A,
the terms in the body of this Agreement shall govern. Contractor shall have no right or authority,
express or implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate
the District in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this Agreement

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



(including Exhibit A) or through other authorization expressly delegated to or authorized by the
District through its Board of Directors.

2. TERM/RENEWAL. This Agreement shall be effective as of the dated date hereof
and shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) termination pursuant to Section 18 hereof; (ii)
completion of the Services; or (iii) December 31, 2025. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless
terminated pursuant to subsection (i) or (ii) above, or unless the District determines not to
appropriate funds for this Agreement for the next succeeding year, this Agreement shall
automatically renew on January 1 of each succeeding year for an additional one (1) year term.

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. The District may, in writing, request the Contractor
provide additional services not set forth in Exhibit A. The terms and conditions of the provision
of such services shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Contractor and the District pursuant
to a written service/work order executed by an authorized representative of the District and the
Contractor or an addendum to this Agreement. Authorization to proceed with additional services
shall not be given unless the District has appropriated funds sufficient to cover the additional
compensable amount. To the extent additional services are provided pursuant to this Section 3,
the terms and conditions of this Agreement relating to Services shall also apply to any additional
services rendered.

4. REPAIRS/CLAIMS. The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties. The
Contractor will promptly repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of
any damage to property caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents, or equipment. In
addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims of which it
becomes aware. The Contractor further agrees to take all reasonable steps to preserve all physical
evidence and information, which may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a potential
claim, while maintaining public safety, and to grant to the District the opportunity to review and
inspect such evidence, including the scene of any damage or accidents. The Contractor shall be
responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in
connection with the Services and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage or
injury to persons and property, including any material and equipment related to the Services,
whether in storage on or off site, under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its
subcontractors.

5. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.

a. The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and
location of the Services; (ii) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment, and facilities
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services;
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the
Contractor. Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such
examination and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision
thereof made to it by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement.
The Contractor represents that it has or shall acquire the capacity and the professional experience
and skill to perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 2



standards of care, skill, and diligence provided by competent professionals who perform services
of a similar nature to those specified in this Agreement. If competent professionals find that the
Contractor’s performance of the Services does not meet this standard, the Contractor shall, at the
District’s request, re-perform the Services not meeting this standard without additional
compensation.

b. The Contractor shall use reasonable commercial efforts to perform and
complete the Services in a timely manner. If performance of the Services by the Contractor is
delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, or if conditions of the scope or
type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give prompt notice to the District of such
a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or compensation, as negotiated
between the Parties.

c. The Services provided under this Agreement shall be adequate and
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner.

d. The Contractor agrees that it has complied and will continue to comply with
all Laws while providing Services under this Agreement. “Laws” means: (i) federal, state, county,
and local or municipal body or agency laws, statutes, ordinances, and regulations; (ii) any
licensing, bonding, and permit requirements; (iii) any laws relating to storage, use, or disposal of
hazardous wastes, substances, or materials; (iv) rules, regulations, ordinances, and/or similar
directives regarding business permits, certificates, and licenses; (v) regulations and orders
affecting safety and health, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of
1970; (vi) Wage and Hour laws, Worker Compensation laws, and immigration laws.

e. The responsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement
shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent, consultant, sub-
consultant, or employee of the District. Review, acceptance, or approval by the District of the
Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor
of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions, or errors in said Services or documents, nor shall
it be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action
arising out of the performance of this Agreement.

6. MONTHLY STATUS REPORT. The Contractor shall provide to the District, at
the District’s request, on or before the 25th of each month, a narrative progress and status report
describing work in progress and results achieved during the reporting period, including a
description of the Services performed during the invoice period and the Services anticipated to be
performed during the ensuing invoice period (“Monthly Report”™).

7. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES.

a. Compensation. Compensation for the Services provided under this
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A.
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement
and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided in Exhibit A
of this Agreement, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved in writing by the
District in advance of incurring such expenses. Any direct reimbursable costs for materials will

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 3



be reimbursable at the Contractor’s actual cost, provided that the Contractor shall make a
reasonable attempt to notify the District of the estimated amount of such reimbursable costs (or
any material adjustments thereto subsequently identified) prior to commencing the requested
services. Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the
District with a current completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification) (“W-9). No payments will be made to the Contractor
until the completed W-9 is provided. The W-9 shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit B.

b. Invoices. Invoices for the Services shall be submitted monthly, by the 10
of each month, during the term of this Agreement and shall contain the following information:

1. An itemized statement of the Services performed.

il Any other reasonable information required by the District to process
payment of the invoice, including project and/or cost codes as provided in any applicable written
service/work order.

The District shall be charged only for the actual time and direct costs
incurred for the performance of the Services. Invoices received by the District after the 10™ of
each month may be processed the following month.

8. TIME FOR PAYMENT. Payment for the Services shall be made by the District
within thirty (30) days of receipt of: (i) a timely, satisfactory, and detailed invoice in the form
required by Section 7; and (i1) if applicable, a reasonably satisfactory and detailed Monthly Report,
for that portion of the Services performed and not previously billed. The District may determine
to waive or extend the deadline for filing the Monthly Report, or may make payment for Services
to the Contractor notwithstanding a delay in filing the Monthly Report, upon reasonable request
of the Contractor, if it is in the interest of the District to do so. In the event a Board meeting is not
scheduled in time to review payment of an invoice, the Board hereby authorizes payment for
Services, subject to the appropriation and budget requirements under Section 27 hereof, without
the need for additional Board approval, so long as any payment required to be made does not
exceed the amounts appropriated for such Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget.
Such payment shall require review and approval of each Monthly Report and invoice by two
officers of the District.

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Contractor is an independent contractor
and nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees
or agents as employees or agents of the District. The Contractor shall have full power and authority
to select the means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without
detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own
employees or subcontractors. The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained. The
District shall not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or
employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants,
contractors, agents, or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to:
local, state or federal income, or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes),
workers’ compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance,

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 4



errors and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions,
or any other form of taxes, benefits, or insurance. The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety,
and the safety of its employees, sub-contractors, agents, and representatives. All personnel
furnished by the Contractor will be deemed employees or sub-contractors of the Contractor and
will not for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the District. The Contractor is
not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits, unless
unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Contractor or some other entity
other than the District, and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income taxes
on moneys by it earned pursuant to this Agreement.

10.  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY. This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws and
executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-discrimination in employment and the
Contractor represents and warrants that it will not discriminate in its employment practices in
violation of any such applicable law or executive order.

11. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE.

a. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense,
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth in
Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. A waiver of subrogation and
rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents is required for
Commercial General Liability and workers’ compensation coverage. The Commercial General
Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name
the District as an additional insured. All coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be
written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to any coverage that the
District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess. The
District shall have the right to verify or confirm, at any time, all coverage, information, or
representations contained in this Agreement.

b. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall
provide the District with a certificate or certificates evidencing the policies required by this
Agreement, as well as the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage, which
certificate(s) shall be attached hereto as Exhibit C-1. If the Contractor subcontracts any portion(s)
of the Services, said subcontractor(s) shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing statutory
workers’ compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance, and automobile
liability insurance in amounts satisfactory to the District and the Contractor; provided, however,
that sub-contractors of the Contractor shall not be required by the District to provide coverage in
excess of that which is required hereunder of the Contractor. If the coverage required expires
during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide replacement
certificate(s) evidencing the continuation of the required policies.

c. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve
to release it from any obligations contained in this Agreement, nor shall the purchase of the
required insurance serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision in this Agreement.
The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies.

12. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICTS.

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 5



a. Confidentiality. Any information deemed confidential by the District and
given to the Contractor by the District, or developed by the Contractor as a result of the
performance of a particular task, shall remain confidential. In addition, the Contractor shall hold
in strict confidence, and shall not use in competition, any information which the Contractor
becomes aware of under or by virtue of this Agreement which the District deems confidential, or
which the District has agreed to hold confidential, or which, if revealed to a third party, would
reasonably be construed to be contrary to the interests of the District. Confidential information
shall not include, however, any information which is: (i) generally known to the public at the time
provided to the Contractor; (ii) provided to the Contractor by a person or entity not bound by
confidentiality to the District; or (ii1) independently developed by the Contractor without use of
the District’s confidential information. During the performance of this Agreement, if the
Contractor is notified that certain information is to be considered confidential, the Contractor
agrees to enter into a confidentiality agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to the District and
the Contractor. The Contractor agrees that any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors with
access to any information designated thereunder as confidential information of the District shall
agree to be bound by the terms of such confidentiality agreement.

b. Personal Identifying Information. During the performance of this
Agreement, the District may disclose Personal Identifying Information to the Contractor.
“Personal Identifying Information” means a social security number; a personal identification
number; a password; a pass code; an official state or government-issued driver’s license or
identification card number; a government passport number; biometric data, as defined in § 24-73-
103(1)(a), C.R.S.; an employer, student, or military identification number; or a financial
transaction device, as defined in § 18-5-701(3), C.R.S. In compliance with § 24-73-102, C.R.S.,
the Contractor agrees to implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices that
are: (i) appropriate to the nature of the Personal Identifying Information disclosed to the
Contractor; and (i1) reasonably designed to help protect the Personal Identifying Information from
unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction.

c. Conflicts. Prior to the execution of, and during the performance of this
Agreement and prior to the execution of future agreements with the District, the Contractor agrees
to notify the District of conflicts known to the Contractor that impact the Contractor’s provision
of Services to the District.

13.  OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All documents produced by or on behalf of the
Contractor prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all maps, plans,
drawings, specifications, reports, electronic files, and other documents, in whatever form, shall
remain the property of the District under all circumstances, upon payment to the Contractor of the
invoices representing the work by which such materials were produced. At the District’s request
the Contractor will provide the District with all documents produced by or on behalf of the
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor shall maintain electronic and reproducible
copies on file of any such instruments of service involved in the Services for a period of two (2)
years after termination of this Agreement, shall make them available for the District’s use and shall
provide such copies to the District upon request at no cost.

14.  LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES. The Contractor shall not have any right or
interest in any District assets, or any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 6



Agreement or the performance of the Services contemplated in this Agreement. The Contractor,
for itself, hereby waives and releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s,
materialmen’s, or other such lien claims, or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or
any improvements thereon in connection with any Services performed under or in connection with
this Agreement, and the Contractor shall cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers,
materialmen, and others claiming by, through, or under the Contractor to execute similar waivers
prior to commencing any work or providing any materials in connection with the Services. The
Contractor further agrees to execute a sworn affidavit respecting the payment and lien releases of
all subcontractors, suppliers, and materialmen, and release of lien respecting the Services at such
time or times and in such form as may be reasonably requested by the District. The Contractor
will provide indemnification against all such liens for labor performed and/or materials supplied
or used by the Contractor and/or any other person in connection with the Services undertaken by
the Contractor, in accordance with Section 15, below.

15. INDEMNIFICATION.

a. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants (collectively, the
“District Indemnitees”), from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions,
lawsuits, damages, and expenses (the “Claims”), including reasonable legal expenses and
attorneys’ fees actually incurred, by the District Indemnitees arising directly or indirectly, in whole
or in part, out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious
act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or employees, in
connection with this Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work
pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement or otherwise to the
contrary, the Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District Indemnitees for the negligence
of the District or the negligence of any other District Indemnitee, except the Contractor. Except
as otherwise provided by applicable law, this indemnification obligation will not be limited in any
way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by
or for the Contractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit
acts, provided that in no event shall the Contractor be liable for special/consequential or punitive
damages.

b. In the event the Contractor fails to assume the defense of any Claims under
this Section 15 within fifteen (15) days after notice from the District of the existence of such Claim,
the District may assume the defense of the Claim with counsel of its own selection, and the
Contractor will pay all reasonable expenses of such counsel. Insurance coverage requirements
specified in this Agreement shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the
terms of this indemnification obligation.

c. Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no
way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation.
The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary
with respect to its obligations under this Agreement, including the indemnity obligations set forth
in Section 15. This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 7



16.  ASSIGNMENT. The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof,
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District. Any attempted
assignment of this Agreement in whole or in part with respect to which the District has not
consented, in writing, shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever.

17. SUB-CONTRACTORS. The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the
District for the performance of all Services in accordance with the terms set forth in this
Agreement, whether performed by the Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor,
and neither the District’s approval of any subcontractor, suppliers, or materialman, nor the failure
of performance thereof by such persons or entities, will relieve, release, or affect in any manner
the Contractor’s duties, liabilities, or obligations under this Agreement . The Contractor shall not
subcontract any Services without prior written approval by the District. The Contractor agrees
that each and every agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under
this Agreement shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained in this
Agreement holding the District harmless for the acts of the subcontractor. Prior to commencing
any Services, a subcontractor shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to the District in
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. The Contractor further agrees that all such
subcontracts shall provide that they may be terminated immediately without cost or penalty upon
termination of this Agreement, other than payment for services rendered prior to the date of any
such termination.

18. TERMINATION. In addition to the termination provisions contained in Section 2,
above, this Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the Contractor upon delivery of
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the Contractor
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice. Each Party may terminate this Agreement for cause at any
time upon written notice to the other Party setting forth the cause for termination and the notified
Party’s failure to cure the cause to the reasonable satisfaction of the Party given such notice within
the cure period set forth in Section 19. If this Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be
paid for all the Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including
reimbursable expenses due. Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business. Should
either Party to this Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of
creditors, or commit a substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other
Party, said other Party shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under
this Agreement. In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate with
the District to ensure a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the District
or its designees. All time, fees, and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed by the
Contractor to the District.

19.  DEFAULT. If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms,
covenants, and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this
Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the
default, at the address specified in Section 20 below, and the defaulting party will have ten (10)
days from and after receipt of the notice to cure the default. If the default is not of a type which
can be cured within such ten (10)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the
non-defaulting party within such ten (10)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a
cure, the defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default
following the end of the ten (10)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defaulting party

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 8



is at all times within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure. If any
default under this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will, in
addition to any other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement and
enforce the defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for injunction
or specific performance.

20. NOTICES. Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must be
in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service,
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. If given by registered or certified mail,
the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of: (i) actual receipt
by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent; or (ii) three
days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage
prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If personally delivered or sent via nationally
recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been given and received on
the first to occur of: (i) one business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized
overnight air courier service; or (i1) delivery to the party to whom it is addressed. Any party hereto
may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto as provided in this Section 20
of this Agreement, designate additional persons to whom notices or communications will be given,
and designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or
communication will be given. Such notices or communications will be given to the parties at their
addresses set forth below:

District: Leyden Rock Metropolitan District
c/o AdvanceHOA Management
17865 W. 83™ Drive
Arvada, CO 80007
Attention: Katie Call
Phone:  (303) 482-2213 x360
Email: katie.call@advancehoa.com

With a Copy to: WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000
Centennial, CO 80122
Attention: Megan J. Murphy
Phone:  (303) 858-1800
E-mail:  mmurphy@wbapc.com

Contractor: The Architerra Group, Inc.
5881 S. Deframe Street
Littleton, CO 80127
Attention: Lesanne  Dominguez, PLA,
ASLA, SEGD
Phone: (303) 948-0766
Email: ldominguez@architerragroup.com

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 9



21.  AUDITS. The District shall have the right to audit, with reasonable notice, any of
the Contractor’s books and records solely as are necessary to substantiate any invoices and
payments under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, receipts, time sheets, payroll, and
personnel records) and the Contractor agrees to maintain adequate books and records for such
purposes during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after termination of
this Agreement and to make the same available to the District at all reasonable times and for so
long thereafter as there may remain any unresolved question or dispute regarding any item
pertaining thereto.

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and obligations
of each to the other as of this date, and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations,
representations, agreements, or arrangements of any kind with respect to the Services, whether
written or oral. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly set
forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect. This Agreement may not be modified except
by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the District.

23. BINDING AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto.

24, NO WAIVER. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, nor
shall the waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default.

25. GOVERNING LAW.

a. Venue. Venue for all actions arising from this Agreement shall be in the
District Court in and for the county in which the District is located. The Parties expressly and
irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect venue of any such action, including,
but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise. At the District’s request, the Contractor
shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement during any legal proceedings and
the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed under this Agreement until and unless
this Agreement is otherwise terminated.

b. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall apply to any dispute, without regard to
conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the State
of Colorado.

c. Litigation. At the District’s request, the Contractor will consent to being
joined in litigation between the District and third parties, but such consent shall not be construed
as an admission of fault or liability. The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays in the
performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its reasonable control including delays
caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or other regulatory authority to act
in a timely manner, or failure of the District to furnish timely information or to approve or
disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner.

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 10



26. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES. In the performance of this Agreement, or in
considering any requested approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time, the Parties agree
that each will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or
unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time
required or requested pursuant to this Agreement.

27. SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET. The District does
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation
whatsoever. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under
this Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by
the Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, or liability in any ensuing
fiscal year beyond the then-current fiscal year. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed
or interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-
fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or statutory
debt limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the
Constitution of the State of Colorado. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge
or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds. The District’s obligations under this
Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall remain subject to the
same for the entire term of this Agreement.

28. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or
available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., C.R.S.

29.  NEGOTIATED PROVISIONS. This Agreement shall not be construed more
strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been
prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed
to the preparation of this Agreement.

30. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the
validity of any other portion of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect, the
intention being that such portions are severable. In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable
provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms
to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal,
valid, and enforceable.

31. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. It is expressly understood and agreed that
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this Agreement shall
give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such Agreement. It is
the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving services or benefits
under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only.

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 11



32. OPEN RECORDS. The Parties understand that all material provided or produced
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq.,
CR.S.

33. STANDARD OF CARE. In providing Services under this Agreement, the
Contractor shall perform in a manner consistent with that degree of care and skill ordinarily
exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing under similar circumstances at
the same time.

34. TAX EXEMPT STATUS. The District is exempt from Colorado state sales and
use taxes. Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any
invoices submitted to the District. The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a copy
of its certificate of tax exemption. Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the Colorado
Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exemption Certificate and purchase materials
tax free. The Contractor and subcontractors shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to
apply for Exemption Certificates or for failure to use said certificate.

35.  COUNTERPART EXECUTION. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same instrument. Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a
PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules
of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

[Signature pages follow].

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 12



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first
above written. By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken all
necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.

DISTRICT:

LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado

Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24, 2024 12:23 MDT)

President

ATTEST:

Scott- 1. Plummer

Scott J. Plummer (Aug 24, 2024 11:20 MDT)

Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
Attorneys at Law

General Counsel for the District

District’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Design Development and
Construction Services with The Architerra Group, Inc., dated August 20, 2024

1237.4200; 13






EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES/COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402  A-1#1326101v2



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

10



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

11



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

12



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

13



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

14



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

15



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

16



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

17



TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1, ERO shall perform all work under this Agreement as an independent contractor, Neither
execution of this Agreement nor performance by the parties under this Agreement shall create any
partnership, joint venture, or agency relationship between the parties.

2. ERO periodically shall submit invoices to CLIENT. CLIENT shall pay each invoice within thirty (30)
days of the date of the invoice. CLIENT shall pay an additional charge of one and one-half percent
(1-1/2%) of the amount of the invoice per month, or the maximum percentage allowed by law,
whichever is the lesser, for any payment received by ERO more than sixty (60} days from the receipt
of an invoice.

3. The CLIENT, at its expense, shall provide ERO with access to and egress from all property to which
ERO may require access to perform its services under this Agreement.

4. For Projects specifically involving the assessment, identification, confirmation, or removal of solid
wastes, hazardous substances, hazardous wastes, or toxic materials the CLIENT, at its expense, shall
provide full information regarding its knowledge of the Project; the identity, nature, quantity, and
location of all known solid wastes, hazardous substances, hazardous waste, or toxic materials at or
on the site; all reports, data, maps, diagrams, studies, specifications, and other documents or any
information relating to said substances, materials and wastes; surface or subsurface conditions at
the site; and names, addresses, and phone numbers of such persons that may possess such
information, which would assist ERO to perform its services hereunder, and any circumstances
known to the CLIENT that would hinder ERO’s performance or make performance by ERO more
difficult or expensive than would ordinarily be expected.

CLIENT agrees that ERO is not liable for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages, or expenses
caused by CLIENT’s failure to provide such information regarding the solid, hazardous or toxic
substances, wastes or materials. Such causes include, but are not limited to, negligence,
professional errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or warrant. ERO shall be entitled
to rely on all client-provided documents and information regarding solid, hazardous or toxic
substances, wastes or materials in performing services under the Agreement; however, ERO
assumes no responsibility or liability for the accuracy or completeness of such documents or
information,

5. In recognition of the relative risks, rewards, and benefits of the project to both the CLIENT and
ERQ, the risks have been allocated such that the CLIENT agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by
law, that for any and all claims, losses, costs, damages, or expenses caused by professional
negligence, ERQ’s liability, including that of its employees, agents, and subcontractors, in the
aggregate under this Agreement shall not exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) or our
fees, whichever is less. In no event shall ERO be liable for consequential damages.

6. For any damage caused by negligence other than professional negligence, ERO’s liability,
including that of its employees, agents, and subcontractors, in the aggregate under this Agreement
shall not exceed the limits of ERO’s comprehensive general, automobile liability insurance coverage,

1 ERO Resources Corporation

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 18



or other insurance policies (Commercial General Liability— 52 million each occurrence, $4 million
aggregate; Any Automobile—5$1 million; and Workers’ Compensation—51 million).

7. Subject to Paragraphs 4, 5, and 6 above and otherwise to the fullest extent permitted by law,
CLIENT and ERO shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless each other and their subcontractors,
consultants, agents, officers, directors, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses,
and expenses, whether direct, indirect, or consequential, including, but not limited to, fees and
charges of attorneys and court and arbitration costs arising from their own negligent acts or
omissions.

8. Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause if the other commits a material, uncured
breach of this Agreement. Termination shall be effective ten (10) days from receipt of the Notice of
Termination. No later than thirty (30) days after termination, CLIENT shall pay ERO upon invoice for
services performed and charges prior to termination, plus termination charges. Termination charges
shall include, without limitation, charges for personnel, putting project documents and analyses in

order, personnel and equipment rescheduling or reassignment adjustments, and all other related
costs and charges incurred that are directly attributable to termination.

9, ERO shall not specify work procedures, manage, or supervise work for which it is not responsible
under this Agreement, or implement or be responsible for health and safety procedures for persons
other than its own employees.

10, CLIENT shall compensate ERO for any and all costs, expenses, obligations, or damages arising
out of any litigation, investigations, or regulatory procedures in which ERO is compelled to
participate, that relate to this project. No such compensation shall be due or payable in the event
that it resulted from ERO's negligent or intentional acts,

11, The provisions of this Agreement shall survive the completion of the services under this
Agreement and the termination of this Agreement for any cause,

12. ERO shall retain as confidential all information and data furnished to it by the CLIENT. This shall
not apply to information and data already known to the receiving party or already generally
available to the public.

13. CLIENT and ERO represent and warrant to the other that they have the full power and authority
to execute and deliver this Agreement, and perform their respective obligations hereunder.

14. This agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado.

2 ERO Resources Corporation

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 19



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

20



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

21



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

22



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

23



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

24



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

25



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

26



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

27



demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution
proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer
perlod by agreement of the partles or court order. If an arbitration proceeding Is stayed pursuant to this Agreement, the
parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.

The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place where the
Project Is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be enforceable
as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Agreement, the method of binding dispute
resolution shall be Arbitration.

Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by,
mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the
American Arbitration Association In accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the
Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party ta this Agreement, and filed with
the person or entity administering the arbitration.

A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation, but in no event
shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other
matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a
written demand for arbitration by the persen or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institition of legal
or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute, or other matter in question.

The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly consented
to by parties to this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable In accordance with applicable law In any court having
jurisdiction thereof.

The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgement may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable
law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.

Risk Allocation;

In recognition of the relative risks, regards and benefits of the project to both the Client and the Firm, the risks have been allocated
such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the Firm's total liability to the Client for any and all injuries,
claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claim expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes shall not exceed the
value of this contract or $50,000.00, whichever is less. Such causes indude but are not limited to the Firm's negligence, errors,
omissions, strict liabllity breach of contract, or breach of warranty.

Lertifications, Guarantees and Warranties:

The Firm shall nat be required to sign any documents, no matter by whom requested, that would result in the Firm’s having to
certify, guarantee or warrant the existence of conditions whose exjstence the Firm cannot ascertain. The Client also agrees not to
make resolution of any dispute with the Firm or payment of any amount due to the Firm In any way contingent upon the Firm's
signing any such certification.

Termination of Services:
This agreement may be terminated by the Client or the Firm should the other fail to perform its obligations hereunder. In the event

of termination, the Client shall pay the Firm for all services rendered to the date of terrmination, all reimbursable expenses, and
imbursable termination expenses.

Dwnership of Documents:

All documents produced by the Firm under this agreement shall remain the property of the Firm and may not be used by the Client
for any other endeavor without the written consent of the Firm.

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402 28



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

29



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1402

30



EXHIBIT B

CONTRACTOR’S COMPLETED W-9

1237.4200; B-1
#1326101v2






EXHIBIT C

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of
Section 11 of this Agreement.

l.

Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all
employees of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy
amounts and coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services
will be performed.

Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than
$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability; $2,000,000
designated location, general aggregate; and $1,000,000 umbrella. Such insurance will
include coverage for contractual liability, personal injury, and broad form property
damage, and shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive basis
including, but not limited to:

premises operations;

personal injury liability without employment exclusion;

limited contractual;

broad form property damages, including completed operations;

medical payments;

products and completed operations;

independent consultants coverage; and

coverage inclusive of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and
procedures, employed in the capacity of a construction consultant.

R

This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations
contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or
property damage.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned, and hired
automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of
liability of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property
damage. This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification
obligations contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of
bodily injury or property damage.

If applicable: Contractor shall secure and maintain a third-party fidelity bond in favor of
the District, covering the Contractor and its employees and agents who may provide or be
responsible for the provision of Services where such activities contemplate the
responsibility for money or property of the District. Such bond shall protect the District
against any fraudulent or dishonest act which may result in the loss of money, securities,

1237.4200; C-1



or other property belonging to or in the possession of the District. Said bond shall be in an
amount as determined by the District, from a surety acceptable to the District.

Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

1237.4200; C-2



EXHIBIT C-1

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE

1237.4200; C-1-1
#1326101v2



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
8/1/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,

EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

The Buckner Company of Colorado

6400 South Fiddlers Green Circle Suite 950
Greenwood Village CO 80111

CONTACT .
NAME: _ Select Business Team

(Al o, Exty. 801-937-6700 (A% Noy: 801-937-6710

E-MAIL
ADDRESsS: Select@buckner.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Pinnacol Assurance 41190
INSURED 2208) \\surer B : Hartford Casualty Insurance Company 29424
The Architerra Group, Inc. . .
5881 South DeFrame Street INSURER C : Certain Underwriters at Lloyds 15792
Littleton CO 80127 INSURER D :
INSURER E :
INSURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 176906615

REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR ADDL[SUBR POLICY EFF | POLICY EXP
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DD/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
B | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY Y | Y | 34SBAPQ4463 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 | EACH OCCURRENCE $2,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $300,000
MED EXP (Any one person) $ 10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $4,000,000
POLICY |:| S’ng Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $4,000,000
OTHER: $
B | AUTOMOBILELIABILITY Y | Y | 34SBAPQ4463 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 | EMeNEns NCLELMIT | $2,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
OWNED SCHEDULED !
AUTOS ONLY - AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
X | HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)
$
B | X | UMBRELLALIAB X OCCUR 34SBAPQ4463 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $4,000,000
DED ‘ X ‘ RETENTION $ 10 000 $
A | WORKERS COMPENSATION Y | 4024929 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 RER orH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ‘ ER
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $2,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $2,000,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | $2,000,000
C | Professional Liability ANE519758824 8/1/2024 8/1/2025 | Per Aggregate 4,000,000
Per Claim 2,000,000
Ded. 5,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Certificate Holder is Additional Insured on a Primary and Non-contributory basis including Ongoing and Completed Operations per General Liability form
SS0008(04-05) including Waiver of Subrogation per General Liability form SS0008(04-05) and per Work Comp form WC000313B.

Business Personal Property (Policy no. 34SBAPQ4463): Special Form Coverage, Limit $55,400, Replacement Cost, Deductible $250

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

Leyden Rock Metropolitan District
c/o Capital Consultants Management Corporation

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

17685 W. 83rd Drive
Arvada CO 80007

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING WITH COLORADO SECRETARY OF STATE

1237.4200; D-1



1237.4200;



LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
CONTRACT

Name of Contractor/Provider/Consultant: Mile High Lights
Title of Agreement/Contract: 2024-2025 Holiday Lighting Display
Agreement/Contract Date: August 20, 2024

This Contract (this “Agreement”) is made by and between Leyden Rock Metropolitan District, a
quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”) and the above-
referenced contractor, provider, or other consultant (the “Contractor”).

Introduction. The District and the Contractor desire to enter into this Contract to be effective as of the date
above.

1. Scope of Services. The Contractor shall perform the services set forth in Exhibit A (the
“Services”): (a) in a first-class manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using the degree of skill and
knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar services; (b) within the time
period specified in this Agreement; (c) in such a manner as to minimize any annoyance, interference, or
disruption to the residents, tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District; and (d) in compliance with all
applicable federal, state, county, and local or municipal statutes, ordinances, and regulations.

2. Compensation of Services. The District shall provide compensation for the Services provided
under this Agreement in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. The
Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement and shall not be entitled
to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided herein, unless said reimbursement or compensation is
approved in writing by the District in advance of such expenses being incurred. Exhibit A may take any form. In
the event of any conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A, the
terms in the body of this Agreement shall govern.

3. Repairs/Claims. The Contractor shall immediately notify the District in writing of any and all
damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties. The Contractor shall promptly
repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of any damage to District property
caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents, or equipment.

4. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is an independent contractor, and nothing herein
shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees or agents as employees or agents of the
District. The Contractor is not entitled to receive workers’ compensation benefits or unemployment
insurance benefits from the District and the District will not provide any insurance coverage or
employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants,
contractors, agents, or representatives. The Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income tax
on any moneys paid pursuant to this contract. The Contractor shall have full power and authority to select the
means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without detailed control or direction
from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own employees or subcontractors. The District is
concerned only with the results to be obtained.

5. Warranty and Permits. The Contractor guarantees and warrants that all workmanship,
materials, and equipment furnished, installed, or performed for the accomplishment of the Services
(collectively, the “Work”) will be of good quality and new, unless otherwise required or permitted by this
Agreement. The Contractor further warrants that the Work will conform to all requirements of this Agreement
and the applicable building code and all other applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations of any
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work. The Contractor hereby warrants the Work for a
period of one (1) year from the date of completion and initial acceptance of the Work. The Contractor will
immediately correct or replace any Work that is defective or not conforming to this Agreement, at its sole

1234.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403



expense, to the reasonable satisfaction of the District. The Contractor’s guarantees and warranties shall in all
cases survive termination of this Agreement. This warranty shall be enforceable by the District and its
successors and assigns.

6. Contractor’s Insurance. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and
expense, during the entire term of the Agreement, the following insurance coverage: (i) Standard worker’s
compensation and employer’s liability insurance covering all employees of Contractor involved with the
performance of the Services, with policy amounts and coverage in compliance with law; (ii)) Commercial
General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than $2,000,000 per occurrence for
bodily injury and property damage liability; $2,000,000 designated location, general aggregate; and
$1,000,000 umbrella; (iii) Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned,
and hired automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of liability of not
less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property damage; and (iv) any other insurance
commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed pursuant to this Agreement. All
coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be written as primary policies, not contributing with and
not supplemental to any coverage that the District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District
shall be considered excess. The Commercial General Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability
Insurance policies will be endorsed to name the District as an additional insured. The Contractor’s failure to
purchase the required insurance shall not serve to release it from any obligations, nor shall the purchase of the
required insurance serve to limit the Contractor’s liability. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of
any deductibles on issued policies.

7. Indemnification. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants, from and against any and all
claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions, lawsuits, damages, and expenses, including legal expenses and
attorneys’ fees, arising directly or indirectly out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or
any criminal or tortious act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or
employees. The Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District for the District’s own negligence. This
indemnification obligation will not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability acts,
or other employee benefit acts. Such indemnity shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
To the extent the District is or may be obligated to indemnify, defend, or hold Contractor harmless under the
terms of the Agreement, any such indemnification obligation shall arise only to the extent permitted by
applicable law and shall be limited solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose in accordance with
this Agreement.

8. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement for cause or for convenience upon ten
(10) days’ prior written notice to the other party. If the Agreement is terminated, the District shall compensate the
Contractor for all Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including reimbursable
expenses due. The District shall make this payment in the normal course of business.

9. Governing Law / Disputes. This Agreement and all claims or controversies arising out of or
relating to this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the law of the State of Colorado,
without regard to conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the
State of Colorado. Venue for all actions shall be in the District Court in and for the county in which the District is
located.

10. Subject to Annual Appropriation and Budget. The District does not intend hereby to create a
multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever. The obligations of the District
under this Agreement are subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and the Contractor expressly
understands and agrees that the decision whether or not to budget and appropriate funds is within the discretion
of the District’s governing body, and the obligations of the District shall extend only to monies appropriated
for the purposes of this Agreement and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, or liability in any

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403 2



ensuing fiscal year beyond the then-current fiscal year. The District and Contractor understand and intend that
the District’s obligation to make payments and pay other amounts due under the Agreement shall constitute a
current expense and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt in contravention of any applicable
constitutional or statutory limitations or requirements.

11. Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or
otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available by law to the District,
its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any other person acting on behalf of the District
and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or available to the District pursuant to the §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., C.R.S.

12. Remedies. To the extent the Contractor’s remedies for a District default under the Agreement
include any right to accelerate amounts to become due under the Agreement, such acceleration shall be limited
solely to sums lawfully appropriated for such purpose and shall further be limited to amounts to become due
during the District’s then-current fiscal period.

13. Negotiated Provisions. This Agreement shall not be construed more strictly against one party
than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been prepared by counsel for one of the
parties, it being acknowledged that each party has contributed substantially and materially to the preparation of
this Agreement.

14. Severability. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining portion,
which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable provision, there
shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal, valid, and enforceable.

15. Miscellaneous. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with
respect to the matters addressed herein, and shall supersede all prior oral or written negotiations,
understandings, and commitments.

16. Counterpart Execution. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of
which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.
Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be
deemed originals and binding upon the signatories hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the
original for all purposes, including the rules of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

By the signature of its representative below, each party affirms that it has taken all necessary action to
authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.

District: Contractor:

Brett Vernon
By: Brett Vernon (Aug 24,2024 12:23 MDT) By: Jared Carr (Sep 2, 2024 09:09 MDT)
Name: Brett Vernon Name: Jared Ca rr
Title: Board President Title: Owner

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403 3




Exhibit A
Scope of Services/Compensation Schedule



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403

10



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1403

11



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT
SNOW REMOVAL SERVICES

This INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT, including any and all exhibits
attached hereto (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of the 20th day of August 2024, by and
between LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado (the “District”), and KEESEN LANDSCAPE
MANAGEMENT, INC., a Colorado corporation (the “Contractor”). The District and the
Contractor are referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the District was organized pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions
of §§ 32-1-101, et seq., C.R.S., for the purpose of constructing, financing, operating, and
maintaining certain public facilities and improvements for itself, its taxpayers, residents, and users;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(d)(I), C.R.S., the District is empowered to enter
into contracts and agreements affecting the affairs of the District; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(i), C.R.S., the District is empowered to appoint,
hire, and retain agents, employees, engineers, and attorneys; and

WHEREAS, the District desires to engage the Contractor to perform certain services as are
needed by the District to serve the property within and without its boundaries; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has represented that it has the professional experience, skill,
and resources to perform the services, as set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and stipulations set forth
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as
follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF SERVICES: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS. The Contractor shall
perform the services described in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference (the “Services™): (a) in a professional manner, to the satisfaction of the District, using
the degree of skill and knowledge customarily employed by other professionals performing similar
services; (b) within the time period and pursuant to the Scope of Services specified in said Exhibit
A; and (c) using reasonable commercial efforts to minimize any annoyance, interference, or
disruption to the residents, tenants, occupants, and invitees within the District. Exhibit A may
take any form, including forms which may include price and payment terms. In the event of any
conflict between terms set forth in the body of this Agreement and terms set forth in Exhibit A,
the terms in the body of this Agreement shall govern. Contractor shall have no right or authority,
express or implied, to take any action, expend any sum, incur any obligation, or otherwise obligate
the District in any manner whatsoever, except to the extent specifically provided in this Agreement

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401



(including Exhibit A) or through other authorization expressly delegated to or authorized by the
District through its Board of Directors.

2. TERM/RENEWAL. This Agreement shall be effective as of October 1, 2024
hereof and shall terminate on the earlier to occur of: (i) termination pursuant to Section 18 hereof;
or (ii) midnight on May 31, 2025. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless terminated pursuant to
subsection (1) or (ii) above, or unless the District determines not to appropriate funds for this
Agreement for the next succeeding year, this Agreement shall automatically renew on January 1
of each succeeding year for an additional one (1) year term.

3. ADDITIONAL SERVICES. The District may, in writing, request the Contractor
provide additional services not set forth in Exhibit A. The terms and conditions of the provision
of such services shall be subject to the mutual agreement of the Contractor and the District pursuant
to a written service/work order executed by an authorized representative of the District and the
Contractor or an addendum to this Agreement. Authorization to proceed with additional services
shall not be given unless the District has appropriated funds sufficient to cover the additional
compensable amount. To the extent additional services are provided pursuant to this Section 3,
the terms and conditions of this Agreement relating to Services shall also apply to any additional
services rendered.

4. REPAIRS/CLAIMS. The Contractor shall notify the District immediately of any
and all damage caused by the Contractor to District property and that of third parties. The
Contractor will promptly repair or, at the District’s option, reimburse the District for the repair of
any damage to property caused by the Contractor or its employees, agents, or equipment. In
addition, the Contractor shall promptly notify the District of all potential claims of which it
becomes aware. The Contractor further agrees to take all reasonable steps to preserve all physical
evidence and information, which may be relevant to the circumstances surrounding a potential
claim, while maintaining public safety, and to grant to the District the opportunity to review and
inspect such evidence, including the scene of any damage or accidents. The Contractor shall be
responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in
connection with the Services and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage or
injury to persons and property, including any material and equipment related to the Services,
whether in storage on or off site, under the care, custody, or control of the Contractor or any of its
subcontractors.

5. GENERAL PERFORMANCE STANDARDS.

a. The Contractor has by careful examination ascertained: (i) the nature and
location of the Services; (i1) the configuration of the ground on which the Services are to be
performed; (iii) the character, quality, and quantity of the labor, materials, equipment, and facilities
necessary to complete the Services; (iv) the general and local conditions pertaining to the Services;
and (v) all other matters which in any way may affect the performance of the Services by the
Contractor. Contractor enters into this Agreement solely because of the results of such
examination and not because of any representations pertaining to the Services or the provision
thereof made to it by the District or any agent of the District and not contained in this Agreement.
The Contractor represents that it has or shall acquire the capacity and the professional experience
and skill to perform the Services and that the Services shall be performed in accordance with the

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 2



standards of care, skill, and diligence provided by competent professionals who perform services
of a similar nature to those specified in this Agreement. If competent professionals find that the
Contractor’s performance of the Services does not meet this standard, the Contractor shall, at the
District’s request, re-perform the Services not meeting this standard without additional
compensation.

b. The Contractor shall use reasonable commercial efforts to perform and
complete the Services in a timely manner. If performance of the Services by the Contractor is
delayed due to factors beyond the Contractor’s reasonable control, or if conditions of the scope or
type of services are expected to change, Contractor shall give prompt notice to the District of such
a delay or change and receive an equitable adjustment of time and/or compensation, as negotiated
between the Parties.

C. The Services provided under this Agreement shall be adequate and
sufficient for the intended purposes and shall be completed in a good and workmanlike manner.

d. The Contractor agrees that it has complied and will continue to comply with
all Laws while providing Services under this Agreement. “Laws” means: (i) federal, state, county,
and local or municipal body or agency laws, statutes, ordinances, and regulations; (ii) any
licensing, bonding, and permit requirements; (iii) any laws relating to storage, use, or disposal of
hazardous wastes, substances, or materials; (iv) rules, regulations, ordinances, and/or similar
directives regarding business permits, certificates, and licenses; (v) regulations and orders
affecting safety and health, including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and Health Act of
1970; (vi) Wage and Hour laws, Worker Compensation laws, and immigration laws; and (vii) rules
and regulations of the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment..

e. The responsibilities and obligations of the Contractor under this Agreement
shall not be relieved or affected in any respect by the presence of any agent, consultant, sub-
consultant, or employee of the District. Review, acceptance, or approval by the District of the
Services performed or any documents prepared by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor
of any responsibility for deficiencies, omissions, or errors in said Services or documents, nor shall
it be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action
arising out of the performance of this Agreement.

6. MONTHLY STATUS REPORT. The Contractor shall provide to the District, at
the District’s request, on or before the 25th of each month, a narrative progress and status report
describing work in progress and results achieved during the reporting period, including a
description of the Services performed during the invoice period and the Services anticipated to be
performed during the ensuing invoice period (“Monthly Report™).

7. COMPENSATION AND INVOICES.

a. Compensation. Compensation for the Services provided under this
Agreement shall be in accordance with the compensation schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B.
The Contractor shall be responsible for all expenses it incurs in performance of this Agreement
and shall not be entitled to any reimbursement or compensation except as provided in Exhibit B
of this Agreement, unless said reimbursement or compensation is approved in writing by the

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 3



District in advance of incurring such expenses. Any direct reimbursable costs for materials will
be reimbursable at the Contractor’s actual cost, provided that the Contractor shall make a
reasonable attempt to notify the District of the estimated amount of such reimbursable costs (or
any material adjustments thereto subsequently identified) prior to commencing the requested
services. Concurrent with the execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the
District with a current completed Internal Revenue Service Form W-9 (Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification) (“W-9). No payments will be made to the Contractor
until the completed W-9 is provided. The W-9 shall be attached hereto and incorporated herein as
Exhibit B.

b. Invoices. Invoices for the Services shall be submitted monthly, by the 10
of each month, during the term of this Agreement and shall contain the following information:

L. An itemized statement of the Services performed.

il. Any other reasonable information required by the District to process
payment of the invoice, including project and/or cost codes as provided in any applicable written
service/work order.

The District shall be charged only for the actual time and direct costs
incurred for the performance of the Services. Invoices received by the District after the 10" of
each month may be processed the following month.

8. TIME FOR PAYMENT. Payment for the Services shall be made by the District
within thirty (30) days of receipt of: (i) a timely, satisfactory, and detailed invoice in the form
required by Section 7; and (ii) if applicable, a reasonably satisfactory and detailed Monthly Report,
for that portion of the Services performed and not previously billed. The District may determine
to waive or extend the deadline for filing the Monthly Report, or may make payment for Services
to the Contractor notwithstanding a delay in filing the Monthly Report, upon reasonable request
of the Contractor, if it is in the interest of the District to do so. In the event a Board meeting is not
scheduled in time to review payment of an invoice, the Board hereby authorizes payment for
Services, subject to the appropriation and budget requirements under Section 27 hereof, without
the need for additional Board approval, so long as any payment required to be made does not
exceed the amounts appropriated for such Services as set forth in the District’s approved budget.
Such payment shall require review and approval of each Monthly Report and invoice by two
officers of the District.

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. The Contractor is an independent contractor
and nothing in this Agreement shall constitute or designate the Contractor or any of its employees
or agents as employees or agents of the District. The Contractor shall have full power and authority
to select the means, manner, and method of performing its duties under this Agreement, without
detailed control or direction from the District, and shall be responsible for supervising its own
employees or subcontractors. The District is concerned only with the results to be obtained. The
District shall not be obligated to secure, and shall not provide, any insurance coverage or
employment benefits of any kind or type to or for the Contractor or its employees, sub-consultants,
contractors, agents, or representatives, including coverage or benefits related but not limited to:
local, state or federal income, or other tax contributions, insurance contributions (e.g. FICA taxes),

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 4



workers’ compensation, disability, injury, health or life insurance, professional liability insurance,
errors and omissions insurance, vacation or sick-time benefits, retirement account contributions,
or any other form of taxes, benefits, or insurance. The Contractor shall be responsible for its safety,
and the safety of its employees, sub-contractors, agents, and representatives. All personnel
furnished by the Contractor will be deemed employees or sub-contractors of the Contractor and
will not for any purpose be considered employees or agents of the District. The Contractor is
not entitled to worker’s compensation benefits or unemployment insurance benefits, unless
unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Contractor or some other entity
other than the District, and the Contractor is obligated to pay federal and state income taxes
on moneys by it earned pursuant to this Agreement.

10.  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY. This Agreement is subject to all applicable laws and
executive orders relating to equal opportunity and non-discrimination in employment and the
Contractor represents and warrants that it will not discriminate in its employment practices in
violation of any such applicable law or executive order.

11. CONTRACTOR’S INSURANCE.

a. The Contractor shall acquire and maintain, at its sole cost and expense,
during the entire term of this Agreement, insurance coverage in the minimum amounts set forth in
Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. A waiver of subrogation and
rights of recovery against the District, its directors, officers, employees, and agents is required for
Commercial General Liability and workers’ compensation coverage. The Commercial General
Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance policies will be endorsed to name
the District as an additional insured. All coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be
written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplemental to any coverage that the
District may carry, and any insurance maintained by the District shall be considered excess. The
District shall have the right to verify or confirm, at any time, all coverage, information, or
representations contained in this Agreement.

b. Prior to commencing any work under this Agreement, the Contractor shall
provide the District with a certificate or certificates evidencing the policies required by this
Agreement, as well as the amounts of coverage for the respective types of coverage, which
certificate(s) shall be attached hereto as Exhibit C-1. If the Contractor subcontracts any portion(s)
of the Services, said subcontractor(s) shall be required to furnish certificates evidencing statutory
workers’ compensation insurance, comprehensive general liability insurance, and automobile
liability insurance in amounts satisfactory to the District and the Contractor; provided, however,
that sub-contractors of the Contractor shall not be required by the District to provide coverage in
excess of that which is required hereunder of the Contractor. If the coverage required expires
during the term of this Agreement, the Contractor or subcontractor shall provide replacement
certificate(s) evidencing the continuation of the required policies.

C. The Contractor’s failure to purchase the required insurance shall not serve
to release it from any obligations contained in this Agreement, nor shall the purchase of the
required insurance serve to limit the Contractor’s liability under any provision in this Agreement.
The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of any deductibles on issued policies.

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 5



12. CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICTS.

a. Confidentiality. Any information deemed confidential by the District and
given to the Contractor by the District, or developed by the Contractor as a result of the
performance of a particular task, shall remain confidential. In addition, the Contractor shall hold
in strict confidence, and shall not use in competition, any information which the Contractor
becomes aware of under or by virtue of this Agreement which the District deems confidential, or
which the District has agreed to hold confidential, or which, if revealed to a third party, would
reasonably be construed to be contrary to the interests of the District. Confidential information
shall not include, however, any information which is: (i) generally known to the public at the time
provided to the Contractor; (ii) provided to the Contractor by a person or entity not bound by
confidentiality to the District; or (ii1) independently developed by the Contractor without use of
the District’s confidential information. During the performance of this Agreement, if the
Contractor is notified that certain information is to be considered confidential, the Contractor
agrees to enter into a confidentiality agreement in a form reasonably acceptable to the District and
the Contractor. The Contractor agrees that any of its employees, agents, or subcontractors with
access to any information designated thereunder as confidential information of the District shall
agree to be bound by the terms of such confidentiality agreement.

b. Personal Identifying Information. During the performance of this
Agreement, the District may disclose Personal Identifying Information to the Contractor.
“Personal Identifying Information” means a social security number; a personal identification
number; a password; a pass code; an official state or government-issued driver’s license or
identification card number; a government passport number; biometric data, as defined in § 24-73-
103(1)(a), C.R.S.; an employer, student, or military identification number; or a financial
transaction device, as defined in § 18-5-701(3), C.R.S. In compliance with § 24-73-102, C.R.S.,
the Contractor agrees to implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices that
are: (i) appropriate to the nature of the Personal Identifying Information disclosed to the
Contractor; and (ii) reasonably designed to help protect the Personal Identifying Information from
unauthorized access, use, modification, disclosure, or destruction.

c. Conflicts. Prior to the execution of, and during the performance of this
Agreement and prior to the execution of future agreements with the District, the Contractor agrees
to notify the District of conflicts known to the Contractor that impact the Contractor’s provision
of Services to the District.

13. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All documents produced by or on behalf of the
Contractor prepared pursuant to this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all maps, plans,
drawings, specifications, reports, electronic files, and other documents, in whatever form, shall
remain the property of the District under all circumstances, upon payment to the Contractor of the
invoices representing the work by which such materials were produced. At the District’s request
the Contractor will provide the District with all documents produced by or on behalf of the
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor shall maintain electronic and reproducible
copies on file of any such instruments of service involved in the Services for a period of two (2)
years after termination of this Agreement, shall make them available for the District’s use and shall
provide such copies to the District upon request at no cost.

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 6



14.  LIENS AND ENCUMBRANCES. The Contractor shall not have any right or
interest in any District assets, or any claim or lien with respect thereto, arising out of this
Agreement or the performance of the Services contemplated in this Agreement. The Contractor,
for itself, hereby waives and releases any and all statutory or common law mechanic’s,
materialmen’s, or other such lien claims, or rights to place a lien upon the District’s property or
any improvements thereon in connection with any Services performed under or in connection with
this Agreement, and the Contractor shall cause all permitted subcontractors, suppliers,
materialmen, and others claiming by, through, or under the Contractor to execute similar waivers
prior to commencing any work or providing any materials in connection with the Services. The
Contractor further agrees to execute a sworn affidavit respecting the payment and lien releases of
all subcontractors, suppliers, and materialmen, and release of lien respecting the Services at such
time or times and in such form as may be reasonably requested by the District. The Contractor
will provide indemnification against all such liens for labor performed and/or materials supplied
or used by the Contractor and/or any other person in connection with the Services undertaken by
the Contractor, in accordance with Section 15, below.

15. INDEMNIFICATION.

a. The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and
each of its directors, officers, contractors, employees, agents, and consultants (collectively, the
“District Indemnitees”), from and against any and all claims, demands, losses, liabilities, actions,
lawsuits, damages, and expenses (the “Claims”), including reasonable legal expenses and
attorneys’ fees actually incurred, by the District Indemnitees arising directly or indirectly, in whole
or in part, out of the errors or omissions, negligence, willful misconduct, or any criminal or tortious
act or omission of the Contractor or any of its subcontractors, officers, agents, or employees, in
connection with this Agreement and/or the Contractor’s performance of the Services or work
pursuant to this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement or otherwise to the
contrary, the Contractor is not obligated to indemnify the District Indemnitees for the negligence
of the District or the negligence of any other District Indemnitee, except the Contractor. Except
as otherwise provided by applicable law, this indemnification obligation will not be limited in any
way by any limitation on the amount or types of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by
or for the Contractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability acts, or other employee benefit
acts, provided that in no event shall the Contractor be liable for special/consequential or punitive
damages.

b. In the event the Contractor fails to assume the defense of any Claims under
this Section 15 within fifteen (15) days after notice from the District of the existence of such Claim,
the District may assume the defense of the Claim with counsel of its own selection, and the
Contractor will pay all reasonable expenses of such counsel. Insurance coverage requirements
specified in this Agreement shall in no way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the
terms of this indemnification obligation.

c. Insurance coverage requirements specified in this Agreement shall in no
way lessen or limit the liability of the Contractor under the terms of this indemnification obligation.
The Contractor shall obtain, at its own expense, any additional insurance that it deems necessary
with respect to its obligations under this Agreement, including the indemnity obligations set forth

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 7



in Section 15. This defense and indemnification obligation shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

16.  ASSIGNMENT. The Contractor shall not assign this Agreement or parts thereof,
or its respective duties, without the express written consent of the District. Any attempted
assignment of this Agreement in whole or in part with respect to which the District has not
consented, in writing, shall be null and void and of no effect whatsoever.

17. SUB-CONTRACTORS. The Contractor is solely and fully responsible to the
District for the performance of all Services in accordance with the terms set forth in this
Agreement, whether performed by the Contractor or a subcontractor engaged by the Contractor,
and neither the District’s approval of any subcontractor, suppliers, or materialman, nor the failure
of performance thereof by such persons or entities, will relieve, release, or affect in any manner
the Contractor’s duties, liabilities, or obligations under this Agreement . The Contractor shall not
subcontract any Services without prior written approval by the District. The Contractor agrees
that each and every agreement of the Contractor with any subcontractor to perform Services under
this Agreement shall contain an indemnification provision identical to the one contained in this
Agreement holding the District harmless for the acts of the subcontractor. Prior to commencing
any Services, a subcontractor shall provide evidence of insurance coverage to the District in
accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. The Contractor further agrees that all such
subcontracts shall provide that they may be terminated immediately without cost or penalty upon
termination of this Agreement, other than payment for services rendered prior to the date of any
such termination.

18. TERMINATION. In addition to the termination provisions contained in Section 2,
above, this Agreement may be terminated for convenience by the Contractor upon delivery of
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the District and by the District by giving the Contractor
thirty (30) days’ prior written notice. Each Party may terminate this Agreement for cause at any
time upon written notice to the other Party setting forth the cause for termination and the notified
Party’s failure to cure the cause to the reasonable satisfaction of the Party given such notice within
the cure period set forth in Section 19. If this Agreement is terminated, the Contractor shall be
paid for all the Services satisfactorily performed prior to the designated termination date, including
reimbursable expenses due. Said payment shall be made in the normal course of business. Should
either Party to this Agreement be declared bankrupt, make a general assignment for the benefit of
creditors, or commit a substantial and material breach of this Agreement in the view of the other
Party, said other Party shall be excused from rendering or accepting any further performance under
this Agreement. In the event of termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall cooperate with
the District to ensure a timely and efficient transition of all work and work product to the District
or its designees. All time, fees, and costs associated with such transition shall not be billed by the
Contractor to the District.

19. DEFAULT. If either Party fails to perform in accordance with the terms,
covenants, and conditions of this Agreement, or is otherwise in default of any of the terms of this
Agreement, the non-defaulting party shall deliver written notice to the defaulting party of the
default, at the address specified in Section 20 below, and the defaulting party will have ten (10)
days from and after receipt of the notice to cure the default. If the default is not of a type which
can be cured within such ten (10)-day period and the defaulting party gives written notice to the

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 8



non-defaulting party within such ten (10)-day period that it is actively and diligently pursuing a
cure, the defaulting party will have a reasonable period of time given the nature of the default
following the end of the ten (10)-day period to cure the default, provided that the defaulting party
is at all times within the additional time period actively and diligently pursuing the cure. If any
default under this Agreement is not cured as described above, the non-defaulting party will, in
addition to any other legal or equitable remedy, have the right to terminate this Agreement and
enforce the defaulting party’s obligations pursuant to this Agreement by an action for injunction
or specific performance.

20. NOTICES. Any notice or communication required under this Agreement must be
in writing, and may be given personally, sent via nationally recognized overnight carrier service,
or by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested. If given by registered or certified mail,
the same will be deemed to have been given and received on the first to occur of: (i) actual receipt
by any of the addressees designated below as the party to whom notices are to be sent; or (ii) three
days after a registered or certified letter containing such notice, properly addressed, with postage
prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail. If personally delivered or sent via nationally
recognized overnight carrier service, a notice will be deemed to have been given and received on
the first to occur of: (i) one business day after being deposited with a nationally recognized
overnight air courier service; or (ii) delivery to the party to whom it is addressed. Any party hereto
may at any time, by giving written notice to the other party hereto as provided in this Section 20
of this Agreement, designate additional persons to whom notices or communications will be given,
and designate any other address in substitution of the address to which such notice or
communication will be given. Such notices or communications will be given to the parties at their
addresses set forth below:

District: Leyden Rock Metropolitan District
c/o Advance HOA Management
17865 W. 83" Drive
Arvada, CO 80007
Attention: Katie Call
Phone:  (303) 482-2213 x 360
Email:  Kkatie.call@advancehoa.com

With a Copy to: WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
2154 E. Commons Ave., Suite 2000
Centennial, CO 80122
Attention: Megan J. Murphy, Esq.
Phone:  (303) 858-1800
E-mail:  mmurphy@wbapc.com

Contractor: Keesen Landscape Management, Inc.
3355 South Umatilla Street
Englewood, CO 80110
Attention: Devon Finn
Phone: (303) 591-1778

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 9



Email: dfinn@keesenlandscape.com

21.  AUDITS. The District shall have the right to audit, with reasonable notice, any of
the Contractor’s books and records solely as are necessary to substantiate any invoices and
payments under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, receipts, time sheets, payroll, and
personnel records) and the Contractor agrees to maintain adequate books and records for such
purposes during the term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years after termination of
this Agreement and to make the same available to the District at all reasonable times and for so
long thereafter as there may remain any unresolved question or dispute regarding any item
pertaining thereto.

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement
between the Parties hereto relating to the Services, and sets forth the rights, duties, and obligations
of each to the other as of this date, and hereby supersedes any and all prior negotiations,
representations, agreements, or arrangements of any kind with respect to the Services, whether
written or oral. Any prior agreements, promises, negotiations, or representations not expressly set
forth in this Agreement are of no force and effect. This Agreement may not be modified except
by a writing executed by both the Contractor and the District.

23. BINDING AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding on the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties hereto.

24.  NO WAIVER. No waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of any other of the provisions of this Agreement, nor shall such
waiver constitute a continuing waiver unless otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, nor
shall the waiver of any default be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default.

25. GOVERNING LAW.

a. Venue. Venue for all actions arising from this Agreement shall be in the
District Court in and for the county in which the District is located. The Parties expressly and
irrevocably waive any objections or rights which may affect venue of any such action, including,
but not limited to, forum non-conveniens or otherwise. At the District’s request, the Contractor
shall carry on its duties and obligations under this Agreement during any legal proceedings and
the District shall continue to pay for the Services performed under this Agreement until and unless
this Agreement is otherwise terminated.

b. Choice of Law. Colorado law shall apply to any dispute, without regard to
conflict of law principles that would result in the application of any law other than the law of the State
of Colorado.

c. Litigation. At the District’s request, the Contractor will consent to being
joined in litigation between the District and third parties, but such consent shall not be construed
as an admission of fault or liability. The Contractor shall not be responsible for delays in the
performance of the Services caused by factors beyond its reasonable control including delays
caused by Act of God, accidents, failure of any governmental or other regulatory authority to act

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 10



in a timely manner, or failure of the District to furnish timely information or to approve or
disapprove of Contractor’s Services in a timely manner.

26. GOOD FAITH OF PARTIES. In the performance of this Agreement, or in
considering any requested approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time, the Parties agree
that each will act in good faith and will not act unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously, or
unreasonably withhold, condition, or delay any approval, acceptance, consent, or extension of time
required or requested pursuant to this Agreement.

27.  SUBJECT TO ANNUAL APPROPRIATION AND BUDGET. The District does
not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation
whatsoever. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that the District’s obligations under
this Agreement shall extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by
the Board and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement, or liability in any ensuing
fiscal year beyond the then-current fiscal year. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed
or interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by the District, or as creating a multiple-
fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of the District or statutory
debt limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the
Constitution of the State of Colorado. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge
or to create a lien on any class or source of District funds. The District’s obligations under this
Agreement exist subject to annual budgeting and appropriations, and shall remain subject to the
same for the entire term of this Agreement.

28. GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITY. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed
to waive, limit, or otherwise modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be
available by law to the District, its respective officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any
other person acting on behalf of the District and, in particular, governmental immunity afforded or
available to the District pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, §§ 24-10-101, et
seq., C.R.S.

29. NEGOTIATED PROVISIONS. This Agreement shall not be construed more
strictly against one Party than against the other merely by virtue of the fact that it may have been
prepared by counsel for one of the Parties, it being acknowledged that each Party has contributed
to the preparation of this Agreement.

30. SEVERABILITY. If any portion of this Agreement is declared by any court of
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the
validity of any other portion of this Agreement which shall remain in full force and effect, the
intention being that such portions are severable. In addition, in lieu of such void or unenforceable
provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Agreement a provision similar in terms
to such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision so that the resulting reformed provision is legal,
valid, and enforceable.

31.  NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. It is expressly understood and agreed that
enforcement of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and all rights of action relating to such
enforcement, shall be strictly reserved to the Parties and nothing contained in this Agreement shall
give or allow any such claim or right of action by any other third party on such Agreement. It is

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 11



the express intention of the Parties that any person other than Parties receiving services or benefits
under this Agreement shall be deemed to be an incidental beneficiary only.

32. OPEN RECORDS. The Parties understand that all material provided or produced
under this Agreement may be subject to the Colorado Open Records Act, §§ 24-72-202, et seq.,
C.R.S.

33. WARRANTY AND PERMITS. The Contractor shall and does by this Agreement
guarantee and warrant that all workmanship, materials, and equipment furnished, installed, or
performed for the accomplishment of the Services (collectively, the “Work”) will be of good
quality and new, unless otherwise required or permitted by this Agreement. The Contractor further
warrants that the Work will conform to all requirements of this Agreement and the applicable
building code and all other applicable laws, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations of any
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Work. All materials are subject to the
satisfaction and acceptance of the District, but payments for the completed Work will not constitute
final acceptance nor discharge the obligation of the Contractor to correct defects at a later date.
Such warranties set forth in this Agreement are in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other
warranties prescribed by Colorado law.

a. The Contractor hereby warrants the Work for a period of one (1) year from
the date of completion and initial acceptance of the Work. The Contractor will immediately correct
or replace any Work that is defective or not conforming to this Agreement at its sole expense to
the reasonable satisfaction of the District. The Contractor’s guarantees and warranties shall in all
cases survive termination of this Agreement. This warranty shall be enforceable by the District,
its successors and assigns.

b. Prior to final payment for any Services involving Work, and at any time
thereafter but before the final inspection, as set forth below, the Contractor and the District shall,
at the request of the District, conduct an inspection of the Work for the purpose of determining
whether any Work is defective or otherwise not in conformance with this Agreement. The
Contractor’s fees and costs associated with the inspection shall be included in the compensation
schedule set forth in Exhibit B and shall not be billed separately to the District. In the event the
Contractor neglects to include the fees and costs associated with the inspection in the compensation
schedule sect forth in Exhibit B, the Contractor is deemed to have waived these fees and costs.
After completion of the inspection, the District will provide the Contractor with written notice of
any Work requiring corrective action. The Contractor agrees to correct or replace the defective
Work within a reasonable time, as agreed to by the Parties, but in no event later than thirty (30)
calendar days from the date of notice from the District, unless otherwise agreed to by the District.

c. The Contractor agrees that if warranty issues appear before payment has
been made under this Agreement, the District may withhold payment until such warranty issues
are resolved to the District’s satisfaction. If repair or replacement of any warranty or defective
Work is not made by the Contractor promptly upon request by the District as set forth in this
Agreement, in addition to any other remedy, the District may withhold any payment the District
may owe to the Contractor, including payments under other contracts or agreements related or
unrelated to the Work and Services.

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 12



d. The Contractor shall promptly notify the District of any Work, whether by
the Contractor, its subcontractors or any third parties, which the Contractor believes to be defective
or not conforming with this Agreement.

e. The Contractor shall, at its expense, obtain all permits, licenses, and other
consents required from all governmental authorities, utility companies, and appropriate parties
under any restrictive covenants in connection with the Work. The Contractor shall comply with
all the terms and conditions of all permits, licenses, and consents.

f. At or around eleven (11) months, but no more than one (1) year, after the
completion and acceptance of the Work, the Contractor and the District shall, at the request of the
District, conduct a final inspection of the Work for the purpose of determining whether any Work
is defective or otherwise not in conformance with this Agreement. The Contractor’s fees and costs
associated with the inspection shall be included in the compensation schedule set forth in Exhibit
B and shall not be billed separately to the District. In the event the Contractor neglects to include
the fees and costs associated with the inspection in the compensation schedule set forth in Exhibit
B, the Contractor is deemed to have waived these fees and costs. After completion of the final
inspection, the District will provide the Contractor with written notice of any Work requiring
corrective action. In the event the Contractor does not correct or replace the defective Work within
thirty (30) calendar days from the date of notice from the District, or within such other reasonable
time as agreed to by the Parties, the District may correct or replace the defective Work and the
Contractor shall reimburse the District for the related costs and fees.

34. TAX EXEMPT STATUS. The District is exempt from Colorado state sales and
use taxes. Accordingly, taxes from which the District is exempt shall not be included in any
invoices submitted to the District. The District shall, upon request, furnish Contractor with a copy
of its certificate of tax exemption. Contractor and subcontractors shall apply to the Colorado
Department of Revenue, Sales Tax Division, for an Exemption Certificate and purchase materials
tax free. The Contractor and subcontractors shall be liable for exempt taxes paid due to failure to
apply for Exemption Certificates or for failure to use said certificate.

35. COUNTERPART EXECUTION. This Agreement may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which may be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute
one and the same instrument. Executed copies hereof may be delivered by facsimile or email of a
PDF document, and, upon receipt, shall be deemed originals and binding upon the signatories
hereto, and shall have the full force and effect of the original for all purposes, including the rules
of evidence applicable to court proceedings.

[Signature pages follow]

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 13



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on the date first
above written. By the signature of its representative below, each Party affirms that it has taken all
necessary action to authorize said representative to execute this Agreement.

DISTRICT:

LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN
DISTRICT, a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado

Brett Veynon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24,2024 12:23 MDT)
Officer of the District

ATTEST:

Scott J. Plummer

Scott J PIllmmnr(Allg 242024 11:20 MDT)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
Attorneys at Law

General Counsel for the District

District’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Snow Removal Services
with Keesen Landscape Management, Inc., dated August 20, 2024

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1249 14



CONTRACTOR:
KEESEN LANDSCAPE MANAGEMENT,
INC., a Colorado corporation

_/;Ziu vWL@ .
)LO\M/\\/ V'I{‘,_iﬂo_

Printed Name
BraveW  Wlang RN

0
L B S —

Title Y

STATE OF COLORADO )

. ) ss.
county oF O UAA__ ) "’

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this % day of FYVALLT
2024, by VMNA NICMD_, as the %ﬂ_\x_\; AA VY w}g@g{, of Keesen Landscape
Management, Inc., 2 Colorado corporation. '

Witness my hand and official seal.

My commission expires: Dgg\ D_%_\QD:Z_JQ

KELSEY ALISE TRUJILLO
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF COLORADO
NOTARY !D 20214017292
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES MAY 3, 2025

e am an o o e

[ .
f——

Notary Public

Contractor’s Signature Page to Independent Contractor Agreement for Snow Removal
Services with Leyden Rock Metropolitan District, dated August 20, 2024

1237.4200, PYQIYPINZ4WX-380565144-1249 15



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1249 A-1



1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401

A-2



1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401

A-3



1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401

A-4



1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401

A-5



EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION SCHEDULE

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 B-1-1



1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401

A-2



EXHIBIT B-1

CONTRACTOR’S COMPLETED W-9

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 A3



Form

(Rev. October 2018)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

» Go to www.irs.gov/FormW3 for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

Keesen Landscape Management, Inc

1 Name (as shown on your income tax return), Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above

following seven boxes.

[J individual/sole proprietor or G Corporation

single-member LLC

Print or type.

[] other (see instructions) »

D S Corporation

[ Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P=Partnership) »
Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check Exemption from FATCA reporting
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the | 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to

certain entities, not individuals; see
instructions on page 3):
D Partnership D Trust/estate

Exempt payee code (if any)

code (if any)

(Applies to accounts maintained outside tha U.S,)

5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.

3355 S Umatilla Street

See Specific Instructions on page 3.

Requester's name and address (optional)

6 Gity, state, and ZIP code
Englewood, CO 80110

7 List account number(s) here (optional)

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuais, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |}, later. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a

TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and
Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

| Social security number

or
[ Employer identification number |

8(4| -10(6|2|2|4|8|3

Part Il Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me}); and
2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a resuit of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3. 1am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part I, later.

Sign i
Here | U ooy OTZure gwa//ww,

Date > 1/3/2024

. [/
General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormWe.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EiN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information
returns include, but are not limited to, the following.

¢ Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

* Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

* Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

* Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

* Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)

* Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)
* Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

e Form 1099-C (canceled debt)

* Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

if you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,
later.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W=9 (Rev. 10-2018)



EXHIBIT C

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

NOTE: All insurance required and provided hereunder shall also comply with the provisions of
Section 11 of this Agreement.

1.

Standard Worker’s Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance covering all
employees of Contractor involved with the performance of the Services, with policy
amounts and coverage in compliance with the laws of the jurisdiction in which the Services
will be performed.

Commercial General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of liability of not less than
$2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage liability; $2,000,000
designated location, general aggregate; and $1,000,000 umbrella. Such insurance will
include coverage for contractual liability, personal injury, and broad form property
damage, and shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive basis
including, but not limited to:

premises operations;

personal injury liability without employment exclusion;

limited contractual;

broad form property damages, including completed operations;

medical payments;

products and completed operations;

independent consultants coverage; and

coverage inclusive of construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and
procedures, employed in the capacity of a construction consultant.

S rhe a0 o

This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification obligations
contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of bodily injury or
property damage.

Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance covering all owned, non-owned, and hired
automobiles used in connection with the performance of the Services, with limits of
liability of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and property
damage. This policy must include coverage extensions to cover the indemnification
obligations contained in this Agreement to the extent caused by or arising out of
bodily injury or property damage.

Any other insurance commonly used by contractors for services of the type to be performed
pursuant to this Agreement.

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 C-1



EXHIBIT C-1

CERTIFICATE(S) OF INSURANCE

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 C-1-1



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

N
ACORD’ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0812712024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER GONTACT  Tasha Felts, TIIA
FAX
Brown & Brown of Tennessee, Inc. P[ !HZEONIEI Ext: (615)385-2860 [AIC, Nol: (615)385-8360
6 Cadillac Drive, Suite 200 EMAL . tlelts@bbtennessee.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Brentwood TN 37027 INSURER A: Travelers Property Casualty Company of America 25674
INSURED INsURer B: The Travelers Indemnity Company of Connecticut 25682
Keesen Landscape Management, Inc. INSURER C :
175 W. Granada Blvd. Suite 202 INSURER D
INSURERE :
Ormond Beach FL 321746365 | ysurerF:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

'L‘-?E TYPE OF INSURANCE fﬂ?i‘i{li WvD POLICY NUMBER (I:M}I;D‘I{Y%} {53‘1‘:‘)%%: LIMITS
€| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE ¢ 1,000,000
DA
[ CLAIMS-MABIE [g OCcouR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) $ 1,000,000
|| MED EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000
A TC2JGLSA-3P330744-TIL-21 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 | pepsonaLaAOvINURY | § 1:000.000
GENL AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2:000,000
poLicy ass Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | § 2:000,000
OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY Ea accident) $ 5,000,000
€ ANy AuTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
| ownED SCHEDULED - TIL- .
A || AUTos onLy AUToS TC2JCAP-3P390756-TIL-21 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY | (Per accident)
$
| D umereLLALIAE | € occuR EACH OCCURRENCE s 10,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB LARMSMADE ZUP-16P13057-21-NF 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 | \corecATE s 10,000,000
oep | € rerenion s 10,000 $
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN XK Fhre || &R TN
B [OFFiCERMENBER EXCLUDEDT o || |N/A UB-45050569-21-51-K 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 [E: EACHACCIDENT i
{Mandatory in NH) EL. DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEE | g 1:000,000
If yes, describe under 1,000,000
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS befow EL.DISEASE -POLICYLIMIT |$ TVYY
] Leased/ Rented Equip $100,000
Inland Marine - ,
A | Builders Risk QT-630- 45014177-TiL-21 10/01/2023 | 10/01/2024 [Limit at Single Location $250,000
L/R Ded $1,000 BR Ded $2,500

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

Leyden Rock Metropolitan District is included as Additional Insured on the General Liability, Automobile and Umbrella policies on a Primary and
Non-Contributory basis as required by written contract. A Waiver of Subrogation applies on all policies as their interest may be per written
contract. A 30 Day Notice of Canceliation applies. The Umbrella policy follows form of the General Liability (including completed operations),
Automobile Liability, and Workers' Compensation policies.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
Advance HOA Management THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

cfo Leyden Rock Metropolitan District ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

W. 82nd Avenue & Leyden Rock D
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

~7

Arvada CO 80007 / 7y
| ééézzﬂ

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING WITH COLORADO SECRETARY OF STATE

1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 D-1



1237.4200, PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1401 Cc-2



The attached Work Order #109747 to Independent Contractor Agreement for Maintenance
Services with Leyden Rock Metropolitan District dated November 20, 2023 (the “Agreement”).
The Parties agree that all terms and conditions of the Agreement apply to the Description of Work
to be Performed set forth in the Work Order.

DISTRICT:

Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24, 2024 12:23 MDT)
Authorized Signor

CONTRACTOR:

Authorized Signor

08/26/2024

Date

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24, 2024 12:23 MDT)

08/24/2024

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1399



The attached Work Order #109561 to Independent Contractor Agreement for Maintenance
Services with Leyden Rock Metropolitan District dated November 20, 2023 (the “Agreement”).
The Parties agree that all terms and conditions of the Agreement apply to the Description of Work
to be Performed set forth in the Work Order.

DISTRICT:

Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24,2024 12:23 MDT)
Authorized Signor

CONTRACTOR:

Authorized Signor

08/26/2024

Date

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1398



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1398



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1398



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1398



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1398



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1398



Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24, 2024 12:23 MDT)

08/24/2024

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1398



The attached Work Order #109160 to Independent Contractor Agreement for Maintenance
Services with Leyden Rock Metropolitan District dated November 20, 2023 (the “Agreement”).
The Parties agree that all terms and conditions of the Agreement apply to the Description of Work
to be Performed set forth in the Work Order.

DISTRICT:

Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24, 2024 12:23 MDT)
Authorized Signor

CONTRACTOR:

Authorized Signor

08/26/2024

Date

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1397



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1397



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1397



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1397



Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24, 2024 12:23 MDT)

08/24/2024

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1397



The attached Work Order #109139 to Independent Contractor Agreement for Maintenance
Services with Leyden Rock Metropolitan District dated November 20, 2023 (the “Agreement”).
The Parties agree that all terms and conditions of the Agreement apply to the Description of Work
to be Performed set forth in the Work Order.

DISTRICT:

Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24,2024 12:23 MDT)
Authorized Signor

CONTRACTOR:

Authorized Signor

08/26/2024

Date

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1400



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1400



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1400



1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1400



Brett Vernon

Brett Vernon (Aug 24,2024 12:23 MDT)

08/24/2024

1237.4200; PYQJYPINZ4WX-380565144-1400



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

EXHIBIT B
TO
INDENTURE OF TRUST
(Form of Project Fund Requisition)

Requisition No. 18

LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
INDENTURE OF TRUST
DATED OCTOBER 22, 2021
GENERAL OBLIGATION (LIMITED TAX CONVERTIBLE TO UNLIMITED TAX)
REFUNDING AND IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2021

The undersigned District Representative (capitalized terms used herein shall have the
meanings ascribed thereto by the above Indenture) hereby makes a requisition from the Project
Fund held by UMB Bank, n.a., as Trustee under the Indenture, and in support thereof states:

1. The amount to be paid or reimbursed pursuant hereto is $54,002.70.

2. The name and address of the person, firm, or corporation to whom payment is
due or has been made is as follows:

Leyden Rock Metropolitan District

3. Payment is due to the above person for (describe nature of the obligation):

Payment of capital invoices

4. The amount to be paid or reimbursed pursuant hereto shall be transmitted by the
Trustee as follows (wire transfer or other transmission instructions):

See previously provided wire instructions

5. The above payment obligations have been or will be properly incurred, is or will be a proper
charge against the Project Fund and have not been the basis of any previous withdrawal. The
disbursement requested herein will be used solely for the payment of Project Costs.

6. With respect to this requested disbursement, the District (i) certifies it has reviewed any wire
instructions set forth in this requisition to confirm such wire instructions are accurate, (ii) to the
extent permitted by law and without waiting any rights or privileges under the Colorado
Governmental Immunity Act, as may be amended, agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the
Trustee from and against any and all claim, demand, loss, liability, or expense sustained,
including but not limited to attorney fees, and expenses resulting directly or indirectly as a result
of making the disbursement in accordance with this requisition, and (iii) agrees they will not seek
recourse from the Trustee as a result of losses incurred by it for making the disbursement in
accordance with this requisition.



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 28th day of August, 2024.

Signed by:

Brudt Vumon

District Representative



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

Leyden Rock Metro District
Requisition Summary

Bond Requisition Number  Invoice number Vendor Name Date Invoice Amount  Date Paid
Requisition No. 1 Total 2,641,085.68 01/04/23
Requisition No. 2 Total 237,457.05 01/06/23
Requisition No. 3 Total 124,750.00 01/12/23
Requisition No. 4 Total 47,807.79 01/25/23
Requisition No. 5 Total 8,347.49 02/22/23
Requisition No. 6 Total 7,498.75 03/17/23
Requisition No. 7 Total 84,504.79 06/08/23
Requisition No. 8 Total 110,682.19 06/30/23
Requisition No. 9 Total 54,211.10 08/31/23
Requisition No. 10 Total 56,513.29 09/28/23
Requisition No. 11 Total 53,930.50 11/13/23
Requisition No. 12 Total 4,736.15 12/14/23
Requisition No. 13 Total 47,360.23 01/11/24
Requisition No. 14 Total 12,734.95 02/13/24
Requisition No. 15 Total 158,021.85 03/11/24
Requisition No. 16 Total 62,256.65 05/15/24
Requisition No. 17 Total 61,727.60 05/30/24
Requisition No. 18 6657 Communication Construction & Engineering Inc. 07/31/24 9,871.80

Requisition No. 18 6658 Communication Construction & Engineering Inc. 07/31/24 26,910.45

Requisition No. 18 7910 The Architerra Group, Inc. 07/09/24 4,710.00

Requisition No. 18 7925 The Architerra Group, Inc. 08/06/24 10,145.45

Requisition No. 18 7882 The Architerra Group, Inc. 07/23/24 2,365.00

Requisition No. 18 Total 54,002.70

Total Requisiti

oned

$  3,827,628.76



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

Communication Construction & Engineering, Inc.

901 E 73rd Ave
Denver, CO 80229-6816

INVOICE
6657

Leyden Rock Metropolitan District 07.31.2024

C/O Brett Vernon 08.30.2024

Norm
DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT
Pricing below for work at Leyden Rock on West side of Yule way. We will apply for address 0 0.00
assignment, Electrical permit, Xcel application, coordination for inspections. We will install a 200amp
meter pedestals w/100amp main breaker panel to supply power to one monument sign & GFCI
outlet. We will install a plastic pull box next to the sign to extend a connection to the existing
monument and install a GFCI outlet on the back. Work based on drawings provided.

Yule Way Existing Monument 0 0.00
Mobilization each way per truck/per mile. 4 130.00 520.00
(Labor & Equip.) Directional bore and place a 1"UL HDPE conduit. Does not include spoils control 164 12.00 1,968.00
and potholing.

Vac Trailer for utility potholing and spoils control during directional drilling 1 1,920.00 1,920.00
(Materials) Provide 1" HDPE UL Listed conduit 165 0.79 130.35
(Materials) Provide 1" Shurlock couplings 2 17.00 34.00
(Materials) Provide 2" PVC Conduit. 10 3.24 32.40
(Materials) Provide 2"x24"x90 with bell. 2 7.95 15.90
Electrical labor to install meters panels & hardware 1,950.00 0.00
Electrical connections to monument & GFCI outlet 1,625.00 0.00
Install a 11"x 18"x 12" Handhole. 360.00 360.00
Provide a 11"x 18"x 12" Plastic Handhole. 1 70.20 70.20
Project Manager Labor (Per Hour) 2 165.00 330.00

0 0.00
0 0.00

Assumptions: 0 0.00 0.00

Unless stated otherwise, this Estimate does not include permit fees, traffic control, or bonds.

All Engineering plans will be designed to meet the State of Colorado Subsurface Utility Engineering
specifications for ASCE Quality Level D standards, or no higher than the Quality Level stated. If any
agency requires a higher Quality Level than bid additional charges will apply.

Wildlife, environmental, or stormwater impact studies are not included in this quote.

Force Majeure- CCE is not responsible for any unforeseen circumstances.

As-built plans are not included unless specifically mentioned in this Estimate.

Price subject to change due to material cost increases beyond our control such as tariffs, or AHJ fee
increases implemented after the date of this proposal

CCE will not perform private utility locates and CCE is not responsible for all un-located utilities
and/or facilities.

Pricing is based on favorable soil conditions. If we encounter difficult soils including but not limited to



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

sandy or rocky conditions, or buried debris, there will be additional charges.

We will make three bore attempts. If we are unsuccessful there will be a $1,700.00 minimum charge
and we will renegotiate.

All work will be done during normal business hours. If during permitting any unknown work hour
restrictions are found then there may be additional cost.

If CCE will be utilizing an existing conduit, there will be additional charges for damaged, crushed, or
contaminated conduit.

All potholes in asphalt will be patched with cold patch only. Any concrete potholes will be restored
based on AHJ regulations and this will be an additional charge. If the AHJ requires full panel
replacement it will be an additional charge.

This estimate is standalone and is for the location listed in the scope of work above and is not to be
connected with any other projects that have been performed in the past or will be started in the
future for any other location unless specified by CCE.

This estimate must be signed and also include any customer issued PO's in acceptance to get
placed on the job board and scheduled. By signing this Estimate the signor understands and agrees
to the above listed assumptions.

Pricing below for Leyden Rock on the east side Yule Way. ROW permit, Electrical permit & Traffic 0 0.00
control to directional bore a 1"UL HDPE pipe across Yule Way 75' and place a new plastic pull box to

extend wiring to a GFCI outlet & an uplight on rocket post to a future monument. Specific location to

be staked by the HOA.

Mobilization 3 130.00 390.00
Traffic control per day. 1 400.00 400.00
(Labor & Equip.) Directional bore and place a 1" conduit. Does not include spoils control and 75 12.00 900.00
potholing.

Vac Trailer for utility potholing and spoils control during directional drilling 1 1,920.00 1,920.00
(Materials) Provide 1" HDPE UL Listed conduit 75 0.79 59.25
Install mule tape in empty conduit. 75 0.75 56.25
Provide Mule Tape (per ft). 75 0.07 5.25
Install a 11"x 18"x 12" plastic Handhole. 1 360.00 360.00
Provide a 11"x 18"x 12" plastic Handhole. 1 70.20 70.20
Electrical connections to Rocket post light & GFCI outlet on east side 0 1,625.00 0.00
Project Manager Labor (Per Hour) 2 165.00 330.00

$9,871.80



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

Communication Construction & Engineering, Inc.

901 E 73rd Ave
Denver, CO 80229-6816

INVOICE
6658

Katie Call 07.31.2024

Leyden Rock Metropolitan District c/o Advance HOA Management 08.30.2024

17865 W. 83rd Drive

Arvada, Colorado 80007

United States

Norm
DESCRIPTION QTY RATE AMOUNT
Pricing below for work at Leyden Rock- Entrance #2 at Culebra St. We will apply for a ROW permit & 0 0.00
Electrical permit to directional bore 740' to place a 2"UL HDPE pipe from the existing meter pedestal
feeding the irrigation controllers behind the home on W. 84th Ave. There will be 4 pull boxes placed
along the way to aid in pulling in a 2AWG CU conductors. At the east side of the street we will stub
out a 1"UL HDPE pipe 10' to feed a rocket post GFCI outlet & LED uplight to a future monument.
Apply for an address assignment, electrical permit, Xcel application, coordination for inspections 1 1,430.00 1,430.00
Obtaining Right of way permit. 1 360.00 360.00
Cost of Right of way permit. 1 540.00 540.00
Note: Permit costs are estimated and additional costs will be pass through.
Obtaining Traffic Control Plans per sheet. 1 195.00 195.00
Traffic control per day. 2 960.00 1,920.00
Mobilization 6 130.00 780.00
(Labor & Equip.) Directional bore and place a 2" conduit. Does not include spoils control and 740 12.00 8,880.00
potholing.
Install a 11"x 18"x 12" Plastic Handhole. 4 360.00 1,440.00
Provide a 11"x 18"x 12" Plastic Handhole. 4 70.20 280.80
(Materials) Provide 2" PVC Conduit. 740 3.24 2,397.60
(Materials) Provide 2" Shurlock couplings. 6 16.75 100.50
(Materials) Provide 2"x12"x90 with bell. 6 4.00 24.00
(Materials) Provide 1" HDPE UL Listed conduit 20 0.79 15.80
(Materials) Provide 1" Shurlock couplings 2 17.00 34.00
Install mule tape in empty conduit. 740 0.75 555.00
Provide Mule Tape (per ft). 740 0.07 51.80
Install 2AWG CU wiring& submersible splices to provide 10-amps at each GFCI 10,692.5 0.00

0

Install a duplex GFCI outlet & LED uplight on rocket posts 1,625.00 0.00
Project Manager Labor (Per Hour) 2 165.00 330.00

0 0.00



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

Assumptions: 0 0.00 0.00
Unless stated otherwise, this Estimate does not include permit fees, traffic control, or bonds.

All Engineering plans will be designed to meet the State of Colorado Subsurface Utility Engineering
specifications for ASCE Quiality Level D standards, or no higher than the Quality Level stated. If any
agency requires a higher Quality Level than bid additional charges will apply.

Wildlife, environmental, or stormwater impact studies are not included in this quote.

Force Majeure- CCE is not responsible for any unforeseen circumstances.

As-built plans are not included unless specifically mentioned in this Estimate.

Price subject to change due to material cost increases beyond our control such as tariffs, or AHJ fee
increases implemented after the date of this proposal

CCE will not perform private utility locates and CCE is not responsible for all un-located utilities
and/or facilities.

Pricing is based on favorable soil conditions. If we encounter difficult soils including but not limited to
sandy or rocky conditions, or buried debris, there will be additional charges.

We will make three bore attempts. If we are unsuccessful there will be a $1,700.00 minimum charge
and we will renegotiate.

All work will be done during normal business hours. If during permitting any unknown work hour
restrictions are found then there may be additional cost.

If CCE will be utilizing an existing conduit, there will be additional charges for damaged, crushed, or
contaminated conduit.

All potholes in asphalt will be patched with cold patch only. Any concrete potholes will be restored
based on AHJ regulations and this will be an additional charge. If the AHJ requires full panel
replacement it will be an additional charge.

This estimate is standalone and is for the location listed in the scope of work above and is not to be
connected with any other projects that have been performed in the past or will be started in the
future for any other location unless specified by CCE.

This estimate must be signed and also include any customer issued PQO's in acceptance to get
placed on the job board and scheduled. By signing this Estimate the signor understands and agrees
to the above listed assumptions.

Separated costs below for boring across to the west side of Culebra St to the existing monument 0 0.00
approx. 135' to place a 2"HDPE pipe to a new pull box and then extending circuit wiring to a GFCI

outlet on the back of the monument and connecting the wiring to the existing wiring feeding the

monument. Includes Traffic control & permit estimations. Actual permit costs will be invoiced.

Mobilization 3 130.00 390.00
Provide electrical permit extension 1 455.00 455.00
Obtaining Right of way permit at a later date 1 360.00 360.00
Cost of Right of way permit. 1 585.00 585.00
Note: Permit costs are estimated and additional costs will be pass through.

Traffic control per day. 1 960.00 960.00
Obtaining Traffic Control Plans per sheet. 1 195.00 195.00
(Labor & Equip.) Directional bore and place a 2" conduit. Does not include spoils control and 135 12.00 1,620.00
potholing.

Vac Trailer for utility potholing and spoils control during directional drilling 1 1,920.00 1,920.00
(Materials) Provide 2" HDPE Conduit 135 2.45 330.75
Install a 11"x 18"x 12" Handhole. 1 360.00 360.00
Provide a 11"x 18"x 12" Plastic Handhole. 1 70.20 70.20
Provide & install wire & submersible splices 0 1,027.00 0.00
Provide & install electrical GFCI outlet & connection to monument from east side pull box 0 5,037.50 0.00
Project Manager Labor (Per Hour) 2 165.00 330.00

$26,910.45



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

Invoice terms are net 30. 1.5% interest per month and any attorney
fees will be charged on invoices not paid in 30 days.

To pay with a credit card, a 3.4% processing fee will be added.
Contact your Sales Rep to have this set up.

We appreciate the opportunity to work with you and look forward to doing so again in the future.
Page 3 of 3



DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

THE ARCHITERRA GROUP, INC
5881 S. Deframe St

Littleton, CO 80127
303.948.0766

BILL TO:

Ms. Megan J. Murphy

White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron
2154 E Commons Ave

Ste 2000

Centennial, CO 80122

PROJECT

2309/Leyden Rock Master Planning

INVOICE #

7910

DATE

7/9/2024

DUE DATE

8/8/2024

P.O. #

DESCRIPTION

TOTAL

DESCRIPTION:

LABOR:

K Lietzke - 0.5 hrs @ $75/hr

L Dominguez - 11.5 hrs @ $115/hr
Labor Subtotal

CONSULTANTS:
Elevation Consulting Group (inv 1771)

Prepared for and attended pre-application meeting with the City of Arvada. Obtained meeting
notes, conducted past meeting follow-up and misc. coordination.

37.50
1,322.50
1,360.00

3,350.00

Contract Amount Contract Remaining Percent Complete

$223,585.00 $94,197.65

58%

$4,710.00

The Architerra Group, Inc. thanks you for your business. Please

indicate the invoice number on your check.




DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

THE ARCHITERRA GROUP, INC INVOICE # 7925
5881 S. Deframe St
Littleton, CO 80127 DATE 8/6/2024
303.948.0766
DUE DATE 9/5/2024
P.O. #
BILL TO:
Ms. Megan J. Murphy
White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron
2154 E Commons Ave
Ste 2000
Centennial, CO 80122
PROJECT 2309/Leyden Rock Master Planning
DESCRIPTION TOTAL
DESCRIPTION:
Design development for project sites and misc. coordination.
LABOR:
J St. George-Schreder - 33.25 hrs @ $85/hr 2,826.25
L Dominguez - 62.25 hrs @ $115/hr 7,158.75
D Pearson - 0.5 hrs @ $180/hr 90.00
A Littlefield - 0.5 hrs @ $60/hr 30.00
Labor Subtotal 10,105.00
EXPENSES:
62 sq ft @ $0.35/sq ft B/W Bond Plotting - Plain Paper 21.70
25 sq ft @ $.75/sq ft Color Plotting - Plain Paper 18.75
Expenses Subtotal 40.45
§10,145.45

Contract Amount Contract Remaining Percent Complete

$223,585.00 $84,052.20

62%

The Architerra Group, Inc. thanks you for your business. Please
indicate the invoice number on your check.




DocuSign Envelope ID: BACC6EFD-4D63-4576-A084-57899EBBC688

THE ARCHITERRA GROUP, INC INVOICE # 7882
5881 S. Deframe St
Littleton, CO 80127 DATE 6/10/2024
303.948.0766
DUE DATE 7/10/2024
P.O. #
BILL TO:
Ms. Megan J. Murphy
White Bear Ankele Tanaka & Waldron
2154 E Commons Ave
Ste 2000
Centennial, CO 80122
PROJECT 2309/Leyden Rock Master Planning
DESCRIPTION TOTAL
DESCRIPTION:
Prepared pre-application materials for City of Arvada and misc. coordination.
LABOR:
K Lietzke - 7 hrs @ $75/hr 525.00
L Dominguez - 16 hrs @ $115/hr 1,840.00
$2,365.00

Contract Amount Contract Remaining Percent Complete

$223,585.00 $98,907.65

56%

The Architerra Group, Inc. thanks you for your business. Please

indicate the invoice number on your check.




DocuSign

Certificate Of Completion

Envelope Id: BACC6EFD4D634576A08457899EBBC688 Status: Completed
Subject: Complete with Docusign: 2021 Project Fund Requisition No. 18.pdf

Client Name: LRMD

Client Number: 011

Source Envelope:

Document Pages: 11 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator:
Certificate Pages: 5 Initials: O CLA Operations

AutoNav: Enabled 220 S 6th St Ste 300
Envelopeld Stamping: Enabled Minneapolis, MN 55402-1418
Time Zone: (UTC-08:00) Pacific Time (US & Canada) Holly.Hayes@claconnect.com

IP Address: 47.4.82.244

Record Tracking

Status: Original Holder: CLA Operations Location: DocuSign
8/28/2024 1:42:58 PM Holly.Hayes@claconnect.com

Signer Events Sighature Timestamp

Brett Vernon Sent: 8/28/2024 1:53:16 PM

brett.vernon@leydenrocklife.com Viewed: 9/4/2024 9:19:12 AM

Security Level: Email, Account Authentication Signed: 9/4/2024 9:19:36 AM

(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style
Using IP Address: 71.218.123.26

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:
Accepted: 9/4/2024 9:19:12 AM
ID: 7048c062-ele2-4c35-9b65-e43266a57435

In Person Signer Events Sighature Timestamp
Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp
Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp
Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp
Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp
Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Allison L. Williams Sent: 8/28/2024 1:53:16 PM
allison.l.williams@claconnect.com co PI E D Viewed: 9/4/2024 9:37:29 AM
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication
(None)
Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Not Offered via DocuSign
Witness Events Signature Timestamp
Notary Events Sighature Timestamp
Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 8/28/2024 1:53:16 PM
Certified Delivered Security Checked 9/4/2024 9:19:12 AM
Signing Complete Security Checked 9/4/2024 9:19:36 AM

Completed Security Checked 9/4/2024 9:19:36 AM



Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure



Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure created on: 2/12/2019 6:04:21 AM
Parties agreed to: Brett Vernon

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE

From time to time, CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (we, us or Company) may be required by law to
provide to you certain written notices or disclosures. Described below are the terms and
conditions for providing to you such notices and disclosures electronically through the DocuSign
system. Please read the information below carefully and thoroughly, and if you can access this
information electronically to your satisfaction and agree to this Electronic Record and Signature
Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to
use electronic records and signatures’ before clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign
system.

Getting paper copies

At any time, you may request from us a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by us. You will have the ability to download and print documents we send
to you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if you
elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a limited period of time
(usually 30 days) after such documents are first sent to you. After such time, if you wish for us to
send you paper copies of any such documents from our office to you, you will be charged a
$0.00 per-page fee. You may request delivery of such paper copies from us by following the
procedure described below.

Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from us electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and tell us that thereafter you want to receive required notices and disclosures
only in paper format. How you must inform us of your decision to receive future notices and
disclosure in paper format and withdraw your consent to receive notices and disclosures
electronically is described below.

Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed at which we can complete certain steps in transactions with you and delivering services to
you because we will need first to send the required notices or disclosures to you in paper format,
and then wait until we receive back from you your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to
receive required notices and consents electronically from us or to sign electronically documents
from us.

All notices and disclosures will be sent to you electronically



Unless you tell us otherwise in accordance with the procedures described herein, we will provide
electronically to you through the DocuSign system all required notices, disclosures,
authorizations, acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
available to you during the course of our relationship with you. To reduce the chance of you
inadvertently not receiving any notice or disclosure, we prefer to provide all of the required
notices and disclosures to you by the same method and to the same address that you have given
us. Thus, you can receive all the disclosures and notices electronically or in paper format through
the paper mail delivery system. If you do not agree with this process, please let us know as
described below. Please also see the paragraph immediately above that describes the
consequences of your electing not to receive delivery of the notices and disclosures
electronically from us.

How to contact CliftonLarsonAllen LLP:

You may contact us to let us know of your changes as to how we may contact you electronically,
to request paper copies of certain information from us, and to withdraw your prior consent to
receive notices and disclosures electronically as follows:

To contact us by email send messages to: BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com

To advise CliftonLarsonAllen LLP of your new email address

To let us know of a change in your email address where we should send notices and disclosures
electronically to you, you must send an email message to us

at BusinessTechnology(@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request you must state: your
previous email address, your new email address. We do not require any other information from
you to change your email address.

If you created a DocuSign account, you may update it with your new email address through your
account preferences.

To request paper copies from CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

To request delivery from us of paper copies of the notices and disclosures previously provided
by us to you electronically, you must send us an email

to BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request you must state your
email address, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We will bill you for any fees at
that time, if any.

To withdraw your consent with CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

To inform us that you no longer wish to receive future notices and disclosures in electronic
format you may:



1. decline to sign a document from within your signing session, and on the subsequent page,
select the check-box indicating you wish to withdraw your consent, or you may;

ii. send us an email to BusinessTechnology@CLAconnect.com and in the body of such request
you must state your email, full name, mailing address, and telephone number. We do not need

any other information from you to withdraw consent.. The consequences of your withdrawing
consent for online documents will be that transactions may take a longer time to process..

Required hardware and software
The minimum system requirements for using the DocuSign system may change over time. The

current system requirements are found here: https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-
signing-system-requirements.

Acknowledging your access and consent to receive and sign documents electronically

To confirm to us that you can access this information electronically, which will be similar to
other electronic notices and disclosures that we will provide to you, please confirm that you have
read this ERSD, and (i) that you are able to print on paper or electronically save this ERSD for
your future reference and access; or (ii) that you are able to email this ERSD to an email address
where you will be able to print on paper or save it for your future reference and access. Further,
if you consent to receiving notices and disclosures exclusively in electronic format as described
herein, then select the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’ before
clicking ‘CONTINUE’ within the DocuSign system.

By selecting the check-box next to ‘I agree to use electronic records and signatures’, you confirm
that:

e You can access and read this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure; and

e You can print on paper this Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure, or save or send
this Electronic Record and Disclosure to a location where you can print it, for future
reference and access; and

e Until or unless you notify CliftonLarsonAllen LLP as described above, you consent to
receive exclusively through electronic means all notices, disclosures, authorizations,
acknowledgements, and other documents that are required to be provided or made
available to you by CliftonLarsonAllen LLP during the course of your relationship with
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP.


https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements
https://support.docusign.com/guides/signer-guide-signing-system-requirements

OPTION AND GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS OPTION AND GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made effective this
5th day of September , 2024 (“Effective Date”) by and between LEYDEN ROCK
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (f’/k/a LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 10), a quasi-
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Colorado (“Lessor”) and CROWN CASTLE
TOWERS 06-2 LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Lessee”).

1. Lessor’s Property. “Lessor’s Property” shall refer to the parcel of land located in the Jefferson County,
Colorado, as shown on the Tax Map of said County as Tax Parcel Number 20-233-01-015, being further described
on Exhibit “A”.

2. Leased Premises. “Leased Premises” shall refer to that portion of Lessor’s Property consisting of a parcel of
approximately 3,600 square feet as described in the sketch attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. The boundaries of
the Leased Premises may be subject to modification as set forth in Section 7. Notwithstanding Exhibit “B”,
Lessee agrees that the Leased Premises shall be located on Grantor’s Property in a location that is commercially
reasonable for Lessee, the furthest as possible from the residential units located adjacent to Grantor’s Property,
and that complies with all jurisdictional zoning and permitting requirements for the Improvements and Permitted
Use.

3. Grant of Option to Lease. In consideration of Six Thousand Dollars ($6,000.00) (“Option Fee”) to be paid
by Lessee to Lessor within sixty (60) days of Lessee’s execution of this Agreement, Lessor hereby grants to
Lessee the Option, for a period of twenty-four (24) months, commencing on the Effective Date (“Option Period”),
to lease the Leased Premises, on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement (the “Option”).

4. Due Diligence Investigation.

(A) Inspection Rights. During the Option Period, the Option Renewal Period, and the Lease Term, Lessee
shall have the right to analyze the suitability of the Leased Premises for its Permitted Use (as defined herein).
Lessee and its employees, agents, contractors, engineers, and surveyors shall have the right to enter upon Lessor’s
Property to inspect, conduct, perform and examine soil borings, drainage testing, material sampling, surveys and
other geological or engineering tests or studies of Lessor’s Property, to apply for and obtain all licenses and
permits required for Lessee’s Permitted Use from all applicable governmental or regulatory entities, and to do
those things on Lessor’s Property that, in the sole opinion of Lessee, are necessary to determine the physical
condition of Lessor’s Property, the environmental history of Lessor’s Property, Lessor’s title to Lessor’s Property
and the feasibility or suitability of the Leased Premises for Lessee’s Permitted Use, all at Lessee’s expense (the
“Due Diligence”). Activities conducted in connection with Lessee’s Due Diligence shall not be deemed to
constitute exercise of the Option or commencement of construction of the Improvements, as defined in Section
12. Upon completion of Lessee’s Due Diligence activities, Lessee shall promptly restore Lessor’s Property to its
prior condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted.

(B) Temporary Access Road and Easement for Due Diligence. To facilitate Lessee’s Due Diligence, Lessor
hereby grants Lessee and its employees, agents, contractors, engineers and surveyors the right, and an easement
to construct and use a temporary pedestrian and vehicular access roadway from a public road, across Lessor’s
Property, to the Leased Premises. The location of said temporary pedestrian and vehicular access roadway on
Lessor’s Property is shown on Exhibit “B”. Such construction shall not be deemed to constitute exercise of the
Option or commencement of construction of the Improvements, as defined in Section 12, herein.

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 1
PPAB 11175794v3



5. Extension, Termination and Exercise of Option.

(A) Right to Extend Option Period. If the Option is not exercised or terminated by Lessee during the Option
Period, the Option shall be automatically extended for one (1) additional twelve (12) month period (the “Option
Renewal Period”) unless the Option is exercised or terminated by Lessee in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement. Lessee shall pay Lessor the amount of Three Thousand Dollars ($3,000.00) (“Option Extension
Fee”) within sixty (60) days of the commencement of each Option Renewal Period.

(B) Right to Terminate Option. Lessee shall have the right to terminate this Agreement at any time prior to
the expiration of the Option Period or the Option Renewal Period, by sending written notice of termination to
Lessor.

(C) Expiration of Option Period. If, upon expiration of the Option Period or Option Renewal Period, Lessee
has not exercised the Option, this Agreement shall terminate. Upon such termination, neither party shall have
any further rights or duties hereunder. Lessor shall retain the Option Fee and Option Extension Fee previously
paid.

(D) Exercise of Option. Prior to expiration of the Option Period or the Option Renewal Period, Lessee may
exercise the Option by either (i) providing written notice to Lessor of such exercise or (ii) commencing
construction of the Improvements. Upon the first day of the month following such exercise (“Commencement
Date”), the Lease Term, as defined in Section 9 herein, shall commence and the Easements, as defined in Section
8, shall become effective.

6. Lessor’s Cooperation. During the Option Period, the Option Renewal Period, and the Lease Term, Lessor
shall: (i) cooperate with Lessee in its efforts to perform its Due Diligence and to obtain all of the certificates,
permits, licenses and other approvals that Lessee, in its sole discretion, deems necessary for its Permitted Use of
the Leased Premises (‘“Approvals”), including all appeals; and (i1) take no action that would adversely affect the
Leased Premises. Lessor acknowledges that Lessee’s ability to use the Leased Premises is contingent upon Lessee
obtaining and maintaining the Approvals. Additionally, Lessor grants to Lessee and its employees,
representatives, agents, and consultants a limited power of attorney to prepare, execute, submit, file and present
on behalf of Lessor building, permitting, zoning or land-use applications with the appropriate local, state and/or
federal agencies necessary to obtain land use changes, special exceptions, zoning variances, conditional use
permits, special use permits, administrative permits, construction permits, operation permits and/or building
permits. Lessor understands that any such application and/or the satisfaction of any requirements thereof may
require Lessor’s cooperation, which Lessor hereby agrees to provide. Lessor shall not do or permit anything that
will interfere with or negate any Approvals pertaining to the Improvements or Leased Premises or cause them to
be in nonconformance with applicable local, state or federal laws. Lessor agrees to execute such documents as
may be necessary to obtain and thereafter maintain the Approvals, and agrees to be named as the applicant for
said Approvals.

7. Leased Premises; Survey. Following exercise of the Option, Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of a
boundary survey, which shall depict and identify the boundaries of the Leased Premises and the Easements, and
replace and supersede the sketch attached hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Survey”). The Survey shall be deemed to
be incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit “C” even if not physically affixed hereto. The description of the
Leased Premises set forth in Exhibit “C” shall control in the event of discrepancies between Exhibit “B” and
Exhibit “C”.

8. Easements. Effective on the Commencement Date, Lessor grants the following easements and rights-of-way
over, under and upon Lessor’s Property to Lessee, Lessee’s employees, agents, contractors, sublessees, licensees

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 2
PPAB 11175794v3



and their employees, agents and contractors: (i) an easement over such portion of Lessor’s Property as is
reasonably necessary to obtain or comply with any Approvals, including any landscaping requirements therein;
(11) a thirty foot (30”) wide easement in the location shown in Exhibit “B”, as may be amended by Exhibit “C”,
for access, ingress, egress and for construction purposes including without limitation staging and storing of
equipment, vehicles, cranes and materials seven (7) days per week, twenty-four (24) hours per day, for pedestrians
and all types of motor vehicles, to extend from the nearest public right-of-way to the Leased Premises; and (iii) a
utility easement (the “Utility Easement”) in the location shown in Exhibit “B”, as may be amended by
Exhibit “C”, for the installation, repair, replacement and maintenance of utility wires, poles, fiber, cables,
conduits and pipes; provided that in the event that any public utility is unable or unwilling to use the Utility
Easement in the location shown in Exhibit “B”, as may be amended by Exhibit “C”, at the sole option of Lessee,
Lessor shall grant an alternate easement either to Lessee or directly to the public utility at no cost and in a location
acceptable to Lessee and the public utility (collectively, the “Easements”). TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the
Easements for the purposes provided during the Lease Term and thereafter for a reasonable period of time for
Lessee to remove its Improvements.

9. Lease Term. Effective upon the Commencement Date, Lessor leases the Leased Premises to Lessee for a
period of five (5) years (“Initial Term”). This Agreement shall automatically be extended for seven (7) additional
terms of five (5) years each (each a “Renewal Term”) (the Initial Term and Renewal Terms are together the
“Lease Term”), unless this Agreement is terminated pursuant to the provisions set forth herein.

10. Lessee’s Right to Terminate; Effect of Termination by Lessee. Lessee shall have the right, following its
exercise of the Option, to terminate this Agreement, at any time, without cause, by providing Lessor with
ninety (90) days’ prior written notice. Upon such termination, this Agreement shall become null and void and
neither party shall have any further rights or duties hereunder, except that any monies owed by either party to the
other up to the date of termination shall be paid within thirty (30) days of the termination date.

11. Rent. Beginning on the Commencement Date, Lessee shall pay Lessor Eighteen Thousand Dollars
($18,000.00) per year, to be paid in equal monthly installments of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
($1,500.00) (“Rent”). The first payment of Rent shall be due and payable on the first day of the first full month
following the Commencement Date. On the first anniversary of this date, and each subsequent anniversary of
this date thereafter, the Rent shall increase by three percent (3%) above the Rent being paid during the most recent
year.

12. Use of Property. The Leased Premises and the Easements shall be used for the purpose of (i) constructing,
maintaining, and operating communications facilities, including without limitation, tower structures, antenna
support structures, fencing, cabinets, meter boards, buildings, antennas, radios, cables, fiber, data storage systems
and related communications equipment (“Improvements”) and, (ii) any uses incidental thereto, including without
limitation, use of back-up power systems, and installation of equipment to accommodate new technologies or
future innovations for receiving, storing and transmitting signals for Lessee’s use and the use of its sublessees,
licensees customers, or invitees (collectively the “Permitted Use”). Lessee may place a security fence around the
perimeter of the Leased Premises. All Improvements shall be constructed at Lessee’s sole expense. Lessee will
maintain the Leased Premises in a safe condition. It is the intent of the parties that Lessee’s Improvements shall
not constitute a fixture.

13. Hazardous Materials.

(A) Lessee’s Obligation and Indemnity. Lessee shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or permit
the escape, disposal or release of any Hazardous Materials on or from the Leased Premises in any manner
prohibited by law. Lessee shall indemnify and hold Lessor harmless from any and all claims, damages, fines,

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 3
PPAB 11175794v3



judgments, penalties, costs, liabilities or losses (including, without limitation, any and all sums paid for settlement
of claims, attorneys’ fees, and consultants’ and experts’ fees) from the release of any Hazardous Materials on the
Leased Premises if caused by Lessee or persons acting under Lessee.

(B) Lessor’s Obligation and Indemnity. Lessor shall not (either with or without negligence) cause or permit
the escape, disposal or release of any Hazardous Materials on or from Lessor’s Property or Leased Premises in
any manner prohibited by law. To the extent permitted by law, Lessor shall indemnify and hold Lessee harmless
from any and all claims, damages, fines, judgments, penalties, costs, liabilities or losses (including, without
limitation, any and all sums paid for settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, and consultants’ and experts’ fees) from
the presence or release of any Hazardous Materials on Lessor’s Property or Leased Premises unless caused by
Lessee or persons acting under Lessee.

(C) For purposes of this Agreement, the term “Hazardous Materials” means any substance which is
(1) designated, defined, classified or regulated as a hazardous substance, hazardous material, hazardous waste,
pollutant or contaminant under any Environmental Law, as currently in effect or as hereafter amended or enacted,
(i1) a petroleum hydrocarbon, including crude oil or any fraction thereof and all petroleum products, (iii) PCBs,
(iv) lead, (v) asbestos, (vi) flammable explosives, (vii)infectious materials, or (viii) radioactive materials.
“Environmental Laws” means the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of
1980, 42 U.S.C. Sections 9601, et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 42 U.S.C. Sections
6901, et seq., the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. Sections 2601, et seq., the Hazardous Materials
Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. 5101, et seq., and the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. Sections 1251 et seq., as said
laws have been supplemented or amended to date, the regulations promulgated pursuant to said laws and any
other federal, state or local law, statute, rule, regulation or ordinance which regulates or proscribes the use,
storage, disposal, presence, clean-up, transportation or release or threatened release into the environment of
Hazardous Materials.

14. Insurance. At all times during the performance of its Due Diligence and during the Lease Term, Lessee, at
its sole expense, shall obtain and keep in force insurance which may be required by any federal, state or local
statute or ordinance of any governmental body having jurisdiction in connection with the operation of Lessee’s
business upon the Leased Premises. At a minimum, said insurance shall include Commercial General Liability
coverage in an amount not less than $2,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate, and shall
name the Lessor as an additional insured. The required limits recited herein may be met by primary and excess
or umbrella policies covering other locations. Upon Lessor’s written request, which request shall not exceed once
per year, Lessee will provide Lessor with a copy of the certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage.

15. Removal of Obstructions. Lessee has the right to remove obstructions from Lessor’s Property, including
but not limited to vegetation, which may encroach upon, interfere with or present a hazard to Lessee’s use of the
Leased Premises or the Easements.

16. Right of First Refusal. If, during the Option Period, the Option Renewal Period, or the Lease Term, Lessor
receives an offer that it intends to accept, to purchase, make a loan, or give any consideration in exchange for any
of the following interests in all or a portion of the Leased Premises: (i) fee title, (ii) a perpetual or other easement,
(ii1) a lease, (iv) any present or future possessory interest, (v) any or all portions of Lessor’s interest in this
Agreement including rent or (vi) an option to acquire any of the foregoing, Lessor shall provide written notice to
Lessee of said offer (“Lessor’s Notice™). Lessor’s Notice shall include the prospective buyer’s name, the purchase
price being offered, and other consideration being offered, the other terms and conditions of the offer, the due
diligence period, the proposed closing date and, if a portion of Lessor’s Property is to be sold, a description of
said portion. Lessee shall have a right of first refusal to purchase, at its election and on the terms and conditions
as in Lessor’s Notice a fee simple interest in Lessor’s Property or Leased Premises or a perpetual easement for

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 4
PPAB 11175794v3



the Leased Premises. If the Lessor’s Notice is for more than the Leased Premises and Lessee elects to purchase
in fee or acquire a perpetual easement in only the Leased Premises, the terms and conditions of said acquisition
shall be the same terms and conditions as in Lessor’s Notice but the purchase price shall be pro-rated on an
acreage basis. If Lessee does not exercise its right of first refusal by written notice to Lessor given within
thirty (30) days, Lessor may sell the property described in the Lessor’s Notice. If Lessee declines to exercise its
right of first refusal, then this Agreement shall continue in full force and effect and Lessee’s right of first refusal
shall survive any such conveyance.

17. Real Estate Taxes. Lessor shall pay all real estate taxes on Lessor’s Property. Lessee agrees to reimburse
Lessor for any documented increase in real estate or personal property taxes levied against Lessor’s Property that
are directly attributable to the Improvements constructed by Lessee. Lessor agrees to provide Lessee any
documentation evidencing the increase and how such increase is attributable to Lessee’s use. Lessee reserves the
right to challenge any such assessment, and Lessor agrees to cooperate with Lessee in connection with any such
challenge. Notwithstanding any language in this section to the contrary, Lessee shall not be obligated to reimburse
Lessor for any applicable taxes, unless Lessor requests such reimbursement, and provides Lessee with
documentation supporting any such payment(s), within one (1) year after the date such taxes became due.

18. Waiver of Claims and Rights of Subrogation. The parties hereby waive any and all rights of action for
negligence against the other on account of damage to the Improvements, Lessor’s Property or to the Leased
Premises resulting from any fire or other casualty of the kind covered by property insurance policies with extended
coverage, regardless of whether or not, or in what amount, such insurance is carried by the parties. All policies
of property insurance carried by either party for the Improvements, Lessor’s Property or the Leased Premises
shall include a clause or endorsement denying to the insurer rights by way of subrogation against the other party
to the extent rights have been waived by the insured before the occurrence of injury or loss.

19. Default.

(A) Notice of Default; Cure Period. In the event that there is a default by Lessor or Lessee (the “Defaulting
Party”) with respect to any of the provisions of this Agreement or Lessor’s or Lessee’s obligations under this
Agreement, the other party (the “Non-Defaulting Party”) shall give the Defaulting Party written notice of such
default. After receipt of such written notice, the Defaulting Party shall have thirty (30) days in which to cure any
monetary default and sixty (60) days in which to cure any non-monetary default. The Defaulting Party shall have
such extended periods as may be required beyond the sixty (60) day cure period to cure any non-monetary default
if the nature of the cure is such that it reasonably requires more than sixty (60) days to cure, and Defaulting Party
commences the cure within the sixty (60) day period and thereafter continuously and diligently pursues the cure
to completion. The Non-Defaulting Party may not maintain any action or effect any remedies for default against
the Defaulting Party unless and until the Defaulting Party has failed to cure the same within the time periods
provided in this Section.

(B) Consequences of Lessee’s Default. Lessor acknowledges that under the terms of this Agreement, Lessee
has the right to terminate this Agreement at any time upon ninety (90) days’ notice. Accordingly, in the event
that Lessor maintains any action or effects any remedies for default against Lessee, resulting in Lessee’s
dispossession or removal, (1) the Rent shall be paid up to the date of such dispossession or removal and (ii) Lessor
shall be entitled to recover from Lessee, in lieu of any other damages, as liquidated, final damages, a sum equal
to three months’ Rent.

(C) Consequences of Lessor’s Default. In the event that Lessor is in default beyond the applicable periods set
forth above, Lessee shall have the right to injunctive relief, to require specific performance of this Agreement, to
pursue an action for damages, terminate this Lease, vacate the Leased Premises and be relieved from all further

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 5
PPAB 11175794v3



obligations under this Agreement; and to perform the obligation(s) of Lessor specified in such notice, and charge
Lessor for any expenditures reasonably made by Lessee in so doing or set-off from Rent any amount reasonably
expended by Lessee as a result of such default.

20. Limitation on Damages. In no event shall either party be liable to the other for consequential, indirect,
speculative or punitive damages in connection with or arising from this Agreement, or the use of the Leased
Premises, Easements, and/or Utility Easement.

21. Hold Harmless. To the extent permitted by law, each party shall indemnify and defend the other party
against, and hold the other party harmless from, any claim of liability or loss from personal injury or property
damage arising from the use and occupancy of the Leased Premises or Lessor’s Property by such indemnifying
party, its employees, contractors, servants or agents, except to the extent such claims are caused by the intentional
misconduct or negligent acts or omissions of the other party, its employees, contractors, servants or agents.

22. Lessor’s Covenant of Title. Lessor covenants that Lessor holds good and marketable fee simple title to
Lessor’s Property and the Leased Premises and has full authority to enter into and execute this Agreement.

23. Interference with Lessee’s Business. Lessor agrees that it will not permit the construction, installation or
operation on Lessor’s Property of (i) any additional wireless communications facilities or (ii) any equipment or
device that interferes with Lessee’s use of the Leased Premises for a wireless communications facility. Each of
the covenants made by Lessor in this Section is a covenant running with the land for the benefit of the Leased
Premises.

24. Eminent Domain. If Lessor receives notice of a proposed taking by eminent domain of any part of the Leased
Premises or the Easements, Lessor will notify Lessee of the proposed taking within five (5) days of receiving said
notice and Lessee will have the option to: (i) declare this Agreement null and void and thereafter neither party
will have any liability or obligation hereunder; or (i1) remain in possession of that portion of the Leased Premises
and Easements that will not be taken, in which event there shall be an equitable adjustment in Rent on account of
the portion of the Leased Premises and Easements so taken. With either option Lessee shall have the right to
pursue all available remedies at law or equity.

25. Applicable Law and Venue. This Agreement and the performance thereof shall be governed, interpreted,
construed and regulated by the laws of the State where the Leased Premises is located. The parties agree that the
venue for any litigation regarding this Agreement shall be in the state or federal courts in the county where the
Leased Premises is located.

26. Notices. All notices hereunder shall be in writing and shall be given by (i) established national courier service
which maintains delivery records, (ii) hand delivery, or (iii1) certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return
receipt requested. Notices are effective upon receipt, or upon attempted delivery if delivery is refused or if
delivery is impossible because of failure to provide reasonable means for accomplishing delivery. The notices
shall be sent to the parties at the following addresses:

Lessor:
Leyden Rock Metropolitan District
c/o Advance HOA Management
17685 W. 83" Drive
Arvada, CO 80007

Lessee:
Crown Castle Towers 06-2 LLC

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 6
PPAB 11175794v3



Attn: Legal - Real Estate
2000 Corporate Drive
Canonsburg, PA 15317-8564

27. Assignment, Sublease, Licensing and Encumbrance. Lessee has the right, at its sole discretion, to assign
its interest in this Agreement and to sublease or license use of the Leased Premises, Easements and Improvements.
Assignment of this Agreement by Lessee shall be effective upon Lessee sending written notice to Lessor and shall
relieve Lessee from any further liability or obligation. Lessee has the further right to pledge or encumber its
interest in this Agreement. Upon request to Lessor from any leasehold mortgagee, Lessor agrees to give the
holder of such leasehold mortgage written notice of any default by Lessee and an opportunity to cure such default
within fifteen (15) days after such notice with respect to monetary defaults and within a commercially reasonable
time after such notice with respect to any non-monetary default.

28. Mortgages. In the event that the Leased Premises is currently encumbered or shall become encumbered by
such a mortgage, Lessor shall obtain and furnish to Lessee a non-disturbance agreement for each such mortgage,
in recordable form.

29. Sale of Property. If during the Option Period, Option Renewal Period, or Lease Term, Lessor sells all or
part of Lessor’s Property, of which the Leased Premises is a part, then such sale shall be under and subject to this
Agreement.

30. Surrender of Property. Upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, Lessee shall, within a reasonable
time, remove all above ground Improvements and restore the Leased Premises as nearly as reasonably possible
to its original condition, without, however, being required to replace any trees or other plants removed, or alter
the then existing grading.

31. Quiet Enjoyment. Lessor covenants that Lessee, on paying Rent and performing the covenants of this
Agreement, shall peaceably and quietly have, hold and enjoy the Leased Premises and Easements.

32. Lessor’s Waiver. Lessor hereby waives and releases any and all liens, whether statutory or under common
law, with respect to any of Lessee’s Improvements now or hereafter located on the Leased Premises.

33. Miscellaneous.

(A) Recording. Lessee shall have the right to record a memorandum of the Option and a memorandum of this
Agreement with the appropriate recording officer. Lessor shall execute and deliver each such memorandum, for
no additional consideration, promptly upon Lessee’s request.

(B) Entire Agreement. Lessor and Lessee agree that this Agreement contains all of the agreements, promises
and understandings between Lessor and Lessee. No oral agreements, promises or understandings shall be binding
upon either Lessor or Lessee in any dispute, controversy or proceeding at law. Any addition, variation or
modification to this Agreement shall be void and ineffective unless made in writing and signed by the parties
hereto. The terms, covenants and provisions of this Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon the respective
executors, administrators, heirs, successors and assigns of Lessor and Lessee.

(C) Captions. The captions preceding the Sections of this Agreement are intended only for convenience of
reference and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of this Agreement or the intent of any provision hereof.

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 7
PPAB 11175794v3



(D) Construction of Document. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that this document shall not be construed in
favor of or against the drafter by virtue of said party being the drafter and that this Agreement shall not be
construed as a binding offer until signed by Lessee.

(E) Partial Invalidity. If any term of this Agreement is found to be void or invalid, then such invalidity shall
not affect the remaining terms of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and effect.

(F) Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously or in counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

(G) Electronic Signatures. Each party agrees that the electronic signatures of the parties included in this
Agreement are intended to authenticate this writing and to have the same force and effect as manual signatures.
As used herein, “electronic signature” means any electronic sound, symbol, or process attached to or logically
associated with this Agreement and executed and adopted by a party with the intent to sign such Agreement,
including facsimile or email electronic signatures.

(H) IRS Form W-9. Lessor agrees to provide Lessee with a completed IRS Form W-9, or its equivalent, upon
execution of this Agreement and at such other times as may be reasonably requested by Lessee. In the event the
Lessor’s Property is transferred, the succeeding Lessor shall have a duty at the time of such transfer to provide
Lessee with a Change of Ownership Form as provided for by Lessee, a completed IRS Form W-9, or its
equivalent, and other related paper work to effect a transfer in Rent to the new Lessor. Lessor’s failure to provide
the IRS Form W-9 within thirty (30) days after Lessee’s request shall be considered a default and Lessee may
take any reasonable action necessary to comply with IRS regulations including, but not limited to, withholding
applicable taxes from Rent payments.

(I) Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to waive, limit, or otherwise
modify, in whole or in part, any governmental immunity that may be available by law to Lessor, its respective
officials, employees, contractors, or agents, or any other person acting on behalf of Lessor and, in particular,
governmental immunity afforded or available to Lessor pursuant to the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act,
§§ 24-10-101, et seq., C.R.S.

(J) Subject to Annual Appropriation and Budget. Lessor does not intend hereby to create a multiple-fiscal
year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever. The performance of those obligations of
Lessor pursuant to this Agreement requiring budgeting and appropriation of funds are subject to annual budgeting
and appropriations. Lessee expressly understands and agrees that Lessor’s obligations under this Agreement shall
extend only to monies appropriated for the purposes of this Agreement by the Board and shall not constitute a
mandatory charge, requirement or liability in any ensuing fiscal year beyond the then-current fiscal year. No
provision of this Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as a delegation of governmental powers by Lessor,
or as creating a multiple-fiscal year direct or indirect debt or other financial obligation whatsoever of Lessor or
statutory debt limitation, including, without limitation, Article X, Section 20 or Article XI, Section 6 of the
Constitution of the State of Colorado. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed to pledge or to create a
lien on any class or source of Lessor’s funds. Lessor’s obligations under this Agreement exist subject to annual
budgeting and appropriations, and shall remain subject to the same for the entire Lease Term.

[Execution Page Follows]

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 8
PPAB 11175794v3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee having read the foregoing and intending to be legally bound
hereby, have executed this Agreement as of the day and year this Agreement is fully executed.

LESSOR:

LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT, (f/k/a
LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT NO. 10),
a quasi-municipal corporation and political subdivision of
the State of Colorado

By- Brett Vernon (Sep 5, 2024 18:34 MDT)

Print Name: Brett Vernon
Print Title (if any): Board President
Date: 9/05/2024

LESSEE:
CROWN CASTLE TOWERS 06-2 LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company

By:
Print Name:
Title (if any):
Date:

[Add notary or attestation, as required by state law]

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 9
PPAB 11175794v3



EXHIBIT “A”

BU 832278/OPT-615/A
PPAB 11175794v3



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has caused this deed to be executed on the date set

forth abowve.,

GRANTOR:
STATE OF COLORADO )

Jss
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ]

The foregoing ins t was acknowledged before me  this f% day of
W. 2018, by 7 LTt , 88 of RRCEA
. & Colorade limited liability company.

WITHESS my hand and official seal.

My commission expires: r:1'“-' 2%* ?ﬂf
No'm: %;b[icz - % 9 B

BURFHY
WOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF COLORADD

BU 832278/OPT-615/A 11
PPAB 11175794v3



EXHIBIT “B”

BU 832278/OPT-615/A
PPAB 11175794v3



BU 832278/OPT-615/A
PPAB 11175794v3



BU 832278/OPT-615/A
PPAB 11175794v3



BU 832278/OPT-615/A
PPAB 11175794v3



EXHIBIT “C”

[Attach boundary survey once obtained]

BU 832278/OPT-615/A
PPAB 11175794v3



RESOLUTION
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
Regarding Policies, Procedures and Penalties for the Enforcement of the Governing
Documents

WHEREAS, Leyden District (the“District”) is a quasi-municipal corporation and
political subdivision of the State of Colorado; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Covenants and Restrictions of
Leyden Rock recorded in the real property records of the Clerk and Recorder of Jefferson County,
Colorado at Reception No. 2012033713, on March 29, 2012, (the “Covenants”), the District is
permitted to send demand letters and notices, levy and collect fines and interest, impose liens, and
negotiate, settle and take any other actions with respect to any violations or alleged violations of
the Governing Documents (as defined below); and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the District is authorized to promulgate
adopt, enact, modify, amend, repeal, and re-enact rules and regulations concerning and governing
the Property (as that term is defined in the Covenants); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to fix and from
time to time increase or decrease, fees, rates, tolls, penalties, or charges for services, programs, or
facilities furnished by the District; and

WHEREAS, such fees, rates, tolls, penalties, or charges, until paid, shall constitute a perpetual
lien on and against the property served; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to set establishing policies, procedures and penalties for
violations of the Covenants, any guidelines, rules and regulations, and other policies and
procedures of the District, as the same may be adopted, amended and supplemented from time to
time (collectively, the “Governing Documents”).

WHEREAS, on December 5, 2016 the Board adopted the Resolution of the Board of
Directors of the Leyden Rock Metropolitan District Regarding Policies, Procedures and Penalties
for the Enforcement of the Governing Documents (the “Prior Policy”), and the Board desires to
adopt this Resolution to amend and restate the Prior Policy in its entirety.

NOW THEREFORE, the Board hereby adopts this Resolution and the following policies
and procedures:

1. Intent of District. This Resolution is adopted to ensure the protection of the health,
safety and welfare of the residents and property owners of the District, to preserve property values,
enhance the quality of life for all District residents, and provide a fair and consistent enforcement
process of the Governing Documents.

1237.2700;Q6RSSS5ZAJDU-1711910839-59059



2. Enforcement Policy. The District may enforce the Governing Documents through
administrative proceedings or judicial action. Any non-compliance with the Governing Documents
by any owner, renter or guest will be the responsibility of the owner of the respective property
subject to this Resolution (the “Owner”). This Resolution is intended to serve as guidance to the
Board and the District’s authorized representative(s) (the “District Representative”) and does not
limit or restrict the authority of the Board. The Board may intervene at any time with respect to
any authority granted to or action undertaken by the District Representative. In addition, this
Resolution shall not supersede the procedures for approval, disapproval, or notice of
noncompliance related to improvements as set forth in the Governing Documents.

3. Investigative Procedure. Upon receipt of a written complaint alleging a violation
of the Governing Documents, the District Representative will conduct an investigation to
determine whether a violation of the Governing Documents has occurred. The submitter of the
complaint shall provide a statement describing the alleged violation, shall identify themselves, the
alleged violator, if known, the date on which the violation exists or occurred, and provide any other
pertinent information. Non-written complaints or written complaints failing to include any
information required by this provision may not be investigated or prosecuted at the discretion of
the District.

4. Enforcement Process for Continuous Violations. Upon determining that a
“Continuous Violation” (defined as a violation that is ongoing, uninterrupted by time and may
take time to cure, such as installing an unapproved structure on a property or neglecting to maintain
the exterior appearance of a property) has occurred, the District Representative and the Board shall
take the following steps:

a. Continuous Violation Warning Letter. If the District Representative
determines that a Continuous Violation of the Governing Documents exists, either through
the investigative process as set forth above, or through independent inspections or
observations of the District Representative, the District Representative will send an
“Continuous Violation Warning Letter” via first-class United States mail to the last
known Owner of the Property according to the District’s records notifying the Owner of:
(1) the restriction violated and the nature of the violation, (ii) that the Owner must have the
Continuous Violation corrected within 15 calendar days of the date of the Continuous
Violation Warning Letter, and (iii) that failure to timely cure the Continuous Violation may
result in potential fines or other sanctions. If, in the discretion of the District
Representative, the Continuous Violation requires more than 15 days to cure, the District
Representative may extend the cure period or require the Owner to commence such cure
within 15 days of the date of the Continuous Violation Warning Letter and diligently
prosecute the same to completion. In the event the above mailing is returned as
undeliverable, the District may send a second copy of the Continuous Violation Warning
Letter to: (1) the Property; and (2) the address of the last known owner of the Property as
found in the real property records of the county Assessor’s Office for the county in which
the District is located (collectively, the “Property Address”). The District Representative
may deviate from the mailing destinations as included in the Property Address if requested
by the Owner in writing. Upon receipt of any notice regarding a Continuous Violation, an
Owner may propose arrangements to cure the violation to the District Representative. A

1237.2700; Q6RSSS5ZAJDU-1711910839-59059 2



District Representative may approve or deny arrangements to cure a Continuous Violation
based on what is reasonable under the circumstances. If a District Representative denies
arrangements for curing a Continuous Violation they must provide the Owner notice in
writing prior to imposing any fines (“Denial Letter”). The Denial Letter shall further state
the reasoning for the denial and that the Owner is entitled to a hearing on the merits of the
matter provided that such hearing is requested in writing by the Owner within 15 days of
the date of the Denial Letter.

b. Notice of Complaint and Opportunity to Be Heard. If the Owner has not
cured the Continuous Violation or made arrangements to cure the Continuous Violation
and communicated such arrangements to the District Representative in writing within 15
days of the Continuous Violation Warning Letter this shall be considered a second violation
for which a fine may be imposed. The District Representative shall send a notice of
complaint and opportunity to be heard (“Fine Notice”) to the Owner at the Owner’s address
notifying the Owner of the Continuous Violation and that a fine will be imposed on the
Owner’s account pursuant to the fine schedule set forth in Paragraph 10 if the violation is
not cured or no hearing is requested as set forth below. The Fine Notice shall further state
that the Owner is entitled to a hearing on the merits of the matter provided that such hearing
is requested in writing by the Owner within 15 days of the date of the Fine Notice. The
District may impose additional fines with each notice sent after the Fine Notice without the
necessity of providing the Owner with the opportunity for additional hearings thereafter.

c. Notices of Ongoing Violation and Fine. If the Owner has not requested a
hearing, cured the Continuous Violation or made arrangements to cure the Continuous
Violation and communicated such arrangements to the District Representative in writing
within 15 days of the Fine Notice, the first fine set forth in Paragraph 10 shall then be
imposed, and this shall be considered a third violation for which a fine will be imposed.
The District Representative shall send a notice of ongoing violation (“Ongoing Violation
and Fine Notice”) to the Owner at the Owner’s Address demanding that the Owner cure
the ongoing Continuous Violation and providing notice that the first fine has been imposed,
and that an additional fine is being imposed on the Owner’s account pursuant to the fine
schedule set forth in Paragraph 10 below. If the Continuous Violation remains uncured 15
days after the date of the first Ongoing Violation and Fine Notice or the Owner has not
made arrangements to cure the Continuous Violation and communicated such
arrangements to the District Representative in writing within 15 days of the first Ongoing
Violation and Fine Notice, this shall be considered a fourth violation for which an
additional fine will be imposed. A second Ongoing Violation and Fine Notice shall be sent
to the Owner and shall advise the Owner of the imposition of an additional fine, pursuant
to the fine schedule set forth in Paragraph 10 of this Resolution.

d. Continuing Violation. In the event that a Continuing Violation continues to
exist uninterrupted 15 days after the date of the second Ongoing Violation and Fine Notice,
the District may in its discretion, in addition to any other remedy, send the Owner a notice
of daily fines (“Daily Fine Notice”) and thereafter impose a fine of up to $100 for each
day that a Continuous Violation so continues.

1237.2700; Q6RSSS5ZAJDU-1711910839-59059 3



5. Enforcement Process for Repetitious Violations. Upon determining that a
“Repetitious Violation” (defined as a violation that occurs at a set point in time and does not
require time to cure, such as the parking of a restricted vehicle in the community or leaving trash
cans out beyond the time allowed) has occurred, the District Representative and Board shall take
the following steps:

a. Repetitious Violation Warning Letter. If the District Representative
determines that a Repetitious Violation of the Governing Documents has occurred, either
through the investigative process as set forth above, or through independent inspections or
observations of the District Representative, the District Representative will send an
“Repetitious Violation Warning Letter” via first-class United States mail to the last
known owner of the Property according to the District’s records notifying the Owner of:
(1) the restriction violated and the nature of the Repetitious Violation, and (iii) that any
subsequent violations of the same restriction within 180 days of the date of the Repetitious
Violation Warning Letter may result in the imposition of fines. In the event the above
mailing is returned as undeliverable, the District may send a second copy of the Repetitious
Violation Warning Letter to the Property Address.

b. Notices of Repetitious Violations. If an Owner subsequently violates the
same covenant or rule within 180 days of date of the Repetitious Violation Warning Letter,
each such instance shall constitute a separate Repetitious Violation for which fines may be
imposed pursuant to the fine schedule set forth in Paragraph 10. Upon the occurrence of
each subsequent Repetitious Violation, the District Representative shall send the Owner a
notice advising the Owner of the Repetitious Violation and of the fine to be imposed
(“Repetitious Violation and Fine Notice”). The first such Repetitious Violation and Fine
Notice shall further state that the Owner is entitled to a hearing on the merits of the matter
provided that such hearing is requested in writing by the Owner within 15 days of such
first Repetitious Violation and Fine Notice. The District may impose additional fines with
each Repetitious Violation and Fine Notice sent after the first Repetitious Violation and
Fine Notice without the necessity of providing the Owner with the opportunity for a hearing
thereafter.

6. Impartial Decision Maker. Pursuant to Colorado law, an Owner has the right to be
heard before an "Impartial Decision Maker". An Impartial Decision Maker is defined under
Colorado law as a person or group of persons who have the authority to make a decision regarding
the enforcement of the District’s Governing Documents, including architectural requirements, and
does not have any direct personal or financial interest in the outcome. A decision maker shall not
be deemed to have a direct personal or financial interest in the outcome if the decision maker will
not, as a result of the outcome, receive any greater benefit or detriment than that of other owners
subject to the same Governing Documents. Unless otherwise disqualified pursuant to the definition
of Impartial Decision Maker, the Board may appoint to act as the Impartial Decision Maker the
entire Board, specified members of the Board, any other individual or group of individuals.

7. Hearing on Violation. If a hearing is requested by the Owner pursuant to Paragraph
4.a,4.b or 5.b above, the District Representative shall notify the Owner of the date, time and place

1237.2700; Q6RSSS5ZAJDU-1711910839-59059 4



of the hearing at least 10 days prior to the hearing. Hearings regarding violations of the Governing
Documents shall be conducted by an Impartial Decision Maker.

8. Failure to Attend or Request Hearing. In the event any Owner fails to request a
hearing within 15 days of the date of the Fine Notice or the first Repetitious Violation and Fine
Notice, no hearing shall be required. Failure to request a hearing or to appear at a requested hearing
will result in the Owner being deemed to have admitted and acknowledged the violation and the
Owner will thereafter be subject to all fines and penalties assessed in connection with the violation.
After offering an Owner the opportunity for a hearing in the Fine Notice or the first Repetitious
Violation and Fine Notice, as applicable, regardless of whether the Owner then requests a hearing
or not, the District need not offer the opportunity for a hearing for any additional fines to be
imposed for failure to cure a Continuous Violation or for subsequent instances of a Repetitious
Violation

0. Decision. After the District has taken the hearing steps as outlined above, and in
the event a hearing is requested and held, upon a finding being reached, the District Representative
shall send notice of determination (“Notice of Determination”) to the Owner’s Address informing
the Owner of the Impartial Decision Maker’s findings. If the Impartial Decision Maker finds the
Owner is in violation of the Governing Documents the District may revoke or suspend the Owner’s
privileges, impose fines in accordance with the fine schedule set forth in Paragraph 10 below and
take such other actions as it may deem necessary or appropriate to assure compliance with the
Governing Documents.

10.  Fine Schedule. The following fine schedule is adopted for any and all violations
of the Governing Documents.

Continuous Violations

First Violation (Continuous Violation Warning Letter): $0.00

Second Violation (Fine Notice): $ 25.00

Third Violation (First Ongoing Violation and Fine Notice): $50.00

Fourth Violation (Second Ongoing Violation and Fine Notice): $ 100.00

Daily Fine Notice: Up to $100.00 per day

Repetitious Violations:

First Violation (Repetitious Violation Warning Letter): $0.00
Second Violation (First Repetitious Violation and Fine Notice):  $25.00
Subsequent Violations (Repetitious Violation and Fine Notice):  $ 50.00 per offense

11. Perpetual Lien. Pursuant to § 32-1-1001(1)(j)(I), C.R.S., the Board is authorized to
fix and from time to time increase or decrease, fees, rates, tolls, penalties, or charges for services,
programs, or facilities furnished by the District. Until paid such fees, rates, tolls, penalties, or charges,
until paid, shall constitute a perpetual lien on and against the property served.

1237.2700; Q6RSSS5ZAJDU-1711910839-59059 5



12. Violations or Offenses that Constitute a Present Danger. If a violation concerns a
serious or immediate risk to the health, safety, or welfare of person or property, the District
Representative shall seek to obtain prompt action by the Owner to correct the violation and avoid
any reoccurrence, and the procedural requirements under this Resolution may be waived by the
Board and a hearing scheduled as soon as possible. The Board may impose sanctions as necessary
to abate any threat to health, safety or welfare of any person or property.

13.  Waiver of Fines and Other Amounts. The District may determine enforcement
actions on a case by case basis, and take other actions as it may deem necessary or appropriate to
assure compliance with the Governing Documents. The District Representative and/or the Board
may, either in its sole discretion, waive all or any portion of any fines and other amounts levied
under this Resolution. Additionally, the District Representative and/or the Board may condition
waiver of any fine or other amount(s), upon the Owner coming into and staying in compliance
with the Governing Documents.

14. Other Enforcement Means. The provisions of this Resolution shall be in addition
to all other enforcement means which are available to the District through the Governing
Documents, or by law. Application of this Resolution does not preclude the District from using
any other enforcement means, including, but not limited to the recording of liens, certification to
the county Treasurer’s Office of delinquent fees, rates, tolls, fines, penalties, charges and/or
assessments related specifically to covenant enforcement and design review services and any other
legal or equitable remedies available to the District.

15.  Legal Action. Any violation of the Governing Documents may, in the discretion of
the Board, be turned over to legal counsel engaged for covenant enforcement matters (“Special
Counsel”) to take appropriate legal action either in lieu of, or in addition to, the imposition of any
fines or other penalties under this Resolution, and Owners shall be responsible for all attorneys’
fees and costs incurred in enforcing this Resolution and in collecting amounts due and owing the
District.

16. Certification of Account to County Treasurer. Pursuant to § 32-1-1004.5(3)(b)(I1I),
C.R.S., the Board may elect to certify any delinquent fees, rates, tolls, fines, penalties, charges,
and/or assessments made or levied specifically for covenant enforcement and design review services
satisfying the criteria established therein to the county Treasurer’s Office for collection with the
District’s ad valorem property taxes. The certification process may be performed by the District
Representative, Special Counsel or general counsel to the District in addition to or in lieu of any
procedures set forth in this Resolution in the Board’s sole discretion. The fees for the certification
process shall be in accordance with Colorado law and the county’s policy.

17.  Disputes. In the event of any dispute involving the District and an Owner related to
the enforcement of any covenants or design review services, the Owner may request to meet with
the Board to resolve the dispute informally and without the need for additional enforcement
actions. Ifthe Owner requests to meet with the Board, the Board shall make a reasonable effort to
comply with the Owner's request.

1237.2700; Q6RSSS5ZAJDU-1711910839-59059 6



Nothing in this Section shall be construed to require any specific form of alternative dispute
resolution, such as mediation or arbitration, or require the parties to meet. Neither the District nor
the Owner waives any right to pursue whatever legal or other remedial actions available to either

party.

18.  Deviations. The District may deviate from the procedures set forth herein if, in its
sole discretion, such deviation is reasonable under the circumstances.

19.  Amendment. The policies, procedures and fine schedule set forth in this Resolution
may be supplemented and/or amended from time to time by the District, in its sole and absolute
discretion.

20.  Payment. Payment for all fines shall be by check or equivalent form acceptable to
the District, made payable to Leyden Rock Metropolitan District. The District may change the
payment address from time and time and such change shall not require an amendment to this
Resolution.

21. Severability. If any portion of this Resolution is declared by any court of competent
jurisdiction to be void or unenforceable, such decision shall not affect the validity of any remaining
portion of this resolution, which shall remain in full force and effect. In addition, in lieu of such
void or unenforceable provision, there shall automatically be added as part of this Resolution a
provision similar in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision so that the resulting
reformed provision is legal, valid and enforceable.

22.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall become effective immediately and shall
supersede in its entirety any prior resolution.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank, signature page follows.]

1237.2700; Q6RSSS5ZAJDU-1711910839-59059 7



ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 17, 2024.

DISTRICT:

LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT,
a quasi-municipal corporation and political
subdivision of the State of Colorado

By:

Officer of the District

ATTEST:

By:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

WHITE BEAR ANKELE TANAKA & WALDRON
Attorneys at Law

General Counsel to the District



LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
Schedule of Cash Position
June 30, 2024
Updated as of September 10, 2024

General Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Projects Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Eirst Bank - Checking
Balance as of 06/30/24 $ 14,772.21 $ $ 14,772.21
Subsequent activities:
07/09/24  Transfer from CSAFE 200,000.00 - 200,000.00
07/10/24  Transfer from CSAFE 15,000.00 15,000.00
07/10/24  Transfer to AHM (200,000.00) - (200,000.00)
07/10/24  Bill.com Payments - (12,960.00) (12,960.00)
07/12/24  Bill.com Payments - - (2,000.00) (2,000.00)
07/15/24 Transfer from CSAFE 13,000.00 - - 13,000.00
07/17/24 Check #1211 (3,122.08) - - - (3,122.08)
07/23/24  Bill.com Payments (13,368.83) - - (2,365.00) (15,733.83)
07/31/24  Bill.com Payments - - - (4,710.00) (4,710.00)
08/07/24 ADP Wage Pay (107.65) - - - (107.65)
08/10/24 Reverse Check #1211 3,122.08 - - - 3,122.08
08/12/24  Bill.com Payments - - - (1,200.00) (1,200.00)
08/13/24  Transfer from CSAFE 125,000.00 - - - 125,000.00
08/14/24  Transfer to AHM (125,000.00) - - - (125,000.00)
08/23/24  Transfer from CSAFE 50,000.00 - - - 50,000.00
08/26/24  Bill.com Payments - - - (1,270.92) (1,270.92)
08/27/24  Bill.com Payments - (10,145.45) (10,145.45)
08/30/24  Transfer from CSAFE 150,000.00 - - 150,000.00
08/31/24  Transfer from GF to CPF for Clubhouse Refresh (17,617.36) - 17,617.36 -
09/03/24  Transfer to AHM (150,000.00) - (150,000.00)
09/05/24  Requisition No. 18 - - 54,002.70 54,002.70
09/05/24  Bill.com Payments - - - (186.44) (186.44)
Anticipated activities:
Anticipated Bil.com Payments (15,042.30) - - (36,782.25) (51,824.55)
Anticipated Balance $ 46,636.07 - $ - $ - 46,636.07
Advanced HOA Management - Checking
Balance as of 06/30/24 $ - 56,536.18 $ - $ - 56,536.18
Subsequent activities:
Anticipated Balance $ - 56,536.18 $ - $ - 56,536.18
Advanced HOA Management - Petty Cash/Debit Card
Balance as of 06/30/24 $ - 4,253.84 $ $ 4,253.84
Subsequent activities:
Anticipated Balance $ - 4,253.84 $ - $ - 4,253.84
CSAFE
Balance as of 06/30/24 $ 505,642.05 $ 126,764.76 $ 632,406.81
Subsequent activities:
07/09/24  Transfer to First Bank (200,000.00) - (200,000.00)
07/10/24  Property/SO tax 727,047.18 945,573.69 1,672,620.87
07/10/24  Transfer to First Bank (15,000.00) - (15,000.00)
07/15/24  Transfer to First Bank (13,000.00) (13,000.00)
07/31/24 Interest Income 7,492.40 - 7,492.40
08/12/24  Property/SO tax 18,407.60 23,940.29 42,347.89
08/13/24 Pledged Revenue Transfer - (1,072,338.45) (1,072,338.45)
08/13/24 Transfer to First Bank (125,000.00) - - (125,000.00)
08/23/24  Transfer to First Bank (50,000.00) - (50,000.00)
08/30/24 Transfer to First Bank (150,000.00) - - (150,000.00)
08/31/24 Interest Income 2,976.44 3,153.33 6,129.77
Anticipated activities:
Anticipated Pledged Revenue Transfer - (27,093.62) (27,093.62)
Anticipated Balance $ 708,565.67 - $ - $ - 708,565.67
UMB - 2021 Bond Fund
Balance as of 06/30/24 $ - $687,922.55 $ - 687,922.55
Subsequent activities:
07/31/24 Interest Income - 3,189.90 3,189.90
08/13/24 Pledged Revenue Transfer - 1,072,338.45 1,072,338.45
08/31/24 Interest Income - - 3,054.04 - 3,054.04
Anticipated activities:
Anticipated Pledged Revenue Transfer - 27,093.62 - 27,093.62
Anticipated Balance $ - $ 1,793,598.56 $ - 1,793,598.56
UMB - 2021 Project Fund
Balance as of 06/30/24 $ - $ - $4,033,857.53 4,033,857.53
Subsequent activities:
07/31/24 Interest Income - 17,260.89 17,260.89
08/31/24 Interest Income - - 17,901.86 17,901.86
Anticipated activities:
Anticipated Requisition No. 18 - - 54,002.70 54,002.70
Anticipated Balance $ - $ - $ 4,123,022.98 4,123,022.98
Anticipated Balances _$ 755,201.74 60,790.02 $ 1,793,598.56 $  4,123,022.98 6,732,613.30

Yield information (as of 08/31/24):
CSAFE - 5.31%
UMB invested in Goldman Sachs Govt Fund - 5.11%




Leyden Rock Metropolitan District
Interim Claims 08/13/24 - 09/10/24

Invoice Date Payment Date Vendor Invoice Number Amount

04/26/24 08/12/24 Shelby Williams CD1180 $ 1,200.00
06/20/24 08/26/24 Rico's Upholstery, Inc. 212524 402.00
07/17/24 08/26/24 Grants Custom Carpentry 91 465.00
08/06/24 08/27/24 The Architerra Group, Inc. 7925 10,145.45
08/08/24 08/26/24 Pottery Barn 57082769 403.92
08/19/24 09/05/24 Grants Custom Carpentry ReimbursementAug24 186.44

$12,802.81



MANAGEMENT REPORT

COMMUNITY:

MANAGER:

REPORT DATE:

Leyden Rock Metro District

Katie Call

September 6, 2024

2024 Regular Board Meeting Schedule:
Capital Projects Discussion on the First Tuesday of

2024 Regular Board Meeting Schedule:
Regular Business on the Third Tuesday of each

each month

January 2
February 6
—Marech-5; canceled
—Aprik2; canceled
May 7
June 4
a2, canceled
August6; canceled

September3, canceled
October 11

November 5, online only
December 3

%o % O o o oS o o %o o
IR IR IR IR IS o‘o 0‘0 <

month

January 16

February 20

March 19

April 16

May 21

June 18

July 16- ANNUAL MEETING
August 20

September 17
October 15

November 19- BUDGET HEARING
December 17

R? R R R 2 2 Y % R? R? R R
LA X R X I X I X I X QI X4 *» LR X R X X4

Last Reserve Study: 2020

Operating Fee: $0.00/year
Tract K Filing Fee: $372/year

Current mill levy (2023), for collection
in 2024

23.256 mills - (general fund)

30.246 mills - (debt service fund)

Board of Directors:

< Brett Vernon, President

Term to May 2027

% Scott ). Plummer, Secretary
Term to May 2027
Christian Ardita, Assistant Secretary
Term to May 2025
Jen Langhals, Assistant Secretary
Term to May 2025
Jeff Cunningham, Treasurer
Term to May 2025

R?
¢

Y
L4

2
L4

District Services: Residential Trash,
Common Area Landscape Maintenance,
Common Area Snow Removal, Pet
Waste Removal, Pool Maintenance &
Staffing, Social Events

Dates to Note:
< Republic Landfill Free Day: Saturday, October 5%
«» Republic Community Meeting: Tuesday, October
22nd
«* Clubhouse Voting Poll Center: October 31 —
November 7 (includes set up, poll and clean up)

Landscape Committee:
Tanis Batsel-Stewart
Carolyn Rowe

Thu Koelling

Diane Mangam

Lisa Coleman

Pam Hill

Additional Information:
« E-newsletter Performance:
Total Contacts: 2,133
Email Open Rate: 76%




COMPLIANCE INSPECTIONS

Inspector: Pam Mitchell

Schedule: Inspections occur weekly.
Trash day: Monday
Week 1: Filing 1 & 2
Week 2: Filing 3 & 4
Week 3: Filing 5
Week 4: Filing 6
Every drive re-inspects existing violations that are flagged for inspection
Ways of Working: Katie to review report violation report weekly:
- Courtesy Notices auto-send from inspector findings
- ldentify addresses that require additional support by Pam.
- Close violations as needed.
- Send violations to the attorney as needed.
Katie to flag any items to Pam for the following week by Wednesday.
Pam may close a violation before compliance date if cured but cannot escalate
to next step before the compliance date.
Pam to email or text Katie potential exterior modification that may require
approval (such as painting or major landscape renovation taking place) and
note vehicles driving through common areas to access their units and any
construction/project activity.
Priorities: Landscaping:

- Lawn—brown / dead grass: June through September
- Lawn Maintenance- mowed & trimmed.
- Weeds in lawn and rock beds: all year
Dead shrubs/trees: all year
— Seasonal pruning
Other Items:
- Trash can storage: all year
- Basketball hoops: all year
— must be stored halfway up driveway when not in use
— prohibited to be attached to the home
- General disrepair (fences, shingles, shutters)
- Unsightly conditions (exterior storage of landscaping materials &
equipment, oil stains, un-stored items)
Seasonal:
- Holiday lighting, including clips.
- Snow removal
— owners are responsible for removing snow on driveways & sidewalks




CURRENT PROJECTS / ACTION ITEMS

PROJECT DESCRIPTION STATUS

Holiday Lighting Proposal Updated lighting proposal to include Complete
Culebra/Yule entrances

Website Host Transfer Transition website to Streamline Complete

Pet Stations Station relocation Complete

Paint & Stain Compliance Consideration of extended cure Complete

Review

periods for properties identified with
Board liaisons

Jellyfish Lighting

Working with Jeff/Scott to review &
consider updated guidelines

In progress with WLPP

Budget Season Requesting 2025 proposals In progress

Pool Closing Coordination of closing pool In progress

Clubhouse Refresh Refresh includes updated furniture, In progress
design upgrades, acoustic elements

Pool Lighting Upgrade lights to LED In progress

Trail Condition Review Review condition of all District-owned | In progress

trails

Community FAQ

Compile FAQ questions from Board
members and create location on
website

On hold, website placement

Clubhouse Updated

Cleaning requirement changes from

In progress, pending completion of clubhouse

Cleaning Checklist refresh refresh

Pool Plaster Resurfacing the pool On Hold

Concrete Repairs Identifying concrete repair needs On Hold
around the community

Column Stone Replacement | Stone has come off on of the fence On Hold
columns in the community

Wayfinding Sign Stain Stain the wood on the wayfinding signs | On Hold
and Ping Pong Park sign

Tower Storage Room Seeking shelving options to better On hold
utilize storage space

Parking Lot Lighting Adding lighting to the parking lot at the | On Hold
clubhouse

Landscape Project Planning | Project planning for landscape projects | Ongoing
with Board liaisons

Lifestyle Event planning/execution Ongoing

Sponsorship Management Community Partnerships Ongoing

Weekly Community E- Content creation Ongoing

Newsletter

District Website Updates to website Ongoing

Management




Wayfinding Signs/Message | Updates to current information Ongoing

Board

Reservation Calendar Managing private rental and clubhouse | Ongoing
use

Vendor Management Ongoing vendor maintenance and Ongoing
meetings

Board Meeting Prep Management Report and memo prep Ongoing

Financials Invoice Review Ongoing

Resident Support Homeowner inquiries Ongoing

Violations Inspection review and follow up Ongoing

Architectural Review Application review and follow up Ongoing

Surveillance Monitoring Review of surveillance camera footage | Ongoing
and follow up

Hybrid Meeting Prep Support from Mountain Media Ongoing
Productions for Board meeting




ANNUAL CALENDAR - 2024

January

District Office Closed - New Years Day
Domain Auto Renewal - January 5, 2024
District Office Closed — MLK Day

HVAC Preventative Maintenance — Visit 1

February

District Office Closed - February 19, 2024

March

April

Board Email Auto Renewal - April 8, 2024
Pool Forms/FOB Distribution begins

May

Pet Waste- 3x Weekly Starts

Community Meeting (Arvada Fire & Arvada PD)- May 13, 2024
District Office Closed — Memorial Day

Snow Contract Expires

Irrigation Start-up / Spring Clean-up

Backflow Inspection

HVAC Preventative Maintenance — Visit 2

Pool Shade Installation

Phase 2 Fence Staining — May 31- June 10, 2024

June

District Office Closed - Juneteenth

July

District Office Closed — Independence Day
District Office Closed - July 5, 2024
Annual Town Hall Meeting

Request Holiday Lighting Proposal

August

Budget Season Begins, Request Proposals
Budget Working Session #1
AED Pad Expiration- 2026

September

District Office Closed — Labor Day

Pool Closing Date — Labor Day, Extension to be determined based on weather
Renew Snow Contract

HVAC Preventative Maintenance — Visit 3

October

Pet Waste- 2x Weekly Starts

Draft Budget Due to CLA- October 1

District Office Closed — October 14, 2024
Draft Budget Submitted by CLA- October 15
Irrigation Shutdown / Fall Clean-up

Pool Shade Removal

November

Final Budget Changes to CLA- November 1, 2024

District Office Closed — Veteran’s Day

Board Meeting/Budget Hearing (Regular Business) - November 19, 2024
District Office Closed - November 27, half day

District Office Closed- Thanksgiving & Black Friday

December

District Office Closed — Christmas Eve & Christmas Day




LIFESTYLE COMMUNITY CALENDAR- 2024

Events This Month

Children’s Hospital Mobile Blood
Drive

Thursday, September 12

Community Yoga

Saturday, September 14

Fall Festival Saturday, September 21
. Community CPR & First Aid Class Saturday, October 12
Up;lzr:;rlr\goiv;nts Republic Community Mtg Tuesday, October 22
New Resident Social Tuesday, October 29
Arvada Story Time First Wednesday AM of the month
Sound Bath First Wednesday PM of the month
Mobile Groomer Second Tuesday of the month
Monthly Events Toddler Time Third Wednesday of the month
Empty Nesters Last Friday AM of the month **Sept. 20
Trivia Night Last Friday PM of the month **Sept. 20
Mobile Barber Rotating Dates, 1x monthly
Easter Sunday, March 24, 2024

Signature Events

Pool Opening Party

Friday, May 24, 2024

Fourth of July

Thursday, July 4, 2024

Fall Fest Saturday, September 21, 2024
Adults Night Out- 2x TBD
Turkey Trot Saturday, November 16, 2024

Holiday Market

First weekend in December,
Saturday, December 7, 2024

Santa Visits

Saturday, December 14, 2024
Sunday, December 15, 2024

Club Activity

Mahjong Club*

Weekly meetups

Running Club Weekly meetups
Chess Club Bi-weekly meetups
Book Club Monthly meetups
Hiking Club Monthly meetups
Bunco Club Monthly meetups
Craft Club Monthly meetups

Give Back Club

Monthly meetups




CURRENT CONTRACTS

TERMINATION
SERVICE COMPANY RATE EXPIRATION CLAUSE
Landscap.lng (including Keesen Landscape »196, 450 December 31, 2024 30 days
pond maintenance) See scope for fees
T&M
Snow Removal Keesen Landscape May 31, 2025 30 days
See scope for fees
$73,500
Weed & Pest Control Weed Wranglers $4,500/pest control December 31, 2024 30 days
visit (2x/year)
$2,060/ 3x week per
month
Pet Waste Removal Poop 911 $1,610{n20xn\:;]eek per December 31, 2024 30 days
+5$10.00 per roll for
bags
Trash Removal Republic Services $256,170 December 31, 2024 30 days
$200.00/ clubhouse
Janitorial Services Done & Dusted cleaning December 31, 2024 30 days
$95.00/pool cleaning
Pool Maintenance Peak One Pool & Spa Sll0.00/weekda.y visit December 31, 2024 30 days
+ $7,000 chemicals
Pool Monitors Mile High Pools $96,448 September 4, 2024 30 days
HVAC Timberline 2105/ PM visit December 31, 2024 30 days
Mechanical + materials
$55/ application
Design Review Lee Design Group $75/custom exterior | December 31, 2024 30 days
painting submission
Fence Stainin Neighborly Fence $33,741/ phase December 31, 2024 30 days
g Staining, LLC HJEP ’ ¥
Tree Care Services (F;;(i(seervatlon Tree See scope for fees December 31, 2024 30 days
Pest Control Advantage Pest $95/month December 31, 2024 30 days

Control




FACILITY MAINTENANCE HISTORY

MAINTENANCE

maintenance
visits per year

ELEMENT APPROACH MAINTENANCE / INSPECTION HISTORY NOTES
AED Annual ¢ Inspection for expiration of pads & battery
Backflows Annual Testing e Completed in in May/June 2024 23 backflow locations
Required by COA
Fencing Each fence e Phase 1- 2023, Complete
staining phase e Phase 2- 2024, Complete
completed once e Phase 3- 2025
every 5 years e Phase 4- 2026
e Phase 5- 2027
Repairs, as Restart
needed e Phase 1-2028
e Phase 2-2029
e Phase 3- 2030
e Phase 4 -2031
e Phase 5- 2032
HVAC 3 preventative e Complete

Window Washing &
Deck Power Wash

Annual

e May 22, 2024 (Canceled due to weather,
pending rescheduled date)

lights

Pool Grill Cleaning Annual e Complete

Pest Control Monthly e Ongoing

Plumbing PENDING e Inspection of drains, faucets, toilets Annual cost $515.00.
Fire System PENDING e Inspection of fire extinguishers, emergency | Annual Cost ~ $385

CLUBHOUSE RENTAL HISTORY

NON-PAYING
RENTALS
MONTH RESIDENT | NON-RESIDENT (501c3, clubs, Total
HOA)
January 5 1 19 25
February 5 - 19 24
March 3 1 17 21
April - - - .
May 5 - 18 23
June 8 2 9 19
July 3 0 12 15
August 8 2 20 30
September 5 1 15 21
October
November
December




MEMORANDUM

To:  Board of Directors
From: Katie Call, Community Manager
Date: September 9, 2024

Re: Filing 1 Trail Restoration and Drain

Keesen has been assessing and addressing trail conditions throughout Leyden Rock. Earlier this summer, Joel
and Angie from Keesen joined the Board liaisons for an onsite walk to evaluate the condition of several trails,
including the trail connecting Filing 1 to Leyden Rock Drive. This trail has been impacted by erosion (see
proposal for photos) and has been under review for several months for the best solution. Keesen has proposed a
plan to implement a similar swale system that has been used on other trails that will not require a curb cut and
comply with City codes.

Remaining after

Project GL Category 2024 Budget Actual Proposal Amount Approval
Filing 1 Trail
Restoration and | Landscape $

Drain Replacement $ 200,000.00 | $ 61,705.23 $ 20,909.81 40,795.42




September 06, 2024 WORK ORDER #111371

PROPOSAL FOR

Leyden Rock Metropolitan District
W. 82nd Avenue & Leyden Rock Drive
Arvada, CO 80007

Thank you for allowing us to provide you a quote to perform the work we discussed. We will
work out a schedule with you to complete the work once you sign and return this proposal. You
may send it via email to service@keesenlandscape.com or fax it to (303) 761-3466. While we
do not anticipate any changes to the total cost, Keesen Landscape Management, Inc. does
reserve the right to review any proposal that is over 30 days old.

DESCRIPTION OF WORK TO BE PERFORMED

2024 Trail restoration and Leyden Rock Parkway Drain

This proposal is to restore the trail to safe level conditions for the use of the community. We will

begin working with the top-dress of materials, followed by the installation of a cobble lined swale
along the upslope side of the trail(360 linear foot blue line). This will divert water to the bottom of
the trail where we will install an inlet of a French drain system that will be able to retain a portion
of water for the length of the drain and allow percolation in the soil (300 linear foot red line).

*Swale footprint was determined from looking at trail conditions and satellite images indicating
general erosion of hill side. This is an attempt to divert the majority of water but does not
guarantee diversion of all storm water to occur.

*This approach will avoid the need to involve City and City permitting for curb cuts.

Keesen Landscape Management, Inc « 3355 South Umatilla Street Englewood, Page 10of4
CO 80110



Contract No. - 111371 Leyden Rock Metropolitan District September 06, 2024

Sale $20,909.81
Sales Tax $0.00
Total $20,909.81

LEYDEN ROCK METROPOLITAN DISTRICT
WORK ORDER SUMMARY

Keesen Landscape Management, Inc « 3355 South Umatilla Street Englewood, Page 2of4
CO 80110



Contract No. - 111371 Leyden Rock Metropolitan District September 06, 2024

INCLUDED SERVICES SALES TAX TOTAL COST
Drain Along Sidewalk $0.00 $10,895.09
There is significant year round runoff across the sidewalk on
Leyden Rock Parkway. The runoff is so consistent that there is
always moss growing in this area and is a fall hazard on any
day of the year. To remedy this issue Keesen will complete the
following:

¢ Excavate a trench along the sidewalk that starts just
past where the water is evident and works south to the
existing rock drain that is already in place

e This trench will be hand dug due to rocky conditions in
the area and approximate dimensions are 12" wide X
18" deep.

e Landscape fabric will line the trench

e Corrugated piping will be installed

e The trench will be filled with 1 1/2" granite rock

e The corrugated pipe will be connected to the existing
drain

o All dirt excavated will be used to fill in eroded areas
along the main drives instead of hauled away and
disposed

Trail top-dress and swale install $0.00 $10,014.72
There is significant year round runoff across the sidewalk on

Leyden Rock Parkway. The runoff is so consistent that there is

always moss growing in this area and is a fall hazard on any

day of the year. To remedy this issue Keesen will complete the

following:

e Excavate a trench along the sidewalk that starts just
past where the water is evident and works south to the
existing rock drain that is already in place

e This trench will be hand dug due to rocky conditions in
the area and approximate dimensions are 12" wide X
18" deep.

e Landscape fabric will line the trench

e Corrugated piping will be installed

e The trench will be filled with 1 1/2" granite rock

e The corrugated pipe will be connected to the existing
drain

e All dirt excavated will be used to fill in eroded areas
along the main drives instead of hauled away and

Keesen Landscape Management, Inc « 3355 South Umatilla Street Englewood, Page 3of4

CO 80110



Contract No. - 111371 Leyden Rock Metropolitan District September 06, 2024

disposed

$0.00 $20,909.81

Note: Unless otherwise specified, supplemental watering is not included in this
proposal. If additional watering is necessary to protect plant material warranty, a
separate proposal will be submitted.

Note: New plant material will be covered by a 1 year/1 replacement warrant. This does
not cover any plant material not connected to working irrigation, owner negligence or
circumstances beyond our control including freeze and rodent damage. This includes
trees, shrubs and perennial plant material only.

Force Majeure and Delays

Landscape Contractor’s installation and warranty obligations under this work order are
accepted subject to strikes, labor troubles (including strikes or labor troubles affecting
any suppliers of Landscape Contractor), floods, fires, acts of God, accidents, delays,
shortages of equipment, contingencies of transportation, and other causes of like or
different character beyond the control of the Landscape Contractor. Impossibility of
performance by reason of any legislative, executive, or judicial act of any government
authority shall excuse performance of or delay in performance of this work order.

By By

Angie Sherman

Date 9/6/2024 Date
Keesen Landscape Management, LEYDEN ROCK
Inc. METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

Note: Unless otherwise specified in the work order, all required irrigation
repairs/modifications will be done on a time and materials basis at contracted rates.

Keesen Landscape Management, Inc « 3355 South Umatilla Street Englewood, Page 4 of 4
CO 80110



	2024-09-17 Agenda
	2024-08-20 Meeting Minutes
	Agreement with Tay's Esthetics LLC
	Agreement with Sherri MacLean for Glitter Tattoo & Stilt Walker Services
	Agreement with Midland Marketing Inc. for Event Rental Services
	Agreement for Design Development and Construction with The Architerra Group
	Agreement for 2024 Holiday Lights with Mile High Lights
	Agreement for 2024-2025 Snow Removal Services with Keesen
	Keesen Landscape Management Work Order #109747
	Keesen Landscape Management Work Order #109561
	Keesen Landscape Management Work Order #109160
	Keesen Landscape Management Work Order #109139
	Requisition No. 18
	Option and Ground Lease Agreement with Crown Castle
	Resolution Regarding Policies, Procedures, and Penalties for the Enforcement of the Governing Documents
	Schedule of Cash Position
	Claims
	District Manager's Report
	Filing 1 Trail Restoration and Drain



